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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A Bill for an Appropriation for the State Fair Association .  

Minutes: See attached testimony 

Chairman Holmberg opened the hearing on SB 2009. All committee members were 
present. 

Also present: 
Adam Mathiak and Sheila M. Sandness, Legislative Council 
Laney Herauf, OMB 

Renae Korslien, State Fair Association Manager, testified in support of SB 2009 . 
Written testimony #1 
The request includes: 

1. Increase premium dol lars by $26 ,000 bringing the total premium dollars for the 
biennium to $546 ,000. 

2. One time capital fund expenditure for flood repair of damages to our asphalt totaling 
$2,881 , 500. 

3. One time capital fund expenditure because of flood damage for gravel in the parking 
lots totaling $6 1 8, 500. 

Chairman Holmberg asked , when wou ld the overlay be scheduled to be done? 

Renae Korslien said they would have a year to plan it. 

Chairman Holmberg talked about an emergency clause for the asphalt overlay 

Sheila M. Sandness said the emergency clause would make it doable immediately. 

Chairman Holmberg said the committee should consider that. That could make a 
difference if they knew April 1 5 . Doing an overlay in 201 3 would be cheaper than doing it in 
20 1 4. 
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Renae Korslien they would get the bids out right away. She continued on her testimony 
with reference to their booklet. 

She presented a video "From Flood to Fair". The 2011 State Fair  went into the record 
books as the first year the fair could not be held. 

Renae Korslien introduced some champions from the state fair to talk about their 4-H 
projects and their experience. 

Jacob Ellingson, Morton County, talked about his service project where they grow and 
donate food items to food pantries. 

Jay Ellingson, Morton County, has been attend ing the State Fair all h is l ife and last year 
was the first time he could exh ibit .  He explained h is projects and stated that with the 
premiums from h is projects he has purchased equ ipment for more projects. He thanked 
the legislators. 

Florence Meyer, Morton County, testified in support of the ND State Fair. She entered 37 
projects at the state fair and received a premium check for $122. She is using her premium 
money to start a baking business, "Lovin'from My Oven". 
Written testimony #2 

Vice Chairman Bowman asked Renae about the award she received . 

Renae Korslien said she was awarded the Fair Manager of the year from the Rocky 
Mountain Association of fairs. She commented on other awards her staff received. 

Senator Warner asked about an alternative plans for the Pioneer Vil lage. 

(25:32)Renae Korslien explained the situation and the flood damage to the build ings .  She 
talked about the Fair's need for more land to expand . 

Senator Robinson congratulated Renae and her staff on the good work they do. He said 
that anytime we can showcase our youth , it is a great th ing for all of us. 

Senator Krebsbach moved to amend SB 2009 adding the emergency clause where 
appropriate. 

Vice Chairman Grindberg second . Voice vote amendment adopted . 

Senator Krebsbach moved a do pass as amended on SB 2009. 

Senator Wanzek second 

Roll cal l  vote: 13-0-0 

Senator Krebsbach is the carrier. 
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January 25, 2013 

PROPOSED AM END M E NTS TO SENATE BI LL NO. 2009 

Page 1, l i ne 2, after "association" insert "; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1, after l ine 24, insert: 

"SECTION 3. EMERG E NCY. The capital a ssets l ine i tem in section 1 of this Act i s  
declared to b e  a n  emergency measure." 

Ren um be r  accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PU RPOSE OF AMEN DMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2009 -State Fair Association -Senate Action 

Th e a mend ment makes th e capital assets l ine item wh ich includ es funding for repairing flood damag e an 
emerg ency measure. 

Page No. 1 



Date: I· db- J.5 
Roll Cal l  Vote# / 
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2013 SENATE STANDING COM MITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILURESOLUTION NO. cfio (/ 9 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Com m ittee 

Legislati ve Council Amend men t Number {UJ ""-::=L--\C};;1--I)'Y1<-f-L''-"' !.'-"'"�.J-.U::...>.Oro'---==c._----------
Action Taken O, p� G. .. J � 
M otion Mad e By f< k� S econded By J- (};tunA"/��¥ 

Senators Yes_.......V No Senator 
Cha riman Ray Hol mberg Senator Tim Math ern 
Co-Vice Chai rman Bil l  Bowman Senator David O'Conn el l  '-

Co-Vice Chair Ton y Grindberg Senator Larry Robinson 
S ena tor Ra lph Kilzer Sena tor J ohn Warn er 
S enator Karen Krebsbach 
S ena tor Robert Erbele 
S enator Terry Wanzek 
S enator Ron Ca rl isl e  
S enator Gary Lee 

Total (Yes) /.3 No ---=--0 _____ _ 

Absen t a 
Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amend ment, briefly indica te in tent: 

�� � 
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Module I D :  s_stcomrep_1 5_01 4  
Carrier: Krebsbach 

Insert LC: 1 3.81 59.01 001 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2009 : Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDM ENTS AS FOLLOWS and wh en so amend ed ,  recommends DO PASS 
( 13  YEAS , 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND N OT VOTING). SB 2009 was placed on th e 
Sixth ord er on th e calendar. 

Pag e 1 ,  l ine 2, after "associa tion" insert" ;  and to d eclare an emerg ency" 

Pag e 1 ,  after l i ne 24, insert: 

"SECTION 3. EMERGENCY. Th e capital assets lin e  item in section 1 o f  th is Act 
is d eclared to be an emerg ency measure." 

R enumber accord ing ly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2009 -State Fair Association -Senate Action 

Th e amend men t makes th e capital assets l ine item which includ es funding for repairing flood 
damag e an emerg ency measure. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Pag e 1 s_stcomrep_15_014 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state fair 

association. 

Minutes: Attachments 1 and 2A. and 28. 

Vice Chairman Monson: Called the committee to order with a quorum present to hear SB 
2009. 

Renae Korslien-Manager of the North Dakota State Fair: Thanked the committee for 
the past support given to the State Fair and gave her testimony. See attachment 1 .  
1 0:00 
Video presentation 1 6: 1 0 . 

Florence Mayer-14 years old from Morton County: See Attachment 2A. 

Vice Chairman Monson: Thank you,  Florence. Congratulations. That's very impressive. 

Korslien: We have some more champions with us. She introd uced the State Fair staff. 
We took away fifteen first p lace troph ies from the International Association of Fairs in Las 
Vegas. We got the best of show out of al l  of the state fairs. 

Vice Chairman Monson: Congratulations . That's very impressive. 

Korslien: North Dakota State Fair is one of the champions. We are recognized often. We 
hope we make you proud . 

Vice Chairman Monson: In the one-time funding budget, is this al l  going for asphalt and 
gravel? 

Korslien: Yes.  I t's only for those two items. 

Vice Chairman Monson: I see you received deficiency fund ing . What did you use that 
for? 
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Korslien: We received money from FEMA. Because we are not a pol itical subd ivision, we 
d id not get the add itional percentage that you wou ld get. We hope that is what wil l  pay off 
the Bank of North Dakota . This is only to be used for only flood repairs .  

Vice Chairman Monson: You just made temporary repairs? 

Korslien: Yes. 

Vice Chairman Monson: Are al l  of your other cash flow events that you've been hosting 
back up to speed? 

Korslien: They are back up to speed . One of the chal lenges is getting staff and our 
expenses have gone up too . 

Vice Chairman Monson: The one-time fund ing , are you putting anyth ing toward that out 
of your funds? 

Korslien: No. That is without our funds in it. 

Rep. Boe: In your annual  statement from 20 1 1 -20 1 2  there are d ifferences in some of the 
l ine items. Is this a l l  flood related? 

Korlien: It is a l l  flood related. 

Rep. Boe: If we took a five year average, these 201 2  numbers would be pretty close? 

Korslien: They wou ld be close, but some of our expenses have gone up .  There are no 
other additional th ings put in there. 

Vice Chairman Monson: Discussed the asphalt flood damage. 

Rep. Martinson: Asked and discussed about the efforts to honor Jerry Iverson. 

Seeing no further testimony Vice Chairman Monson closed the hearing. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A B I LL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state fai r  
association 

Minutes: 

Chairman Skarphol took up for consideration SB 2009. With regards to the State Fair, 
are we going to move it forward as is? There is some consideration being g iven to 
amendment that would require that it be avai lable for use to the H ighway Patrol. I don't 
know if that's being considered on this one. 

Rep. Streyle: I d id speak with Rep .  Delzer and I personally don't have any problem with 
that. 

Chairman Skarphol: We'l l  have to check on that amendment see what was added . 

Rep. Dosch: I th ink we need to take a look at the one time funding . Some if it should come 
out of the operating fund is what I feel .  I think we should reduce it and provide some money 
for the flood damage. 

Rep. Streyle: Their salaries and stuff are al l  paid internal ly and there are real ly no genera l  
funds outside of repairs that are needed from the flood event. . . . . 

Chairman Skarphol: Is  this s imply over-lay costs? 

Rep. Streyle: Overlay of just the grounds, not parking lot stuff. 

Chairman Skarphol: Is the intent to have DOT do this when they're in the area so it can be 
done as efficiently as possible? 

Rep. Streyle: I 'm not sure on that, it sounds reasonable. 

Chairman Skarphol: Maybe we should check if DOT is intend ing over-lay and if they 
would get a bid on that area. 
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Rep. Streyle: That makes sense to add it into another project. 

Chairman Skarphol: Do we fund al l  premiums? 

Rep. Streyle: I bel ieve so, but this would be an increase. 

Chairman Skarphol: Adam or Tammy can you find out about if we pay all the premiums, I 
would l ike to know. 

Chairman Skarphol: (6:30) Did the Senate put the emergency clause on, they d id ,  ok. 

Rep. Grande: They are asking for an increase to premium dol lars .  

Chairman Skarphol: Is  it total the state's going to pay and they pay some, I just don't 
know. 

Vice Chair Monson: When you are looking Tammy, I'd l ike to see the h istory of that. 
Seems we've increased them over the years substantial ly. 

Rep. Streyle: We could put those premiums in the extension budget if you l ike? 

Chairman Skarphol: I agree they could be there.  

Went through next weeks schedule. Closed meeting. 



2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

House Appropriations Education and Environment Division 
Roughrider Room, State Capitol 

SB 2009 
March 26, 201 3 

Job 20522 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A B ILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state fair 
association; and to declare an emergency. 

Minutes: Attachment 1. and amendment .02001 

Chairman Skarphol called the committee to order and took up for consideration 58 
2009. 

Tammy-OMB: Distributed attachment 1 .  Explained attachment 1 .  2:37 

Chairman Skarphol: If we appropriate the money and they don't use it a l l  do they get the 
balance? 

Tammy: They turn it back. 

Rep. Dosch: I spoke with Grant Levi at DOT. They do work with cities and counties on 
projects in their area. They are going to be in the area this summer and if the Fair wi l l  
contact them they'd be more than happy to try and work something out .  I would l ike to 
propose an amendment that would reduce the amount given. 

Rep. Dosch moved reduce the general fund dollars from $3.5 million to $1.5 million 
and Vice Chair Monson seconded. The motion failed 4-4. 

Rep. Grande: Explained the proposed amendment .0200 1 .  

Vice Chair Monson: If the Highway Patrol were to use fairgrounds then they cou ld pay for 
it and they could use that money for their paving project. 

Rep. Williams: Did the H ighway Patrol ask for this? 

Adam-Legislative Council: There is in their budget $ 6 mil l ion for a similar course to be 
bu i lt here in Bismarck. 
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Chairman Skarphol: Chairman Delzer's perspective on this is that if it's going to be 
training in Bismarck they have to travel here .  If they train in Minot they have to travel there. 
What's the d ifference? If we are going to pay for a paved area, shou ldn't the H ighway 
Patrol have the opportunity to util ize that as a driving course. 

Rep. Streyle: I don't know if there is going to be enough space in the area 

Rep. Dosch: Have we talked to the Highway Patrol? 

Rep. Grande moved to adopt amendment .02001 and Rep. Streyle seconded. 

Chairman Skarphol: I understand there might be concerns about the space,  but if it would 
be more convenient and less costly for the officers in that reg ion to use that space and its 
avai lable; I certainly wouldn't understand why we shou ldn't have an expectation of use. 

Vice Chair Monson: I 'm fine with this amendment. I would l ike to find out what the 
H ighway Patrol needs. 1 1 : 1 5  

Rep. Williams: I would feel comfortable if the Highway Patrol had some input from the 
Highway Patrol .  1 2:00 

Rep. Grande: My thoughts are that if they don't get it in here then they'l l  want that 
language some place. 

Rep. Boe: My question is the time l imits or conflicts wou ld they have with the State Fair. 

Chairman Skarphol: We could amend it to comply with the needs of the State Fair. 

The committee stood at ease. 15:30 

Colonel James Prochniak-Highway Patrol: The property is an offer from the City of 
Bismarck to deed the land for continued development of publ ic safety training law 
enforcement track. We have in our budget is a plan to bui ld an indoor shooting range and a 
driving track. The size of that pad is to be 300 by 1 ,000 feet. 1 7:40 

Chairman Skarphol: We have an amendment to the State Fair budget that says the State 
Fair association shal l  a l low the H ighway Patrol to use the parking lot space to use for 
emergency veh icle operations training . 

Colonel Prochniak: There are locations where we do local ized training as wel l .  That's not 
to be confused with what we do on a state level .  We also need a statewide training facil ity 
for various law enforcement agencies. 2 1 :48 

Chairman Skarphol: What are you using in the Minot region now? 

Colonel Prochniak: I th ink that on a l imited basis they have been using the fairgrounds ,  
but  there's not enough space to  test the veh icles fu l l  potential. 
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Chairman Skarphol: The Devils Lake law enforcement training program wi l l  uti l ize the 
fairground space? 

Colonel Prochniak: They wil l util ize fairground space and the Red River Val ley 
fairgrounds. 

Rep. Williams: Do they pay anyth ing for it? 

Colonel Prochniak: I don't know about Minot. The Red River Valley fairgrounds is $500 a 
day. 

Rep. Williams: I would be interested in knowing if Minot pays anything .  

Vice Chair Monson: If they are using the fair grounds on a l imited basis, would this be an 
option if it was paved over? 

Colonel Prochniak: It's a l imited option. It's not the proper s ize and it's not bu i lt to the 
specifications that we need to for true emergency operation vehicles. The law enforcement 
calendars confl ict with each other. 26:1 2 

Chairman Skarphol: Do they sti l l  have the drag strip at Minot? 

Rep. Streyle: They do. 

Chairman Skarphol: Why are you not able to use the shooting range at the National 
G uard? 

Colonel Prochniak: Training in a shooting range has changed drastical ly in the last 
decade. Today training is dynamic. When we do this at a private range it makes the 
owners very nervous. We are looking for a central ized location. 

Vice Chair Monson: Bismarck owns the land that you are proposing to put the facility on? 

Colonel Prochniak: They wil l deed that land over as long as it is developed for training 
purposes . 

Chairman Skarphol: Is this going to be avai lable for a l l  law enforcement? 

Colonel Prochniak: The training pad wi l l  not only be used for al l  law enforcement, but all 
publ ic safety as wel l .  

Chairman Skarphol: It wil l  be uti l ized by a l l  law enforcement without cost to the various 
pol itical subd ivisions? 

Colonel Prochniak: That is correct. 

Vice Chair Monson: What kind of material wi l l  be used for th is  pad? 
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Colonel Prochniak: I think that we went with the asphalt .  31 :08 

Vice Chair Monson: How wide is the standard highway? 

Colonel Prochniak: If you take the Interstate highway those are typically a 1 2  ft. lane 3 ft. 
inside shoulder and an 8-1 0ft. outside shoulder. If you ask how I know that I used to be an 
accident reconstructionist. 

Chairman Skarphol: The Interstate is 1 2  ft. from the center l ine to the l ine on the 
shoulder. 

Colonel Prochniak: That is correct. 

Rep. Grande and Rep. Streyle withdrew the amendment. 

Rep. Dosch moved to reduce general fund dollars from $3.5 million to $2.5 million 
and seconded by Rep. Williams. Motion carried 4-2 

Rep. Streyle moved do pass as amended and seconded by Rep. Boe. Motion carried 
6-2 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Minutes: 

Representative Boe: Introduced the bi l l  and amendment .02002 . 

Representative Boe: I move to amend SB 2009 with .02002 . Seconded by 
Representative Skarphol. 

Chairman Delzer: Discussion on the motion to amend? 

A Voice Roll Call vote carries . 

Chairman Delzer: Did you have any d iscussion about whether or not the state fair 
association was contributing money to the exhibitor premiums? 

2:05 Representative Boe: We did.  

Representative Skarphol: I bel ieve it was around $20, 000, the state contributes the rest. 

Chairman Delzer: I find it unsettl ing that they don't want to contribute more to this portion. 
Did you get into how much is for young people or adu lts? 

Representative Boe: I don't th ink we had a break out on that. 

Representative Streyle: The state fair pays for all the setup, judges, maintenance involved 
with doing it. 

3:30 Chairman Delzer: How many people would come if you d idn't have the exh ibitors for 
just the midway and grandstand? 

Representative Streyle: 80% or more of what attends now, I would bet. 

Chairman Delzer: Further d iscussion on the amendment? 
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Representative Brandenburg: I have an amendment that we al low the fairgrounds to hire 
the h ighway patrol to use this property for their driving track they need . 

5:02 Representative Boe: We have that amendment drafted, but the H ighway Patrol came 
in and testified that it isn't a usable s ituation because it creates danger for their officers to 
train. 

Representative Brandenburg: There's got to be some p lace they can drive. I rea l ly think 
this is something we need to d iscuss more.  They're talking $26M for a facil ity that's 
probably already there . We need to look at our options before we go bui ld someplace else. 

Representative Streyle: We had a pretty extensive discussion on this.  They need 300 x 
1 000 foot area. There is not enough room south of the Grandstand. I would support paving 
the east parking lot. 

7:10 Representative Brandenburg: Are you going to second that? 

Representative Brandenburg: I move the amendment .0200 1 .  
Representative Wieland . 

Seconded by 

Representative Streyle: on the current grounds, if this money goes through for the 
pavement and it's not in the parking lot, its actual grounds through the midway so there's 
not enough space there . If you appropriate the money to pave that, I think it's a good idea . 

Chairman Delzer: The essence of the amendment is that if it would work at a l l ,  they should 
make every effort to work with the Highway Patrol .  

9:31 Representative Streyle: I support the concept but they wou ld have to scale it  down. 

Representative Brandenburg: The reason I bring this up is because to the highway 
patrol's cred it they are getting the training done but they are having instances where they 
are being told to not come back. On state-owned grounds they can't say, don't come back. 

Chairman Delzer: Government services looked very hard at this. There are a lot of p laces 
in the state that have training facil ities and the highway patrol real ly does want to promote a 
complex in Bismarck with a driving range. 

11 :52 Representative Bellew: Maybe we can use runways that aren't being used at the 
airports . 

Chairman Delzer: This is a serious matter. In Grand Forks they have some simu lators that 
work wel l ,  do a good job ,  and good training . We have Camp Grafton that would be the 
log ical p lace for us to bui ld . Are we dupl icating business on top of each other? 

12:56 Representative Kempenich: We had a long d iscussion on the highway patrol 
budget, and it comes down to what we want to do in the state. The fairground is too much 
in town for what they want to look at. 
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Chairman Delzer: I don't know that anything in this amendment says it's going to happen. 

13:52 Representative Monson: We had this d iscussion in this budget. They are already 
doing it, using the fairgrounds as much as they can; this amendment does nothing . 

Representative Boe: I think if we're going to address this problem, we need to put money 
into it. 

Chairman Delzer: That might be true. They want their th ing in Bismarck. Further 
d iscussion? 

A Roll Call vote to amend .02001 to al low the highway patrol to use the fairgrounds/track 
for training . Yes= 11, No= 10, Absent = 1. Motion carried . 

Representative Boe: I move a Do Pass as amended . Seconded by Representative 
Skarphol .  

A Do Pass as amended Roll Call vote: Yes = 16, No = 5, Absent = 1. Carrier: 
Representative Boe. 



13. 8159.02003 
Title.03000 
Fiscal No.3 

Prepa red by the Leg islati ve Cou nci l  s taff for 
House Appropriations 

Apri l 9, 2013 

PROPOSED AMENDM ENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2009 

Pag e 1, l ine 2, a fter th e semicolon insert "to provide space for h ighway pa trol train ing;" 

Pag e 1, replace l ines 11 through 13 with : 

"Capita l  assets 
Prem iums 
Total g en eral fund 

Pag e 1, replace l ines 19 and 20 wi th : 

"Repai r flood damag e  
Total g en era l fund 

Pag e 1, after l i n e  24, insert: 

$210,000 
520,000 

$730,000 

$2,290,000 
26,000 

$2,316,000 

iQ 
$0 

$2,500,000 
546,000 

$3 '046' 000" 

$2,500,000 
$2,500,000" 

"SECTION 3. EMERGENCY VEHICLE OPERATIONS COURSE. The s tate fair  
associa tion shal l  a l low the h ig h way patrol to use parking lot space on the s tate 
fairg rounds for an emerg ency vehic le operations cou rs e  and shall provid e temporary 
classroom space as need ed for related training courses ,  for th e b iennium b eg inning 
July 1, 2013, and ending June 30, 2015." 

Renumber accord ingly 

STATEM ENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDM ENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2009 -State Fair Association -House Action 

Executive Senate House 
Budget Version Changes 

Capital assets $3,500,000 $3,500,000 ($1 ,000,000) 
Premiums 546,000 546,000 

Total all funds $4,046,000 $4,046,000 ($1 ,000,000) 
Less estimated income 0 0 0 

General fund $4,046,000 $4,046,000 ($1 ,000,000) 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 

House 
Version 

$2,500,000 
546,000 

$3,046,000 
0 

$3,046,000 

0.00 

Department No. 665 -State Fair Association - Detail of House Changes 

Capital assets 
Premiums 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Reduces 
Funding for 

Flood Damage 
Repair' 

($1,000,000) 

($1,000,000) 
0 

($1 ,000,000) 

0.00 

Total House 
Changes 

($1 ,000,000) 

($1 ,000,000) 
0 

($1 ,000,000) 

0.00 

1 This amend ment reduces funding for flood damage repair by $1 mi ll ion fro m $3.5 million to $2.5 mi llion . 

Page No. 1 13.8159.02003 



Th e executive recommendation provid ed $3.5 mil l ion .  

Th is a mendment also adds a n ew section to al low the H ighway Patrol to use space on th e state 
fa irgrounds for an emerg ency veh icle operat ions course and related train ing. 

Pag e No.2 13. 8159.02003 
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201 3 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2 tJtJ f 
House Education and Environment Division 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Committee 

Action Taken: D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 0 Amended � Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 
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Representatives Yes No Representatives 
Chairman Robert Skarphol X Rep. Clark Williams 
Vice Chairman David Monson X Rep. Tracy Bee 
Rep. Bob Martinson .X 
Rep. Roscoe Streyle X 
Rep. Mark Dosch )( 
Rep. Bette Grande >< 

Yes No 

X 
x 

Total (Yes) __ _ 4-'--------- No 
___ L( _________ _ 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Date: __ )_-_2_(_� 1=-3 __ 

Roll Call Vote #: _ _.,l,._ __ 

2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTE� 

BILURESOLUTION NO. L... tJ(J 1 
House Education and Environment Division 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 0.2_CJO/ 

Committee 

Action Taken: D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended (ZI Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By _ _  _,&:=--.�_'t/..;_/1,_.�'-'--....;;;e ____ Seconded By Sjrev/e 
I 

Representatives 
Chairman Robert Skarphol 
Vice Chairman David Monson 
Rep. Bob Martinson 
Rep. Roscoe Streyle 
Rep. Mark Dosch 
Rep. Bette Grande 

Total (Yes) 

Yes No Representatives Yes 
Rep. Clark Williams 
Rep. Tracy Boe 

No 

No 

--------��-
--------------

W\'ifdrvrtuh Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Date: 3 - 2.. b - J 3 
Roll Call Vote #: _.....:3;:;.._ __ 

201 3 HOUSE STANDING COMMITIEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2 6()1 
House Education and Environment Division 

0 Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Committee 

Action Taken: 0 Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended .lZJ Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By B�P JJo.scb Seconded By �-+.�����-----

Representatives Yes No Representatives 
Chairman Robert Skarphol X Rep. Clark Williams 
Vice Chairman David Monson ·x Rep. Tracy Boe 
Rep. Bob Martinson X 
Rep. Roscoe Streyle X 
Rep. Mark Dosch X 
Rep. Bette Grande X, 

Yes No 

X 
X 

Total (Yes) --���--------- No --�2�--------------
Absent 0 
Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Aedrce 1 he .:Jef'eral -fu,J r/olfctr5 .from 3 . .5- +o 
2.5' 



Date: ----"'-3_-_<.....;...t�-"T"'""} 3_ 
Roll Call Vote #: __ 4....__ __ 

2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2 CJO 1 
House Education and Environment Division 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Committee 

Action Taken: � Do Pass D Do Not Pass lXI Amended 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

D Adopt Amendment 

Motion Made By 5 ire y I e Seconded By 
--�=-�--,��-------

Representatives Yes No 
Chairman Robert Skarphol X 
Vice Chairman David Monson )( 
Rep. Bob Martinson X 
Rep. Roscoe Streyle X 
Rep. Mark Dosch ?\ 
Rep. Bette Grande A 

Total (Yes) ? No 
------�-------------

Absent 0 
Floor Assignment g e 0. BtJ e I 

Representatives 
Rep. Clark Williams 
Rep. Tracy Boe 

2 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Yes No 

X 
k 



Date: Lf/1{13 
Rol l Cal l  Vote#: -----''---

House Appropriati ons 

2013 HOUSE STAN DING COM MITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. �0'1 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Cou nci l  Am endm ent Number 

Com m i ttee 

Action Taken: D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Am ended fRJ Ad opt Amendm ent 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By ----1�,.....1�'./---=B'-"'ue'-"-"--/ ___
_ Second ed By tf!(- S�vrfhol 

Representatives Yes No Representatives 
Chairman D elzer Rep. Streyle 
Vice Chairman Kem penich Rep. Thoreson 
Rep. Bel l ew Rep. Wiela nd 
Rep. Brand enburg 
Rep. Dosch 
Rep. Gra nd e Rep. Boe 
Rep. Hawken Rep. Glassheim 
Rep. Kreidt  Rep. Gu ggisberg 
Rep. Marti nson Rep. Holman 
Rep. Monson Rep. Wil l iams 
Rep. Nelson 
Rep. Pol l ert 
Rep. Sanford 
Rep. Skarphol 

Total Yes No 

Yes No 

--------------------------------------------------

Absent 

Floor Assig nm ent 

If the vote is  on a n  am endment, bri efly ind icate i ntent: 



Date: 4/t f11 
Rol l Call Vote #: _2"""�---

House Appropriations 

2013 HOUSE STAN DING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. Ux.>q 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Counci l Am endment Number .oz_ool 

Com m i ttee 

Action Taken : D Do Pass 0 Do Not Pass 0 Am end ed IX] Ad opt Am endmen t  

0 Rerefer to Appropriations 0 Recon sider 

Second ed By t<fl· \,. .. hU�¥1 d 
Representatives Yes No Representatives 

Chairman Delzer )(; Rep. Streyl e 
Vice Chairman Kem pen ich '{ Rep. Thoreson 
Rep. Bellew )( Rep. Wieland 
Rep. Brandenburg x 
Rep. Dosch K 
Rep. Grande (' Rep. Boe 
Rep. Hawken X Rep. Glassheim 
Rep. Kreid t A Rep. Guggisberg 
Rep. Ma rtinson X Rep. Holman 
Rep. Monson X' Rep. Wil l iams 
Rep. Nelson '£' 
Rep. Pol lert 
Rep. Sanford 'X! 
Rep. Skarphol '( 

Tota l Yes No 

Yes No 
X 
(' 

x 

)C 
)( 
x 
K 
>( 

----------��---------��----------------------

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is  on an amendment, briefly ind icate inten t: 



Date: � /1"113 
Rol l Call Vote#: __.......3'-----

H ouse Appropriations 

2013 HOUSE STAN DING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 'Z-oO� 

0 Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Counci l  Amend men t Number 

Commi ttee 

Action Taken: � Do Pass 0 Do Not Pass [)f Amended 0 Adopt Amend ment 

0 Rerefer to Appropriations 0 Recon sider 

M otion Made By S econd ed By 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Chai rman Del zer X Rep. Streyle X 
Vice Cha irman Kempenich X Rep. Thoreson k"' 
Rep. Bel l ew K. Rep. Wieland v 
Rep. Brandenburg � 
Rep. Dosch X 
Rep. Grande )( Rep. Boe )( 
Rep. Hawken x Rep. Glasshei m K 
Rep. Kreidt '{ Rep. Guggisberg t 
Rep. Martinson X Rep_. H ol man X_ 
Rep. M onson " Rep. Wil liams X'" 
Rep. Nelson y 
Rep. Pol l ert 
Rep. San ford '{ 
Rep. Ska rphol x 

Tota l Yes ----��-�� _____ 
No 

__ �S�---------------
Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amend ment, briefly indica te intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
Apri110, 2013 9:06am 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_64_005 
Carrier: Boe 

Insert LC: 13.8159.02003 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2009, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Delzer, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amend ed,  recommends 
DO PASS (16 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND N OT VOTING).  Engrossed SB 2009 
was placed on th e Sixth order on th e calendar. 

Pag e 1, l ine 2, after the semicolon insert "to provid e space for highway patrol training ;" 

Pag e 1, replace l ines 11 through 13 with : 

"Capital assets 
Premiu ms 
Total g en eral fund 

Pag e 1, replace l ines 19 and 20 with : 

"Repair flood damag e 
Total g en eral fund 

Pag e 1, after l in e 24, insert: 

$210,000 
520,000 

$730,000 

$2,290,000 
26.000 

$2,316,000 

iQ 
$0 

$2,500,000 
546,000 

$3,046,000" 

$2.500.000 
$2 ,500,000" 

"SECTION 3. EMERGENCY VEHICLE OPERATIONS COURSE. The state 
fair association shall al low th e highway patrol to use parking lot space on th e state 
fairgrounds for an emerg ency vehicl e operations course and shall provid e temporary 
classroom space as n eed ed for related train ing courses, for th e biennium beginning 
July 1, 2013, and ending Jun e 30, 2015." 

R enumber accord ingly 

STATEMENT OF PU RPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2009 - State Fair Association -House Action 

Executive 
Budget 

Capital assets $3,500,000 
Premiums 546,000 

Total all funds $4,046,000 
Less estimated income 0 

General fund $4,046,000 

FTE 0.00 

Senate 
Version 

$3,500,000 
546,000 

$4,046,000 
0 

$4,046,000 

0.00 

House 
Changes 

($1,000,000) 

($1,000,000) 
0 

($1,000,000) 

0.00 

House 
Version 

$2,500,000 
546 000 

$3,046,000 
0 

$3,046,000 

0.00 

Department No. 665 -State Fair Association -Detail of House Changes 

Capital assets 
Premiums 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Reduces 
Funding for 

Flood Damage 
Repair' 

($1,000,000) 

($1 ,000,000) 
0 

($1 ,000,000) 

0.00 

Total House 
Changes 

($1,000,000) 

($1 ,000,000) 
0 

($1,000,000) 

0.00 

1 This a mend ment reduces funding for flood damag e repair by $1 mil l ion from $3.5 million to 
$2.5 mill ion . Th e executive recommendation provid ed $3.5  mill ion. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Pag e 1 h_stcomrep_64_005 



Com Standing Committee Report 
April 1 0, 201 3 9:06am 

Module 10: h_stcomrep_64_005 
Carrier: Boe 

Insert LC: 1 3.81 59.02003 Title: 03000 

This a mend ment also adds a n ew section to al low th e Highway Patrol to use space on th e 
state fairgrounds for an emerg ency veh icl e operations course and related training. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 2 h_stcomrep_64_005 



2013 CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 

SB 2009 



2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

SB 2009 Conference Committee 
April 1 7 , 20 1 3  
Job# 2 1 2 1 0  

r8J Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resol 

A B I LL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state fair 
association. 

Minutes: 

Leg islative Council - Adam Mathiak 
OMB - Shei la Peterson & Laney Herauf 

No attachments 

Senator Krebsbach opened the conference committee hearing on SB 2009. Senators 
Lee and Warner were also present as wel l  as Representatives Dosch, Grande and Boe. 

Rep. Dosch: I think the only change the House made was to reduce from the Senate's 
version $ 1 M from the capital assets - there was $3.5M in there for some work on the 
parking lot so they could do re-paving and gravel l ing . The House initia l ly reduced the 
$3.5M to $1 M and then we decided to only red uce it by $ 1 M instead of the $2 .5M they 
orig inal ly looked at. 

The primary reason was that the fair had a good year last year. They have money in 
reserve that could cover $1 M. The State Fair does wonders for Minot but not for the rest of 
the state and yet the state continues to put a lot of money into the Fair. Every biennium 
there is a lways some fund ing that needs to be put into it .  We're wil l ing to p ick up $2.5M of 
that, but we'd l ike the State Fair Association to p ick up a portion of that. 

Senator Krebsbach asked them to explain section 3 that they added . 

Rep. Dosch: The State H ighway Patrol is lobbying for land and dol lars from the state to 
test their vehicles. Some felt that if we provide dollars to the State Fai r, we could al low 
emergency veh icles to use that for l ive testing. It wasn't unanimous to add it on. The ful l  
Appropriations Committee put i t  on. That was the reasoning. Even the H ighway Patrol 
wasn't too keen on that. We should at least al low them the usage. If it works out- we 
thought we should at least put that option in there .  



Senate Appropriations Committee 
SB 2009 conference committee 
April17, 2013 
Page 2 

Senator Warner: I am trying to visual ize how the State Fair grounds are laid out. The only 
paved area is in mach inery row. Noth ing could be h igh speed . All the other areas are 
gravel. 

Rep. Dosch: Some thought it would be a great obstacle course. 

Senator Krebsbach suggested total ly removing section 3 .  It isn't conducive for any type of 
testing or training . Basica l ly the H ighway Patrol is looking for training for all levels.  They do  
the  training here in  Bismarck. I t  i s  not logical to send them to Minot. The space i s  confined 
for the traffic coming into the fair grounds. It is not set up for any type of training areas. The 
State Fair has done some work with vehicles being on the ground and parked there, not on 
a constant basis - unless they want to do a whole lot of paving . The State Fair is not 
interested in paving . Gravel is much cheaper to maintain. The comment was made that 
they should take it out of their operations. The flood recovery to re-do pavement and gravel 
areas was $3.5M. If we want them to start taking it out of operations budget, then they wi l l  
start coming back to  the legislature for operations money which they have not done. They 
have been hand l ing their finances extremely conservatively and wel l .  The $3.5M was in the 
executive budget. Minot contributes to the State Fair from both the county and the city. You 
can note that on the annual report. Addressing the comment that it is mostly the Minot area: 
there were 45,863 entries in the State Fair this year, and the largest number of entries 
came from Richland County-7,406 entries. The entries were spread across the state. 

Rep. Dosch: I th ink we were referring to the economic impact rather than participation. 

Senator Krebsbach said she wil l hold firmly to the $3.5M because she feels it is warranted 
and justified . 

Senator Gary Lee: I was reflecting back on the deficiency appropriation budget-was there 
someth ing in there for the State Fair? 

Senator Krebsbach: That was flood related and was for some of the bui ld ings .  

Senator Gary Lee: That's not a reflection of this? 

Senator Krebsbach: A lot of money went into rewiring a l l  of the bui ld ings other than the 
grandstand and the State Fair Center. 

Rep. Dosch: We wil l  d iscuss your concerns and issues, and we' l l  have to come back at 
least one more time. 

Senator Krebsbach: We wil l  recess until further notice in time. 



2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

SB 2009 
April 1 9, 20 1 3  
Job# 2 1 299 

1:2J Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

A B I LL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the State Fair 
Association. 

Minutes: 

Legislative Council - Adam Mathiak 
OMB - Sheila Peterson & Laney Herauf 

Senators - Krebsbach , Lee, Warner 
Representatives - Dosch , Grande, Boe 

Senator Krebsbach explains where the committee had ended during a previous meeting . 
She asks if there is any movement on the House side regard ing the issue of removing $ 1 M  
and the H ighway Patrol using space at the fairgrounds. 

Rep. Dosch replies they bel ieve the State has been very generous to the State Fair and 
states they have put in over $28M. He goes on to explain the DOT is wil l ing to work with 
the county and city of Minot. He says they are wi l ling to compromise on the amendment as 
far as the race track and they are agreeable to removing Section 3 out but they do stay firm 
on the $ 1 M. 

Senator Krebsbach states that since 1 969, other than the grandstand there has been $5M 
of State money put into that entity. She relates that the local community there has put in 
almost $23M compared to the $20M from the state. She explains the flood damage and 
what FEMA paid for and wou ld l ike to see half of the mil l ion dollars g iven back for the 
parking lot project. 

Rep. Dosch repl ies that Minot was given another $6M or $7M by the Federa l Government 
to help mitigate flood damage to which Senator Krebsbach rep l ies that none of that goes 
to the State Fair. 

Rep. Dosch said he bel ieves Minot is the only community that benefits from the State Fair 
and wonders why there is a State Fair if it continual ly costs the State money. 

Senator Krebsbach asks how much goes back to the State in sales taxes. 



Senate Appropriations Committee 
SB 2009 conference committee 
April 19, 2013 
Page 2 

Rep. Dosch says the State cannot be expected to pay for a l l  of it. 

Senator Krebsbach offers to go with half of the request. 

Senator G. Lee takes issue that Minot is the only one that benefits from the State Fair. He 
g ives the example of Bonanza Vi lle in Fargo, and says that these are all destination sites in 
NO so all benefit. 

Senator Krebsbach remarks on the countless hours of volunteer work that goes into the 
State Fair. 

Rep. Grande mentions that compromise wi l l  be very d ifficult in the House and a match fund 
is not an unreasonable request. 

Rep. Dosch believes this is a very fair offer. 

Senator Krebsbach asks the committee to d iscuss it on their own and that the Senate 
would settle if they would put in the $500,000 and remove the HP language. 

Conference committee recessed . 



2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

SB 2009 conference committee 
April 20, 201 3 
Job# 21 356 

1Z1 Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolutio : 

A B I LL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state fair 
association. 

Minutes: 

Legis lative Council - Adam Mathiak 
OMB - Shei la Peterson & Laney Herauf 

Senator Krebsbach re-convened the conference committee hearing on SB 2009 . 
Senators Lee and Sinner were a lso present as wel l  as Representatives Dosch, Grande 
and Boe. (Senator Sinner is fi l l ing in for Senator Warner who is absent . )  

Senator Krebsbach said she'd l ike to turn i t  over to the House s ide to see i f  there were 
any changes, any offers or any reaction to the offer that was made the other day. 

Rep. Grande: In l ight of the way the budget seems to be fal l ing in place and the way the 
numbers are looking for Monday, we're feel ing the need to probably tighten up on some of 
these budgets and we're looking at possibly moving that l ine to $ 1 .5M. 

Senator Krebsbach recessed the meeting. 



2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

SB 2009 
04-23-20 1 3  
Job# 2 1 454 

IZ] Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

A Conference Committee hearing on the State Fair (Do Pass as Amended) 

Minutes: 

Senator Krebsbach cal led the Conference committee to order on Tuesday, April 23,  201 3 
at 3 :30 pm in the Harvest Room . Let the record show al l  conferees are present. 

SENATE: Senators: Karen Krebsbach, Gary Lee, John Warner 
HOUSE: Representatives: Mark Dosch, Bette Grande, Tracy Boe 

Shei la M. Sandness - Legislative Council 
Shei la Peterson and Laney Herauf - OMB 

Senator Krebsbach explains what they d iscussed in their previous meeting . She says 
they would l ike to remove the word ing in Section three which g ives the HP use of parking 
lot space and to have classrooms. She further explains other issues are the money 
amount to go for repair and paving of the parking lots. She said this project has received 
no FEMA money so the Governor put it in h is budget at $3.5M. She goes on to explain her 
last offer being that the Senate would drop $500 ,000. Rep. Dosch states they would agree 
to go from $ 1 M to $750. Senator Krebsbach asks if it is correct to say they wou ld agree 
to $2,750,000.00. Rep. Dosch repl ies yes plus they would take out the training track. 
Senator Krebsbach asks if they would care to put that into a motion. 

Representatives Dosch moves the House will recede from the House amendments and 
that we wi l l  further amend to reducing down from $3.5M leaving a balance that the state 
would pick up at $2,750,000.00 and remove section 3 of the bi l l  which is the emergency 
operation course. Representative Grande seconded the motion 

Senator Krebsbach asked the Clerk to call the rol l  on SB 2009. 

Vote - 6 yes, 0 no, (Senator Warner added his vote) 
Motion passes 
Committee adjourned 



13. 81 59.0 200 4 
Title.0 4000 
Fiscal No. 1 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Conference Committee 

April 2 4 1 2013 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BI LL NO. 2009 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1320 and 1321 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1376 and 1377 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill 
No. 2009 be amended as follows: 

Page 1 I replace lines 11 through 13 with: 

"Capital assets 
Premiums 
Total general fund 

Page 1 I replace lines 19 and 20 with: 

"Repair flood damage 
Total general fund 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF P U RPOSE OF AMEN DMENT: 

$210 1000 
520 ,000 

$730 1000 

$2 1 540 1000 
2 61000 

$2 1 5661000 

� 
$0 

Senate Bill No. 2009 -State Fair Association -Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Executive Senate Committee Committee House 

Budget Version Cha[lges Version Version 

$2 1 750 1000 
546,000 

$312961000 " 

$2 .750 ,000 
$2 1750 1000 " 

Comparison 
to House 

Capital assets $3,500,000 $3,500,000 ($750,000) $2,750,000 $2,500,000 $250,000 
Premiums 546,000 546 000 546,000 546,000 

Total all funds $4,046,000 $4,046,000 ($750,000) $3,296,000 $3,046,000 
Less estimated income 0 0 0 0 0 

General fund $4,046,000 $4,046,000 ($750,000) $3,296,000 $3,046,000 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Department No. 665 -State Fair Association - Detail of Conference Committe e  Changes 

Capital assets 
Premiums 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Reduces 
Funding for 

Flood Damage 
Repair' 

($750,000) 

($750,000) 
0 

($750,000) 

0.00 

Total 
Conference 
Committee 
Changes 

($750,000) 

($750,000) 
0 

($750,000) 

0.00 

1 This amendment reduces funding for flood damage repair by $750,000, from $3.5 mil l ion to 
$2.75 mil l ion. The executive recommendation and the Senate provided $3 .5 mi l l ion. The House 
reduced funding by $1 mil l ion, from $3.5 mil l ion to $2.5 mi ll ion. 

Page No.1 1 3. 81 59.0 200 4 

$250,000 
0 

$250,000 

0.00 



This amendment does not include a section added by the House to allow the H ighway Patrol to use 
space on the state fairgrounds for an emergency vehicle operations course and related training. 

Page No. 2 13. 81 59.0 200 4 



Date __ L/�----;�--_3---_/..::;....tY_ 
Roll Ca ll Vote #---,...+,/ __ _ 

201 3 S E NATE CONFERENCE COMMITTE E  
ROLL CALL VOTES 

B ILL/RESOLUTI ON NO. :J 0 C) 1' as (re) engrossed 

Action Taken 0 SENATE accede to House Amendments 

0 SENATE accede to House Amendments and further amends 

0 HOUSE recede from House amendments 

,Jf!HOUSE recede from House amendments and a mends as follows _ L 
· c?. 5m . -�-�+�3 

0 Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be d ischarged and 
a new committee be appointed 

Motion Mad e by: _a...::..:::::.....:;__c_.:./u ______ s econd ed by: 

Total Senate Vote 

Vote Count Yes:  5 
Senate Carrier � 
LC N umber 

Yes No 

No: ----- Absent: .. --'JL'-----
House Carrier 

of amendment 

LC N umber of eng rossment 

� U)�� �� � r aL-zb:J �� 

��-



Com Conference Committee Report 
April 26, 201 3 1 1 :02am 

Module ID: s_cfcomrep_75_002 

Insert LC : 1 3 .81 59.02004 

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
SB 2009, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Krebsbach, G. Lee, Warner 

and Reps. Dosch, Grande, Boe) recommends that the HOUSE RECEDE from the 
House amendments as printed on SJ pages 1320-1321, adopt amendments as 
fol lows, and place SB 2009 on the Seventh order: 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1320 and 1321 of the 
Senate Journal and pages 1376 and 1377 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate 
Bi l l  No. 2009 be amended as follows: 

Page 1 ,  replace l ines 1 1  through 1 3  with : 

"Capital assets 
Premiums 
Total general fund 

Page 1, replace l ines 19 and 20 with : 

"Repair flood damage 
Total general fund 

Renumber accord ingly 

$210,000 
520.000 

$730,000 

STATEM ENT OF PU RPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

$2,540,000 
26.000 

$2,566,000 

iQ 
$0 

$2,750,000 
546,000 

$3,296,000" 

$2,750,000 
$2,750,000" 

Senate Bill No. 2009 - State Fair Association - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Executive Senate Committee Committee House Comparison 

Budget Version Changes Version Version to House 

Capital assets $3,500,000 $3,500,000 ($750,000) $2,750,000 $2,500,000 $250,000 
Premiums 546 000 546000 546 000 546 000 

Total all funds $4,046,000 $4,046,000 ($750,000) $3,296,000 $3,046,000 
Less estimated income 0 0 0 0 0 

General fund $4,046,000 $4,046,000 ($750,000) $3,296,000 $3,046,000 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Department No. 665 - State Fair Association - Detail of Conference Committee 
Changes 

Capital assets 
Premiums 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Reduces 
Funding for 

Flood Damage 
Repair' 

($750,000) 

($750,000) 
0 

($750,000) 

0.00 

Total 
Conference 
Committee 
Changes 

($750,000) 

($750,000) 
0 

($750,000) 

0.00 

$250,000 
0 

$250,000 

0.00 

1 This amendment reduces funding for flood damage repair by $750,000, from $3.5 mil l ion to 
$2.75 mi l l ion. The executive recommendation and the Senate provided $3.5 mil lion. The 
House reduced funding by $1 mil l ion, from $3.5 mil l ion to $2.5 mi l lion. 

This amendment does not include a section added by the House to allow the H ighway Patrol 
to use space on the state fairgrounds for an emergency vehicle operations course and 
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Com Conference Committee Report 
April 26, 2013 11:02am 

related training. 

Module 10: s_cfcomrep_75_002 

Insert LC: 13.8159.02004 

Engrossed SB 2009 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 
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2013 TESTIMONY 

SB 2009 



january 2 5 , 2 0 1 3 
Senate Appropriations 
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S e n ate Ap p ro p riations Com m ittee 

Senator Ray H o l m b e rg, Chairman 

J a n u a ry 25,  2013 

10 :00AM 

S B2009 

D e a r  Sen ators, 

The N o rth Da kota State Fair  is req uesting t h e  Senate Appro p riations Com m ittee to support 

Sen ate B i l l  No.  2009. 

The req u est inc ludes:  

1 .  I n crease p re m i u m  d o l l a rs by $26,000 bri nging the total  p re m i u m  d o l l a rs for t h e  

b ien n i u m  to $546,000. 

2 .  O n e  t ime capital  fu n d  expendit u re for flood repair  of  d a mages to o u r  asp h a lt 

tota l ing $2,881,500. 

3 .  O n e  t ime capital  fu n d  expenditure because of flood d a m age for gravel i n  t h e  p a rking 

lots tota l ing $618,500. 

The influx of 4-H, FFA a n d  open class exhibitors causes need for an i n crease in premium d o l l a r  

fu nds.  T h e  rem a i n d er o f  t h e  requ est i s  d u e  t o  da mage caused b y  the 2 0 1 1  flood which w e  h ave 

n ot been a b l e  to repair. 

T h a n k  you a n d  we a p p reciate your s u pport. 

P.O. B o x  1 796 
Minot, North Dakota 58702 

Phone 70 1 .857.7620 
Fax 70 1 .857.7622 

email: ndsf@minot.com 

Web site: ndstatefair.com 
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Premium Dollar Request 
Requesting a $26,ooo increase 

to equal a total of $546,ooo. 



I 
I 2012 North Dakota State Fair 

Entries by County 

I 
Ada m s  McKenz ie 

I Ba rnes 355 Mclea n 2,097 

Benson 333 M e rcer 967 

I Botti nea u 787 Morton 981 

Bowma n  239 Mou ntra i l  779 

I B u rke 299 Nelson 181 

Bu rl iegh 2,012 Ol ive r 449 

I Cass 4,354 Pe m b i n a  337 

Cava l ier  117 Pierce 457 

I 
Dickey 3,738 Ra msey 532 

Divide 122 Ra nsom 1A07 

Dodge 1 Renvi l le  658 

I D u n n  158 Richla nd 7A06 

Eddy 200 Rolette 175 

I E m mons 203 Sa rgent 58 

Foste r 524 Sherid a n  314 

I Golden Va l ley 3 Sta rk 265 

G ra nd Forks 391 Steele 10 

I 
G ra nt 55 Stuts m a n  735 

G riggs 160 Towner 382 

Hetti nger 131 Tra i l l  163 

I Kidder 409 Walsh 283 

La M o u re 257 Wa rd 7,076 

I Loga n 162 Wells  1,582 

M c H e n ry 2,577 W i l l i a m s  492 

I M c i ntosh 146 

Total Entries 45,863 

I 
I 
I 
I 
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Renae Kors l ie n  

From: 
Sent:  
To : 
S u bject: 

Loretta Haas [Loretta . Haas@sendit. nodak.edu) 
Monday, Jan uary 2 1 , 20 1 3  7 :21  PM 
renae@ndstatefa i r.com 
State Fair fu nding 

T h i s  i s  a n  email s u pporting more f i n a n c i a l  a s s i st a n c e  for the State F a i r .  
My d a u ghter h a s  been i n  4 - H  fo r two yea rs a n d  t h i s  past yea r was h e r  first t ime e x h i biting at 

the State F a i r .  S h e  was e x c ited t o  know h ow we l l  s h e  d i d  a n d  what other people t h ought of 
h e r  p roj e ct s . When t h ey c ame back f rom stateJ s h e  was ECSTATIC to f i n d  out t h a t  s h e  had 

e a rned a p u rple ribbon . T h i s J she fee l s J  i s  her s i ngle most exciting experi e n c e  t h i s  past 

s u mme r .  S h e  t a l ks about t h e  e x c itement a n d  h a s  a corner i n  her room where h e r  roc ket a n d  h e r  
p u rp l e  ri bbon a re o n  d i s p l ay . Th i s  h a s  given h e r  more in centive to do bett e r  a n d  t ry more 
event s t h i s  c oming yea r .  I know as a p a rent I cou ldn ' t  have pres s u red or been a b le to given 

h e r  t h i s  d rive or i n centive . 

I was a l s o  in 4 - H  i n  my youth and I s t i l l  remember and u s e  many of t h e  experie n c e s  I h a d  at 

the State F a i r .  I ente red i nto t h e  F a s h ion revue a n d  decorative d i s p l ay a n d  I u s e  m a ny of 
t h e  s k i l l s  t h a t  I l e a rned to get to the State F a i r  in my d a i ly l ife as a tea c h e r  a n d  

e d u c ato r . I l ove to s ew a n d  look good a n d  I know my experience at the F a s h io n  Revue h e lped 

with t h i s . I know t h e  State F a i r  p a rt i c i pants wou l d  be adversely affe cted by l a c k  of f u n d i n g  

for t h i s  even t . 

T h a n k  you for you r t ime a n d  I hope you a re able to s u pport t h i s  b i l l . 

Mrs . Lo rett a H a a s  
mot h e r  of C h a rm a i n e  H a a s  a n d  

T e a c h e r  at Na poleon P u b l i c  s c h ool 
N a po l eon J ND 5 8 5 6 1  

1 
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Beef Entries 

Dairy Entries 

Swine Entries 

Sheep Entries 

Goats/llama Entries 

Poultry Entries 

Rabbit Entries 

Horse Entries 

Ag Products 

'l!llllllllll!l � - - 'llii!IIIII!III - - - - - - - ­
ENTRIES 

1� 1� 1� 1m 1� w� 1� 1m 1m 1m 1� 1� 1� 1� 1� 1m �oo � �� �� �M �� 

408 51 1 465 717 597 457 660 579 736 533 656 584 479 482 536 472 380 496 

262 243 421 313 335 435 379 391 424 228 254 184 126 124 212 222 259 122 

558 493 461 495 

98 199 307 102 

1 1 1  108 1 18  89 99 123 56 disease 89 137 146 107 1 1 1  93 90 279 155 434 422 527 617 586 

- - 1!!111111111111 -

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

530 491 

129 154 

494 412 

133 125 

333 Flood 

1 53 Flood 

599 512 461 427 464 Flood 

330 

1 14  

429 

863 728 658 849 670 770 677 844 924 947 1039 772 1 1 1 5  845 679 893 847 640 485 586 560 648 597 647 624 623 530 Flood 341 

122 102 62 o 79 28 21 82 66 108 1 14 152 108 1 12 99 91 62 60 58 58 75 84 130 102 1 10 100 109 Flood 157 

33 88 472 364 813 673 767 878 981 557 713 578 429 269 378 213 259 262 367 317 261 168 249 198 217 249 315 Flood 310 

44 41 65 41 113 82 127 124 159 1 82 1 86 243 318 1 149 1388 1204 796 547 549 871 1 089 899 592 1220 1006 1045 1264 Flood 1498 

2603 2437 1741 1821 1916 2137 2285 3510 3060 2805 3283 3862 3874 4030 3559 3841 5017 4741 4980 4833 4724 4379 3754 3041 2380 3106 3025 Flood 1496 

382 315 386 488 391 339 390 389 396 292 389 420 533 519 356 246 260 498 217 362 326 300 334 306 188 170 172 Flood 215 

Domestic Arts & Meat� 764 842 735 1049 1 153 1 123 1077 1860 1064 870 857 981 779 718 785 821 727 826 583 736 671 710 723 589 448 502 501 Flood 527 

Sunflowers & Snacks 

Needlework 

Flowers 

Fine Arts 

Photography 

Number of FFA 

Number of 4-H 

School Entries 

Writing Entries 

Dairy Bake-off 

Crisco Contest 

Special Food Shows 

12  5 12  7 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

855 839 865 706 1039 1 139 851 917 928 833 689 714 584 679 

312 263 564 493 490 449 476 471 637 523 542 736 436 396 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

679 613 605 603 493 579 589 

537 543 548 607 406 907 948 

0 0 0 

453 451 348 

971 920 920 

0 0 

304 342 

948 1002 

344 335 290 304 416 482 475 514 563 558 548 552 51 1 495 456 555 377 329 348 344 355 371 235 222 269 266 

359 444 492 468 725 611  575 555 517 354 357 322 426 497 472 483 433 365 438 448 533 455 451 506 410 464 

0 Flood 0 

321 Flood 393 

739 Flood 561 

326 Flood 219 

615 Flood 543 

6308 6479 6629 8731 9737 9762 10019 10588 9598 9632 9636 10220 9362 10329 1 1 927 12718 14238 14282 1 5604 15534 17877 20168 21216 21405 1 8271 18960 22228 Flood 26393 

7017 7600 8430 9327 9793 10991 1 1 635 1 0866 1 1382 1 1 896 1 1282 1 1 925 1 1489 1 1099 10863 1 1 135 1 1 604 1 1 575 1 1 909 1 2704 12475 1 1783 1 1021 10669 10374 10295 10039 Flood 9409 

1365 1648 1745 2021 2566 2586 2979 2948 3129 3337 2285 2753 2779 3350 3535 3553 3805 4191 4671 4249 4061 4159 3542 3175 3573 3474 3477 Flood 2555 

1 132 1 125 1200 750 780 700 566 475 490 440 451 293 427 365 255 270 400 304 430 350 150 150 100 452 100 125 140 Flood 316 

104 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Flood 0 

32 0 20 27 1 6  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Flood 0 

20 0 50 56 1 6  16  1 1  12  17  45 44 33 85 23 27 19  32 1 5  19  6 75 46 Flood fil_ 
23,388 24,248 25,402 28,536 31 ,744 32,941 34,035 36,041 35,201 34,246 33,443 35,409 33,898 35,568 36,851 38,196 40,805 40,967 42,639 44,124 46,098 46,893 45,588 44,976 40,310 41,762 44,797 Flood 45,863 
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Asphalt Request 
After the flood of 2011, the Fairgrounds asphalt 

was left in desperate need of renewal. 
A request for $ 2,881,500 for an asphalt overlayis the 

number one request for capital improvement. 
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Near First Aid Station and Kids '  Area 
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I North Side of State Fair Center 
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I East End of Machinery Row Area 
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South of Barns 
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I North End of the Grandstand Area 
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I South End of the Grandstand Area 
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South East of State Fair Center 
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Gravel Request 
Gravel lots = 1,822,500 sq ft. 

Add gravel to these lots = $618,soo.oo 
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FAI R AN N UAL STAT E M E N T  
201 2 

OPENI NG CASH 

RECEIPTS 

STORAGE 
GRO U NDS, BU I LD I NG, EQ RENTAL 
NODAK 

INDOOR 
OUTDOOR 
INDEPENDENT 
CARNIVAL 
GRANDSTAND 
OUTSI D E  GATES 
CAMP I NG 
ENTRIES & STALL FEES 
SPONSORSHI PS 
M I SCELLANEOUS 
BEER GARDENS 
STATE APPROP (PREMI UMS & BOND) 
I NTEREST ON INVESTM ENTS 
WARD COUNTY MILL LEVY 
TOTAL FAI R  REVENU E 

REVENU E PLUS OPENI NG CASH 
TOTAL FAI R  EXPENSE 
BALANCE SEPTEMBER 30, 201 2  

BANK O F  NORTH DAKOTA FLOOD LOAN 

END I NG BALANCE 

201 2 

$1 ,898 ,61 4.38 

$ 1 06,807.50 

$938,731 .60 

$27,457.30 

$ 1 51  J 1 78.63 

$241 ,274.37 

$ 1 72,556.30 

$297,836.68 

$2,375,027.30 

$ 1 ,200,028.20 

$ 1 66,297.00 

$33 , 1 94.00 

$355,502.79 

$1 6 ,008. 1 1  

$660 , 1 85.28 

$470,000.00 

$3,469.60 

$378,02 1 .89 

$7,593,576.55 

$9,492 , 1 90.93 

($5,622 ,863.54) 

$3,869,327.39 

($964,829.92) 

$2,904,497.47 

201 1 

$3, 1 83,092.38 

$52 ,51 2.50 

$703,097.33 

$ 1 5,806.06 

$0.00 

($425.00) 

($225.00) 

$644.00 

($34,950.73) 

$2, 1 53.00 

$650.00 

$0.00 

$1 95,047.21  

$8,902.21  

$0.00 

$ 1 7 ,370. 1 8  

$8,438.37 

$370,424.35 

$ 1 ,339,444.48 



I 
I FAIR ANNUAL STATEM ENT 

20 1 2  

I 201 2 201 1 

EXP E N S ES 

I 
SALARIES & WAGES $1 ,206,431 .39 $1 ,041 ,81 6.08 

BOARD MEET INGS/TRAVEL $52, 1 0 1 .26 $31 ,423.59 

STAFF TRAVEL/TRAI N ING $28,336.60 $22 , 1 66 . 1 1  

I UTIL IT IES $393,550.85 $269,268.06 

TELEPHONE $1 9,579.99 $ 1 2 ,226.08 

RENT OF EQUIPMENT $9,1 73.79 $4,573.20 

I POSTAGE & FREIGHT $6,269.47 $1 1 ,954.85 

REPAI R EQU I PMENT $7,875.48 $1 0,876.43 

BUILD INGS & GROUNDS MAINTENANCE $1 30,990.69 $ 169 , 1 45. 1 4  

I P ROFESSIONAL FEES $32 1 ,61 6.61 $64,21 9.33 

I NSURANCE, DUES, MEMBERSHIPS, T & L $64,520.38 $49,684.77 

OFFICE S UPPLIES $8,899.79 $7,566.65 

I ADVERTIS ING $275,354.41 $209,445.40 

P ROMOTIONS $45,432.28 $42,908.21  

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES $1 ,589.39 $2,01 6.54 

I GAS & OIL $42 ,025.85 $34,306.77 

N EW EQUIPMENT $29,444.1 8 $63,401 .95 

CAPITAL I MPROVEMENTS $251 ,807.83 $280,4 78.70 

I BOND PAYMENTS $209, 1 53.31 $208,885.89 

GRANDSTAND $1 ,932, 1 35'.37 $8,340. 1 6  

OTHER ENTERTAI NMENT $1 26,842 . 1 5 $6,937.61 

I CONCESSIONAIRES $3,542.50 $1 , 1 41 .00 

4-H $99,042.46 $ 1 0,942.58 

FFA $1 36,728. 1 7  $9,782.88 

I BEEF $27, 1 78.77 $5,557.86 

DAIRY $1 6,732.98 $1 ,353.22 

HORSES $68,61 5.39 $1 5,792.83 

I SHEEP & WOOL $1 7,542.62 $1 ,471 .77 

SWI N E  $ 1 6,469.94 $1 ,276.47 

GOATS/LLAMAS $6,380.98 $369.41 

I RABB ITS $8,074.49 $1 ,31 4.40 

POULTRY $3,776 . 1 7 $426.69 

ARTS & CRAFTS $2,372.67 $543.61 

I DOMEST IC ARTS $1 4,31 5.49 $2,1 55.66 

EDUCATION $7,01 4.69 $3,580.24 

I 
PHOTOGRAPHY $2,455.79 $605.62 

W RITING $971 .32 $1 83.68 

AG PRODUCTS $1 , 1 50.08 $579.58 

I 
GATES $27,367.96 $14 ,548.46 
TOTAL FAIR  EXPENSES $5,622,863.54 $2,623,267.48 

I 
I 



I 
I Fair  Ann ua l  Statement 

I Exp lanat ion of Expenses 

I PROFESSIONALS N EW EQUIPMENT 

Armored Car $1 ,336.46 Bobcat $1 ,600.00 

I Attorney Fees $5,442.42 Deadwood Boxes $1 27.92 
Audit $9,600.00 Garbage Cans $945.00 
FEMA Audit $3,000.00 GS Plaque-Jerry Iverson $620.00 

I Computer Back-up $1 ,338.61 GrandstandTie-Off Harness $500.00 
Bond Fee $2,500.00 Pins-Hog/Sheep Panels $1 64.44 
Carnival Hookups $350.00 Radio $3,336.00 

I Carnival I nspector $5,580.40 Security Camera $7,870.38 
Chair Setup for Hostfest $625.00 Table Covers $1 ,391 .44 
Classified Ads $236.96 Ticketing System $7,375.49 

I Cleaning-Fair $47,850.00 Tires/Castors $4,549. 1 1  
C leaning-Hostfest!Rodeo $8,730.00 Tools $964.40 

Cleaning-Food Court $6,800.00 TOTAL $29,444. 1 8  

I Cleaning-Races $1 5 ,1 50.00 

Combination Lock Changes $85.00 
Comm unity Ambulance $625.00 CAPITAL IMPROVEM ENTS 

I Fair Golf Cart Rental $9,000.00 Go-Cart Track $51 0.40 
Fair Paper Picking $5,500.00 Grandstand Concrete $25,523.54 
Fair Porta Pot Rental $1 0,475.00 Grandstand Construction ($1 ,579.00) 

I Fair Garbage $41 ,900.00 Grandstand Lights $5,835 . 14  
Fair Vet Services $3,095.00 GS Snow Retention System $63,028.46 

I 
Fire Alarm/Monitoring $3, 1 00.21 GS Stage Roof Anchors $4,223.?2 
Health I nspector $1 07.00 Industrial Lot Lights $36,680.07 
Help Wanted Ads $7,024.35 Industrial Lot Recycled Asphalt $80,200.00 
Mosquito Control $3,050.00 Theater Overhead Door $7,085.50 

I Overflow Parking  Attendants $1 ,250.00 State Fair Center HVAC Unit $1 8,000.00 
Photos $29.95 Sprinkler System $1 2 ,300.00 

I 
Publicity $1 ,200.00 TOTAL $251 , 807.83 

Security $1 21 ,265.25 

Shuttle Service $4,000.00 GRANDSTAN D 

I 
Street Sweeper $1 ,370.00 Catering $ 1 4 ,241 . 1 5  

TOTAL $32 1 ,61 6.61 Entertainers $1 ,709,1 45.38 
Equ ipment $3,523.59 

I Parade $2,000.00 
Payrol l  $71 ,625.89 

UTILITIES Printing $2,744.28 

I Electricity $269,772.54 Professionals $26,483.90 
Garbage Haul ing $61 ,873.33 Rain I nsurance $43,000.00 
Natural gas $41 , 1 73.08 Sound $52,575.00 

I Sewer & Water $20,731 .90 Suppl ies $6,796 . 1 8  
TOTAL $393 ,550.85 TOTAL $ 1 ,932 , 1 35.37 

I 



I 
I 
I INSU RANCE, DUES, T & L P ROMOTIONS 

Dues & Membersh ips $3,991 .00 Ag Awards $237.69 
I nsurance $49,675.37 Ag Experience $1 ,257.98 

I Flood I nsurance $1 1 ,052 .00 Annual Meeting $755.00 
Tax & License $2.00 Annual Report $91 2.36 
TOTAL $64,720.37 Award Pins $ 1 86.88 

I Bus Services $1 1 ,200.00 
Christmas Party & Cards $2 ,660.37 

CONCESSIONAIRES Clippings $1 , 1 85.80 

I Picnics $3,542.50 Co-op Day $349.05 
TOTAL $3,542.50 Convention Auctions $91 .51 

DMX $486. 1 2  

I Family Day $300.00 
ENTERTAI N MENT STAGES Fi lm Processing $39.08 
3 on 3 $1 31 .04 Flowers $279.95 

I Amateur Talent $ 1 ,449.00 Media-Accommodations $4, 1 1 4.95 
Arm Wrestl ing $698.39 Merchandise $52.74 
Cake/Cupcake Decorating $1 23.34 Motor Magic ($61 0 .03) 

I Clowns $3,039.00 NDSF Rodeo Queen $1 ,078.95 
Color The Fair $88.71 Photo I D'S $75.00 

I 
Crop Plot $657.79 Photographers $1 ,267.00 
Dakota Talent $2,264.33 Plaques $ 1 98.00 
Diaper Derby/Toddler Trot $31 8 .93 Pride Day $300.00 
Fireworks $5,000.00 Printing $2 , 1 35.26 

I Flickertai l  Gardens $ 1 2 ,678.25 Reader Board/Sign $200.00 
Freddie Fl ickertai l  $850.00 Refreshments/Committees $990.03 

I 
Horse Pul l  $3,72 1 . 1 0  Shirts $299.50 
Hot Dog Eating Contest $422.00 Signs $5,674.30 
Kids Clubhouse $2,083.32 Special Campaigns $968.09 

I 
Pedal Pu l l  $620.57 Special Display $697.70 
Pony Pul l  $2,265. 1 1  Special Friends $1 ,234.57 
Redneck Relay $70.86 Sponsor Support $6,634.43 

I 
Run the Route $1 47.68 Video $1 80.00 

Senior Festival ($1 ,474.06) TOTAL $45,432.28 

Showdeo $821 .05 

I Stage 1 -Swampmaster All igator $1 4,01 5.50 GATES 

Stage 2-Juke Box Junkie $1 0,81 8.23 Supplies $535.82 
Stage 3-Welde Bear Show $ 1 6 , 1 00 .00 Payrol l  $25,092.22 

I Stage 4-Racing Pigs $2,91 7 . 1 7 Pros $ 1 62.00 
Stage 5-Petting Zoo $ 1 0 , 1 60.00 Refunds $1 ,325.00 
Stage 6-Fu r  Traders $ 1 8 ,000.00 Printing $252.92 

I Stage ?-Sports Extreme $1 1 ,599.90 TOTAL $27,367.96 

Strol l ing $7,254.94 

TOTAL $1 26,842. 1 5  BOND PAYOFF $428,842.29 

I 
I 



t 
I D E PARTM ENT EXP E NS ES 

I 
4- H HORSE 

I Premiums $68,658.52 Premiums $1 3 ,848.40 

Hay & S tra w $ 1 , 1 70.00 Dues & M emberships $400.00 

Judges $5,475.50 Hay & Straw $4,666.47 

I Supplies $343.85 Judges $6,483.41 

Payroll $1 3,624.00 Suppli es $39.59 

Picnics $1 ,91 1 .75 Payroll $1 5 ,947. 1 6  

I Pri n ting $3,470.44 Printing $3, 1 32.42 

Professiona ls $4,388.40 Professiona ls $23,522.94 

I 
TOTAL $99,042.46 Trophies $575.00 

TOTAL $54,766.99 

I FFA BEEF 
Premiums $1 28,962.03 Premiums $1 0 ,339.50 

Hay & S traw $1 , 1 70.00 Hay & S traw $4,053.57 

I Judges $1 ,532.50 Judges $3,224.96 

Suppli es $1 85.46 Supplies $81 .52 

Picnics $487.50 Payroll $2,765.00 

I Pri n ting $2,259.90 Printing $287.98 

Professiona ls $2, 1 30.78 Professiona ls $6 ,426. 24 

I 
TOTAL $7,766.14 TOTAL $16,839.27 

SWI N E  SHEEP 

I Premiu ms $7,231 .25 Premiums $8,51 3 .75 

Hay & S traw $760.45 Hay & Straw $867.54 

Judges $2,925.60 Judges $2,496 .31  

I Suppli es $43.06 Suppli es $47.83 

Payroll $1 ,91 9 .50 Payroll $ 1 ,91 9.50 

Pri n ting $354.30 Printing $501 . 1 3  

I Professiona ls $3,235.78 Professiona ls $3, 1 96.56 

TOTAL $9,238.69 TOTAL $9,028.87 

I DAI RY POULTRY 
Premiums $1 2,866.67 Premiums $876 .50 

I Hay & Straw $224.38 Hay & S traw $283.29 

Judges $798. 00 Judges $358.00 

Suppli es $244.24 Suppli es $ 1 05. 1 7  

I Payroll $683.00 Payroll $ 1 ,671 .75 

Pri n ting $72.00 Printing $1 98.96 

Professiona ls $1 ,844.69 Professiona ls $282.50 

I TOTAL $3,866.31 TOTAL $2,899.67 

I 



I 
I RABBITS GOATS 

Premiums $578.75 Premiums $ 1 ,689.00 

Dues $25.00 Hay & Straw $ 1 67.09 

I Hay & Straw $1 27. 1 1 J udges $3,03 1 .65 

Judges $4,860.00 Supplies $50.98 

I 
Supplies $357. 1 0  Payroll $484.67 

Payroll $ 1 ,277.00 Printing $74.80 

Printing $729.53 Professionals $862.79 

I Professionals $ 1 20.00 Ribbons $20.00 

TOTAL $7,495.74 TOTAL $4,691 .98 

I PHOTOGRAPHY DOMESTIC ARTS 
Premiums $ 1 ,232.00 Premiums $6,270.00 

I Judges $300.00 J udges $ 1 ,885.00 

Suppl ies $42 . 1 9  Supplies $ 1 43.38 

Payroll $550.00 Payroll $4,690.69 

I Printing $331 .60 Printing $ 1 , 326.42 

TOTAL $1,223.79 TOTAL $8,045.49 

I 
EDUCATION ARTS & CRAFTS 

I Premiums $ 1 ,7 1 6.25 Premiums $ 1 , 1 89 .00 

Supplies $27.37 J udges $285.00 

Payroll $2,41 3.85 Supplies $ 1 49.71  

I Printing $2,857.22 Payroll $550 .00 

TOTAL $5,298.44 Printing $ 1 98.96 

TOTAL $1 ,1 83.67 

I AG PRODUCTS 

I 
Premiums $394.50 

Supplies $ 1 7 .94 WRITING 
Payrol l  $605.00 Premiums $905.00 

I Printing $ 1 32.64 Printing $66.32 

TOTAL $755.58 TOTAL $97 1 .32 

I 
I 
I 
I 



- - - - - - - - - - -

STATE FAIR GROWTH 

Year 

1 977 

1 978 

1 979 

1 980 

1 981 

1982 

1 983 

1984 

1 985 

1986 

1987 

1988 

1989 

1990 

1991 

1 992 

1993 

1994 

1 995 

1 996 

1997 

1998 

1 999 

2000 

2001 

2002 

2003 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

201 1 *** 

2012 

Attendance 

249,536 

258,674 

254,864 

251 ,345 

261,376 

285,067 

300,790 

296,597 

279,782 

237,314 

247,569 

248,267 

230,566 

226,949 

240,291 

244,236 

244,248 

250,150 

260,041 

248,154 

233,004 

236,140 

210,840 

206,584 

208,601 

211 ,126 

217,587 

243,024 

244,874 

247,970 

248,501 

239,449 

296,919 

308,641 

0 

310,839 

**Livestock 
Entries 

(Open Class Only) 

2,862 

2,703 

2,977 

2,772 

3,342 

3,746 

4,446 

4,258 

4,146 

4,022 

4, 1 94 

4,622 

4,705 

4,972 

6,408 

6,441 

5,497 

6,391 

6,482 

6,558 

7,104 

6,941 

7,21 5 

8,371 

7,302 

7,517 

7,251 

8,094 

7,341 

6,580 

6,365 

5,476 

6,087 

6,193 

0 

4,675 

All 
FFA 

Entries 

1 ,210 

1 ,728 

1 ,846 

5,253 

7,171 

6,529 

6,308 

6,479 

6,352 

6,629 

8,731 

9,737 

9,762 

10,019 

10,588 

9,598 

9,632 

9,636 

1 0,220 

9,382 

1 0,329 

1 1 ,927 

12,718 

1 4,238 

1 4,282 

1 5,604 

1 5,534 

1 7,877 

20,168 

2 1 ,216 

21 ,405 

1 8,271 

18,961 

22,228 

0 

26,393 

All 
4-H 

Entries 

5,354 

5,492 

5,999 

6,310 

6,434 

6,257 

7,01 7 

7,600 

7,352 

8,430 

9,327 

9,793 

10,991 

1 1 ,635 

1 0,866 

1 1 ,382 

1 1 ,896 

1 1 ,282 

1 1 ,925 

1 1 ,489 

1 1 ,099 

1 0,863 

1 1 ,135 

1 1 ,604 

1 1 ,575 

1 1 ,909 

12,704 

12,475 

1 1 ,783 

1 1 ,021 

1 0,669 

10,374 

10,295 

1 0,039 

0 

9,409 

Income and ExpenMs Include State Premium Appropriations and Bonding Assistance, but no State funded Capital Improvements. 
•Other Diyisions Include Ag Products, Domestic Arta, Needlework. Flowers, Arts & Crafts, Photography, Writing & Education. 
-Livestock Entries Include Horse, Beef, Goats, Sheep, Swine, Rabbits, Dairy & Poultry. 

-2011 Fair cancelled due to flooding 

*Other 
Divisions 

3,768 

4,449 

5,000 

5,314 

5,143 

5,493 

5,617 

5,911 

5,872 

6,321 

6,284 

7,592 

7,483 

7,409 

8,179 

7,780 

7,221 

6,134 

6,782 

6,467 

7,036 

7,120 

7,128 

6,592 

7,808 

7,609 

8,002 

7,652 

7,601 

6,771 

6,537 

6,140 

6,420 

6,337 

0 

4,911 

-

Total 
Entries 

1 3, 1 94 

14,372 

1 5,822 

1 9,649 

22,090 

22,025 

23,388 

24,248 

23,722 

25,402 

28,536 

31,744 

32,941 

34,035 

36,041 

35,201 

34,246 

33,443 

35,409 

33,896 

35,568 

36,851 

38,196 

40,805 

40,967 

42,639 

43,491 

46,098 

46,893 

45,588 

44,976 

40,261 

41,763 

44,797 

0 

45,388 

-

Premiums 
Paid 

$66,066 

$67,242 

$85,607 

$97,564 

$ 1 1 2,351 

$1 09,257 

$ 1 1 7,254 

$1 20,083 

$140,517 

$1 27,751 

$151,215 

$1 60,336 

$164,176 

$167,170 

$169,217 

$179,218 

$147,497 

$ 1 47,381 

$1 46,288 

$1 43,837 

$1 65,747 

$1 73,327 

$1 80,425 

$1 89,324 

$196,170 

$1 86,876 

$ 1 94,252 

$206,049 

$213,514 

$210,690 

$21 7,347 

$226,636 

$230,125 

$272,865 

$1 7,370 

$265,866 

- -

Income 

$524,726 

$644,577 

$748,616 

$893,292 

$1 ,045,066 

$1 ,387,058 

$1 ,560,999 

$2,140,921 

$2,1 79,456 

$1 ,664,021 

$1 ,803,674 

$1 ,936, 1 1 9  

$1 ,951,023 

$1 ,944,498 

$2,039,732 

$2,071,577 

$2,585,799 

$2,565,972 

$3,070,535 

$2,678,819 

$2,61 1 , 1 51 

$2,900,51 6 

$3,1 28,884 

$3,000,633 

$3,269,316 

$3,307,393 

$3:625,568 

$3,554,346 

$4,459,492 

$3,964,308 

$4,455,104 

$4,61 3,393 

$5,448,090 

$6,539,982 

$1,339,444 

$7,593,577 

- -

Expenses 

$430,083 

$400,496 

$735,661 

$863,121 

$960,886 

$1 ,448,009 

$1 ,426,699 

$2,1 23,436 

$2,1 55,629 

$1 ,814,850 

$1 ,747,844 

$1 ,957,875 

$1 ,896,224 

$2,074,316 

$1 ,697,486 

$2,333,71 3  

$2,357,436 

$2,497,946 

$2,794,103 

$2,999,225 

$2,673,766 

$2,71 4,889 

$3,098,148 

$3,047,789 

$3,190,199 

$2,982,581 

$3,694,827 

$3,576,068 

$3,951,718 

$4,205,077 

$4, 1 1 9,248 

$4,331,299 

$5,01 6,629 

$6,013,375 

$2,623,267 

$5,622,864 

- -



I 
MAJOR CAPITAL IMPROVE M E NTS 

Source of Reve nue 

I 
(also i n c l udes State and Local support of faci l ities) 

The NO State Fair was authorized by the 1 965 State Legislature 
with the 1 st Fair held J uly 1 7-23 of 1 966. 

I YEAR PROJ ECT STATE F U N D S  LOCAL F U N D S FAI R  F U N D S  

1 969 4-H & FFA BARN $25 ,000 

I 1 /4 Mile Race Track $20 ,000 

1 971  Horse Barn $ 1 6 ,000 $39,000 

I 1 975 Caretakers House $27,000 

I 
All Seasons Arena $500,000 $1 ,700,000 

1 976 FFA Building $250,000 

I Horse Barn & Stal ls $200 ,000 
Paving & Lighting $94,000 $200,000 
I nterest $28,7 1 3 

I 1 977 New S hop $1 1 ,000 
Kiddies Barn $8 ,000 

I I nterest $29 ,423 

1 978 Warehouse $1 ,700 $3,000 

I Expo Barn & Stal ls & Wash $500,000 
Trailer Park $40 ,000 
Sewer/Water/Electric System $60,000 

I 3/8 Mi le Race Track $30,000 $25,000 
Security Fencing $75 ,000 

I 
Toilets $27,000 
I nterest $23,779 

I 1 979 Grandstand Seats $35 ,000 
Jaycees Bu i lding $60 ,000 
New S idewalks $8 ,000 

I I nterest $ 1 6,658 

1 980 Avenue of Flags $2, 500 $2,500 

I Crops & Gardens Bldg $70,000 
Parking Lot - Land $95,000 
I nterest $ 1 3,976 

I 1 98 1  Fencing $5,9 1 3 
Paving Around Barns $60 , 1 70 

I Front Sign $5 ,980 
Sewer & Water Drains on I nd .  Midway $4, 1 25 

I 
Parking Barriers & Signs $3, 1 60 
Expanding Outdoor Horse Arena $1 ,000 
Interest $ 1 2 , 524 

I 



I CONTIN UED MAJOR CAPITAL IM PROVEMENTS 

YEAR P ROJ ECT STATE F U N D S  LOCAL F U N D S  FAI R F U N DS 

I 1 982 Expand ing Outdoor Horse Arena $ 1 ,000 
Landscape Machinery Area South of Com. Bldg .  $3 ,000 

I New Aluminum Seats for Grandstand Bleachers $40 ,000 
New Stal ls for Goats & Sheep $7, 500 
New Parking Lot Sign $6,250 

I Fencing East Lot $4,000 
New Stage $49,000 
1 st Phase of E lectrical $6 ,440 

I Renovation $ 1 1 0,600 
Steel Post & Chain Fences Around Grounds $ 1 0 ,038 
Concrete Benches $650 

I Beer Garden Add ition $6, 500 $8 ,868 
Electrical Service for Oil Show $ 1 ,400 

I Construction Parking Lot N of Grounds $7,300 
Stage $48,658 
Pave Shuttle B us Route $2,004 

I I nterest $ 1 1 ,847 

1 983 Stage Cover $7,800 $ 1 5,800 

I Electrical $39 ,400 $38 ,61 4 
Comfort Station $73 ,022 
Signage $5,652 

I Sheriffs Office $ 1 ,029 • 
Landscaping $ 1 ,094 
Livestock Pens $3,8 1 5 

I I nterest $ 1 0,007 

1 984 Parking Lot Landscaping $23,852 

I Trees & Shrubs $ 1 ,999 
Signage $6,565 
Grandstand Gates & Entries $2,71 0 

I Ticket Office Add ition $4, 1 94 
Pave Front of Grandstand $8,800 

I 
Curbs $2,970 
In-field Transformer $2 ,700 
Spotlight Stand $750 

I Commercia l  Bui ld ing I I · $473,324 
Comfort Station Architect $960 
Landscaping at Stage I I ,  Remove Road $6,877 

I I nterest $ 1 8,60 1 

1 985 Al l  Seasons Arena Companion Structure 

I & Office under contract with interest 
payments pledged as of 1 /8/85 $1 ,486 ,41 8 $433,658 

Landscape around Pond $590 

I 
Paving Front Grandstand $5,325 
Remodel Picnic Area $4,459 

I 



I CONTIN UED MAJOR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

YEAR PROJECT STATE F U N DS LOCAL F U N D S  FAI R F U N D S  

I 1 986 Signage $764 
Trees $1 , 080 
Waterl ine $8,678 

I Beer Gardens $263,633 
Interest $25,950 $44,338 

I Paving West Arena $45 ,000 $22,96 1  
Sewer Improvement $1 66, 1 8 1 $ 1  ,908 
Paving $ 1 3 ,775 

I Beer Gardens Heating $24,61 1 
Beer Gardens Fencing $1 ' 1 42 
Concessions Area Arena I I  $21 ,21 0 

I Land $70,000 
Arches $6,733 
East Parking Lot Paving $420 

I Trees $320 
Interest $88,234 $70,423 

I 1 987 Arches $35,000 $23,673 
Paving by Arch $9,845 $8,600 
Dairy Barn Lighting $ 1 ,041 

I 
Morton Shop $9,357 
Stage I l l  $4,800 
I nterest $78 , 1 52 $ 1 20,339 

I 1 988 Cu ltura l  Concessions Area $8,057 
Cu ltural Bui ld ing 

I 
Theater/Conference Room/ 
Kitchen/EquipmenURestrooms $1 , 594,660 $1 ,377,706 

Parking Lot 

I Gym Dandy's Center $70,000 $330,000 
Dressing Room $7,920 

I 
Backstage Bathroom $1 ,884 
Free Stage $1 ,000 
Defau lted Pledges ($357,000) $357,000 

I Pedestrian Control $3,937 
Restaurant I $60 , 1 1 9  
Honeywel l  Air Cleaners $ 1 ,825 

I I nterest $65, 595 $86,831 

1 989 Carniva l  Bathroom $1 4,605 

I Commercial I l l /S idewalk $8,424 
Gate Change/Shuttle Route $1 0 ,055 
Dressing Rooms $2,701 

I Pepsi Gate $ 1 5 ,000 $1 , 569 
Restaurant I I  $ 1 06 ,045 
Visib i l ity Barrier Fence $3, 1 35 

I State Appropriation $201 ,027 ($201 ,027) 
Interest $73,975 $71 ,547 

I 



I 
CONTIN U ED MAJOR CAPITAL IM PROVEM ENTS 

YEAR PROJ E CT STATE FU N DS LOCAL F U N D S  FAI R F U N DS 

I 1 990 Camping $5 , 1 76 
Comm 1 1/Heating & Air $ 1 39, 559 

I 
Comm I I  Restaurant $86,706 
Horse Barn $3,000 
Beer Gardens/Concrete $443 

I Shuttle Route $ 1 ,849 
Coffee Room $495 
State Appropriation $21 0 ,000 ($2 1 0 ,000) 

I I nterest $72,82 1 $247,093 

I 
1 99 1  Camping/Eiec/Sewer $7,200 $1 0 ,000 

Comm 1 1/Heat, Air ,  L ights $5 ,727 
Horse Barn 1 1/Liner $ 1 , 3 1 2  

I 
Cultura l  B ldg/Arbitration $ 1 3 ,834 
Ticket Booths $3, 1 79 
Ticket Office/Electric $545 

I Hand icap Access/Grandstand $3 ,597 
Land $5 ,000 
Surface Drainage/Cu lverts $ 1 ,400 

I Arena I Retrofit $370,000 
I nterest $329,883 

I 1 992 Expo Barn Concrete $27,339 
Fence $6 ,293 
Ticket Booths $3,8 1 0  

I State Appropriations $2 1 0 ,000 ($21 0 ,000) 
Interest $261 ,620 

I 1 993 Horse Barn Concrete $74, 1 1 6  
City/Arena Maintenance Repai rs $30,000 
State Appropriations $21 0 ,000 ($2 1 0 ,000) 

I 
I nterest $239 ,41 4 

1 994 West Lot $225 ,645 $27 ,626 

I Barn Moving $1 1 9 ,350 
Grandstand Restrooms $40,407 
County/Bui ld ing & Grounds Repair $57,524 

I City/Arena Maintenance Repa i rs $80,000 
Interest $303,850 

I 
1 995 West Lot $ 1 9 , 550 

Moving Reader Board Sign $7 ,350 
East Lot $30,000 $20,000 $91 ,261  

I 
City/Arena Maintenance Repairs $80,000 
County/Bu i ld ing & Grounds Repair $67,81 8  
State Appropriations $2 1 0 ,000 ($2 1 0 ,000) 

I I nterest/Debt Service $1 86,333 

I 



I CONTINUED MAJOR CAPITAL I M PROVEMENTS 

YEAR P ROJ ECT STATE F U N DS LOCAL F U N DS FAI R F U N DS 

I 1 996 M idway Transformer $ 1 ,000 
Midway Parking $24 ,709 
Stage Roof $1 1 9 ,233 

I Street Lights $5 , 500 
City/Arena Maintenance Repairs $80 ,000 
County/Bui ld ing & Grounds Repai r  $69,849 

I Interest $1 79,31 9 
F l ickertai l  Concrete $4,358 

I 
Game and Fish $ 1 03,000 
Pond Fountain $2 ,324 
Sprinkler System $3,828 

I 
City/Arena Maintenance Repairs $80,000 
County/Bui ld ing & Grounds Repair $68,870 
State Appropriations $21 0 ,000 ($2 1 0 ,000) 

I Interest $ 1 71 ,886 

1 998 F lat Track - Drag Strip $290,344 
County/Bui ld ing & Grounds Repair $85,678 

I City/Arena Maintenance Repair $80,000 
Arena I Restrooms $70,000 
Pond Fountain $674 

I Grounds Keeper's Garage $ 1 1 ,008 
Grounds Keeper's House $5 ,230 

I Interest $ 1 65 ,602 
Expansion $241 ,881 $4,664 

1 999 New Asphalt $ 1 1 2 ,049 

I Fence Relocation North of Fair $7,782 
North Road Relocation $50,000 $1 2 ,500 

I 
Pavi l ion Project $829 
Electrical for Machinery Row $1 5 ,487 
West Lot Camping Improvements $ 1 1 ,781 

I East Lot Fence Remove/Replace $41 0 
Industria l  Lot Gravel $51 ,000 
Gate Repai r/Insta l l  Barrier $835 

I City/Arena Maintenance $80,000 
County $91 ,605 
City/Magic Place $6,91 6 ,560 

I State Appropriations $21 0 ,000 ($21 0 ,000) 
Interest $1 56 , 1 84 

I 2000 City/Magic Place/Renovation $1 ,445 ,51 9 
City $57,566 
Kiddie barn relocation/parking $1 6 ,683 

I Porter land $6 ,000 
Porter land fencing $2 ,324 
State Fair Park $33,090 

I West lot camping $9 , 1 1 9  
County $95 ,328 

I I nterest $1 48 , 1 37 



I CONTINUED MAJOR CAPITAL IM PROVEM ENTS 

YEAR PROJ ECT ' STATE FUNDS LOCAL FUNDS FAI R F U N DS 

I 200 1 Carnival lot relocation $93 ,892 
Super Cross Track $30 ,000 

I Super Cross Fence $1 5 ,000 
Super Cross Water Point $6,000 
State Appropriations $2 1 0 ,000 ($2 1 0 ,000) 

I City $95,320 
County $ 1 80 , 1 40 
Interest $ 1 38,066 

I 
2002 Asphalt $32 ,2 1 0 

I 
Camping E lectrical East Lot $ 1 5 ,030 
Camping E lectrical West Lot $ 1 0 , 1 04 
Office Cupboards  $ 1 ,942 

I City $99,681 
County $ 1 90,367 
I nterest $ 1 35 ,639 

I 2003 Air Cond itioned Jaycees . $7,322 
Ai r Cond itioned Commercial I $29,268 

I City $ 1 00,965 
County $ 1 95 ,61 5 

I 
East Lot Electrical Upgrade $9,271 
Gate Arches $32 ,498 
Midway Restrooms $1 54,621 

I Office Cupboards  and Desks $3,5 1 9 ' 

State Approriations $21 0 ,000 ($2 1 0 ,000) 
Street Light (sand box) $ 1 ,284 

I Interest $83,597 

2004 Arena Hal lway Flooring $59,249 

I City $ 1 1 6 ,240 
County $203,393 
Independent M idway Renovation $31 ,41 2 

I Interest 
Office Cupboards  and Desks $2 , 1 76 

I 
Street Light $2 ,408 . 
West Lot Electrical Upgrade $6 ,200 
Interest $79 , 541 

I 2005 Electrical U pgrades $1 1 , 538 
City $ 1 33,300 

I County $21 2 ,371 
Gate Arches Lighting $ 1 ,9 1 7 
Office Cupboards $ 1 ,230 

I State Appropriations $21 0 ,000 ($21 0 ,000) 
West Lot Electrical Upgrade $50,31 1 $23,852 
I nterest 

I 
$73,073 



I CONTINUED MAJOR CAPITAL IM PROVEM ENTS 

YEAR PROJ ECT STATE FUNDS LOCAL F U N D S  FAI R F U N DS 

I 2006 All Seasons Arena Seating Upgrade $500,395 $200,000 
City $ 1 1 5 ,000 
County $220,000 

I East Lot RV $1 1 3,261 
West Lot Electrical & Grass Lots $2, 500 
I nterest $65,41 0 

I 2007 All Seasons Arena Seating Upgrade $7 ,51 1 $26,940 
Asphalt $28 ,488 

I City $ 1 69 ,495 
County $236,789 

I Expo Barn Fan $1 4,258 
East Lot RV $4,3 1 2  
Interest $52,365 

I State Appropriations $21 0 ,000 ($2 1 0,000) 

2008 Asphalt $2, 1 57 

I City $235,828 
County $28 1 ,032 
Electrical RV U pgrade $ 1 5 ,500 

I Commercial  I l l  Air Cond itioner $36,069 
Grandstand Project $1 20,200 

I 
Interest $43,586 

2009 Arena I Break Room $1 0,385 

I Ashpalt $234,356 
Electrical U pgrade East Lot RV $39,6 1 7  
Electrical U pgrade Carniva l  RV $9,737 

I Electrical U pgrade South HB I I  $1 5 ,000 
FFA Air Cond itioner $ 1 8 ,505 
Grandstand Approp 2007-2009 $1 29,800 $4,046 

I Grandstand Approp 2009-20 1 1  $969,986 
Interest Paid $34,861 
North Road $1 2 ,500 

I Umbrel la's Food Court $1 9 ,351 
City $260,885 

I County $284, 1 98 
State Appropriations $2 1 0 ,000 ($2 1 0 ,000) 

I 201 0 Industria l  Lot Regrade $1 8 ,925 
Umbrel la's Food Court $23 , 1 59 
West Lot Comfort Station $30 ,500 $1 56, 1 53 

I Carpet-Norsk Room & T Js $7,370 
Night Deposit Vau lt $4,769 
East Lot RV Embankment $25,000 

I Electrical U pgrade Carniva l  RV $7,360 
Expo Barn Re-Roof Wings $34,2 1 0  
Food Court Uti l it ies $33,855 

I 



t CONTINUED MAJOR CAPITAL IM PROVEMENTS 

YEAR P ROJECT STATE FUNDS LOCAL F U N DS FAI R F U N D S  

I 201 0 Regrade West Lot $ 1 0 ,066 
(cant) Ticket Booth $7,237 

I 
Asphalt $ 1 02 ,751  
City $297 ,787 
County $335 ,795 

I I nterest $31 ,999 
Grandstand $1 3 ,003,452 $58,0 1 9  

I 201 1 Asphalt $59, 1 57 
Grandstand $1 ,026 , 562 $95,699 

I 
Grounds Keeper House $45 ,355 
Industria l  Lot Power $?4, 1 55 
I nterest $2 1 

'
1 1 1  

I State Fair Center Lobby Piers $ 1 2 ,623 
Ticket Booth $6,679 
Umbrel la's Food Court $ 1 9 ,498 

I West Lot Comfort Station $9 ,987 
West Lot E lectric Upgrade $3,984 
City $408 , 1 88 

I County $370,424 

I 20 1 2  Asphalt $241 ,083 
Grandstand Concrete $25,524 
Grandstand Snow Retention System $63,028 

I 
Gra ndstand Stage Roof Anchors $4,224 
I nd ustrial Lot L ights $36 ,680 

I 
I ndustrial Lot Asphalt $80,200 
I nterest $38 ,409 
Pond Fence $ 1 6 ,230 

I Re-Seed G rass $2 ,600 
Regrade D i rt South of Horse Barn I I  $4,000 
RV Booth $3,961  

I Sprinkler System $1 4,499 
State Fair Center HVAC Unit $ 1 8 ,000 

I Theater Overhead Door $7 ,086 
West Lot G ravel $29 ,666 
City $492 , 775 

I County $378,022 
State Appropriations $2 1 0 ,000 ($2 1 0 ,000) 

I Misc. Items Listed $835,291 

I TOTAL = $20 ,061 ,028 $22 ,953, 772 $9 ,750,982 

I 



I 
I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

1 966 MAJOR I M PROVEMENTS: Non-specified improvements include the purchase of p rops,  
tables, chairs ,  d isplay curta ins ,  stock panels, tractors, vehicles and other equipment. The 

remodel ing of the p lumbing of 3 bathrooms in the Arts & Crafts Bui ld ing ;  the remodel ing of 

the grandstand ticket office ; the add ition of a mens toi let in the Arts & Crafts Bui ld ing ; 
$8 ,000 worth of hand d ryers; new staging; sodding of boulevards;  replanting of grass; 
remodel ing of the beer gardens & 4-H bui ld ing; ticket booths; instal lation of new gates, 
fences & d ividers;  the demolition of two horse barns, the old hog & sheep barn , two race 
barns, an  old log barn , two houses & the old office . The construction of a show mobile 
stage; a new underground d ra inage system ; d redging of the pond ; construction of a 
horse arena;  cattle tie outs; new parking lot roadway & l ights; a luminum benches; more 
portable bleachers ;  a luminum picnic tables; re-roofing of the dairy barn; painting of the 
domestic a rts bui ld ing,  beef barn & dairy barn ;  new soffits on the horse barn; miscel laneous 
fencing ;  remodel ing the pub bar & d iaper stations; painting the g randstand.  Over 
$835,29 1 worth of add itional significant changes & improvements. 

***Major im provements do not i nclude general routine mai ntenance repairs, the purchase of consum able 

s upplies, or replacement of eq uipment. 

Footnote: A small portion of the i nterest credited to the support of Fair fu nding from 1 976-1984 could 

possibly be credited to local funds.  
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The Board of Directors 
North Dakota State Fair Association 
Minot, North Dakota 

CP;\, & lllJSI:-:ESS .-\fWISORS 

Independent Auditor's Report 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the North 
Dakota State Fair Association, enterprise fund of the State ofNorth Dakota, as of and for the years ended 
September 30, 20 12  and 201 1 ,  which comprise the Association's  basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the North Dakota State Fair 
Association's  management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 

issued by the comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

As discussed in Note 1 ,  the financial statements of the North Dakota State Fair Association are intended 
to present the financial position, changes in financial position, and cash flows of the State ofNorth 
Dakota that are attributable to the transactions of the North Dakota State Fair Association. They do not 
purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the State of North Dakota as of September 
30, 20 12  and 201 1 and the changes in financial position and cash flows for the years ended in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, .the 
respective financial position of the North Dakota State Fair Association as of September 30, 2012 and 
20 1 1 ,  and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

w w w .  e i d e b o i  l l y. com 
1 730 Burnt Boot loop, Ste. 1 00 I P.O. Box 1 9 1 4  I Bismarck, ND 58502- 1 9 1 4  I T 701 .255. 1 09

.
1 I F 70 1 .22 4 . 1 582 I EOE 
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In a ccordance with Government A uditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated November 5 ,  
20 1 2 ,  o n  our consideration of  North Dakota State Fair Association's intemal control over financial 

reporting and our tests of i ts compli ance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant 
agreements and other matters . The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit perfonned in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in 
assessing the results of our audit. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 6 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic. financial ftatements, is required by the Governffiental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We hav� applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally acceQted in the United States.of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's  responses to our inquiries, the basic fmancial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Bismarck, North Dakota 
November 5, 2012 

2 
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North Dakota State Fair Association 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
September 30, 20 1 2  

This section of the Association's annual financial report presents our analysis of the financial perfonnance during 
the fiscal year that ended September 30,  20 1 2 .  Please read it in conjunction with the financial statements, which 
follow this section. 

Financial Highlights 

• During fiscal year 2012, the Association had a successful Fair. 
• During fiscal year 201 1 ,  the Association cancelled the Fair due to flooding. 
• During fiscal year 201 2, the Association's  net assets increased by $ 1 , 123 ,046 or 4.36%. 
• During fiscal year 20 1 1 ,  the Association's net assets decreased by $2,0 1 6,943 or -7.3%. 
• During fiscal year 20 10, the Association's  net assets increased by $14,3 1 5, 138 or 106.2%. 
• In 201 2, the Association's operating revenues increased $5,547,354 or 427%, while operating expenses 

increased $3, 192,066 or 84.2%. 
• During fiscal year 20 1 1 ,  the Association's  operating revenues decreased by $4,662,75 1 or -78.2 1%  
• During fiscal year 20 10, the Association's operating revenues increased $762,639 or 14.6%, while 

operating expenses increased $678,340 or 1 1 %. 
• In fiscal year 20 12, fair revenues increased to $6,652,773 or 543% over fiscal year 20 1 1 .  
• Fair revenues in fiscal year 20 1 1 decreased to $ 1 ,034,986 or -82%. 
• Fair revenues in fiscal year 2010  increased to $5,728,8 18  or 17.7% over 2009. 
• During fiscal year 20 12,  the property and equipment additions totaled 1 ,387, 1 9 1 .  
• During fiscal year 201 1 ,  the property and equipment additions totaled $335,448. 
• During fiscal year 20 10, the property and equipment additions totaled $ 15 ,877,444. 
• Depreciation expense for the current fiscal year 20 12  totaled $ 1 ,332,486. 
• Depreciation expense for fiscal year 201 1 totaled $ 1 ,3 17,930. 
• Depreciation expense for fiscal year 20 10 totaled $1 ,035,825. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This annual report consists of three parts: Management's Discussion and Analysis, Financial Statements, and 
Supplementary Information. The Financial Statements also include notes that explain in more detail some of the 
information in the financial statements. 

Required Financial Statements 

The Financial Statements of the Association report information about the Association using accounting methods 
similar to those used by private sector companies. These statements offer short and long-term financial 
information about its activities. The Balance Sheet includes all of the Association's assets and liabilities and 
provides information about the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to 
Association creditors (liabilities). It also provides the basis for computing rate of return, evaluating the capital 
structure of the Association and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the Association. All of the 
current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Net Assets. 
This statement measures the success of the Association's operations over the past year and can be used to 
determine whether the Association has successfully recovered all its costs through its user fees and other charges, 
profitability and credit worthiness. The final required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows. The 
primary purpose of this statement is to provide information about the Association's cash receipts and cash 
payments during the reporting period. The statement reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash 
resulting from operations, investing, and financing activities and provides answers to such questions as where did 
cash come from, what was cash used for, and what was the change in cash balance during the reporting period. 

3 
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Financial  An alysis of the Association 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
September 30, 20 1 2  

One of the most important questions asked about the Association's  finances is "Is the Association as a whole 
better off or worse off as a result of the year's activities?" The Balance Sheet, and the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Assets report information about the Association's activities in a way that will help 
answer this question. These two statements report the net assets of the Association and changes in them. You can 
think of the Association's net assets-the difference between assets and liabilities-as one way to measure financial 
health or financial positlon. Over time, increases or decreases in the Association's net assets are one indicator of 
whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, you will need to consider other non-financial 
factors such as changes in economic conditions, population declines, and competitive forms of entertainment. 

Net Assets 

To begin our analysis, a summary of the Association's Balance Sheets is presented in the following: 

Condensed Balance Sheets 

(In Thousands of Doll
'
ars) 

Total 
Dollar Percent 

2012 201 1  2010  Change Change 

Current and other assets $ 4,637 $ 5 ,734 $ 5 , 157 $ ( 1 ,097) - 1 9. 13% 
Capital assets 23,447 23,405 24,40 1 42 0. 1 8% 

Total assets $ 28,084 $ 29,1 39 $ 29,558 $ ( 1 ,055) -3.62% 

Long-term debt outstanding $ $ 419  $ 595 $ (419) - 100.00% 
Other liabilities 1 , 1 84 2,943 1 ,1 69 ( 1 ,759) -59.77% 

Total liabilities $ 1 , 1 84 $ 3,362 $ 1 ,764 $ (2,1 78) -64.78% 

Invested in capital assets, 
net of related debt $ 23,447 $ 22,987 $ 23,806 $ 460 2.00% 

Restricted 470 472 (470) - 100.00% 
Unrestricted 3,453 2,320 3,5 1 6  1 , 1 33 48.84% 

Total net assets $ 26,900 $ 25,777 $ 27,794 $ 1 , 1 23 4.36% 

As can be seen from the table above, net �ssets increased over $1 million. The increase is due to the Fair resuming 
operations this year after last years' Fair being cancelled due to the flooding of the Fairgrounds. Total liabilities 
decreased $2, 1 78,000 to $1 , 1 84,000 due to the payoff of the bond and payment on all flood contracts that were 
payable at 201 1 year end. · 

Net assets decreased over $2 million in fiscal year 20 1 1  from fiscal year 20 10. The decrease was due to the 
flooding of the ND State Fairgrounds and lost revenue due to the cancellation of the 201 1  ND State Fair. Total 
liabilities increased from $ 1 ,764,000 in 2010  to $3 ,362,000 in 201 1 due to flood contracts payable. 

4 



North Dakota State Fair Association 

I Management's D iscussion and Analysis 

September 30, 20 1 2  

I Condensed Statements  of Reven ues, Expenses and Ch anges in Net Assets 

(In T housands of  Dollars) 

I Total 
Dollar Percent 

20 12 201 1  20 10 Change Change 

I Operating Revenues 
Fair proceeds and other revenue $ 6,653 $ 1 ,035 $ 5,728 $ 5,6 1 8  542.80% 

A rena revenue 1 77 255 2 1 0  (78) -30.59% 

I 
Other revenue 16 9 23 7 77.78% 

6,846 1 ,299 5,961 5,547 427.02% 

Nonoperating Revenues 

I 
Local grants 1 , 1 7 1  779 634 392 50.32% 

Interest and investment income 3 6 8 (3) -50.00% 

(Loss)/Gain on s ale o fflxed assets (1)  (54) (1)  0.00% 

I 1 , 173 785 588 388 49.43% 

Total Revenu e  8,019 2,084 6,549 5,935 284.79% 

I Operating Expenses 
General expenses 3,860 1 , 163 4,076 2,697 23 1 .90% 

Depreciation expense 1 ,332 1 ,318  1 ,036 14 1 .06% 

I Salaries, wages and vacation pay 1 ,524 1 ,310 1 ,291 2 14 16.34% 

Premiums ,  trophies and awards 266 17 273 249 1464.7 1% 

6,982 3,808 6,676 3 , 174 83.35% 

I Non Operating Expenses 
Interest expense 38 21 29 17 80.95% 

Bond iss u ance costs 3 3 (2) -66.67% 

I Amortization 1 9 9 (8) -88.89% 

40 33 41  7 2 1 .2 1 %  

Total Expenses 7,022 3,841 6,7 17 3 , 1 8 1  82.82% 

I Extraordinary Items 
FEMA grants 1 ,424 2,569 ( 1 , 145) 100% 

I Flood expenditures (1 ,768) (2,846) 1 ,078 1 00% 

Trans fers -
State Appropriations 470 17 14,483 453 2664.71% 

I Change in Net Ass ets 1 , 123 (2,017) 14,3 15 3, 140 

Net As sets, Beginning ofYear 25,777 27,794 13,479 (2,017) 

I Net As sets, End of Year $ 26,900 $ 25,777 $ 27,794 $ 1 , 123 4.36% 

While the Balance Sheet shows the change in financial position of net assets, the Statement of Revenues, 

I Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets, provides answers as to the nature and source of these changes. As can be 
seen above, there is an increase in net assets due to revenues from the 20 12  ND State Fair, flooding in 201 1 
caused the cancellation of the 201 1 ND State Fair. 
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C a p i tal  Assets 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
September 30, 20 1 2  

As of September 30,  20 1 2  and September 30, 20 1 1 ,  the Association had invested more than $4 1 million in 
infrash-ucture including land, buildings, improvements and equipment. Approximately 96 percent of that total is 
related to land and structures. Maintenance and upkeep of those structures and improvements is a continual 
ongoing process for the Association. Annual yearly costs for building and grounds upkeep exceed $665 thousand, 
excluding payroll costs for Association employees engaged in repa,ir and upkeep procedures. 

Current year additions to the capital asset category totaled approximately $ 1 ,387, 19 1 . See footnote 4 for 
additional details. 

Long-Term Bond Debt 

At year end, the Association had no long or short-term bond debt down from $420 thousand in the prior year. The 
decrease is due to the payoff of the debt. See footnote 5 for additional details. In fiscal year 201 1 ,  the 
Association had $420 thousand in long and short-term bond debt down from $605 thousand in fiscal year 20 10 for 
a decrease of 30.6 percent. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Operations 

The North Dakota State Fair Association is in the entertainment business, and as such is dependent upon many 
factors affecting the entertainment spending decisions of its customers. Factors such as condition of the 
agriculture economy, oil industry, Minot Air Force Base, Canadian exchange rates, weather, and competing 
entertainment providers such as casinos can all have significant impact on turnout for the annual State Fair. Fair 
attendance figures in.creased the past year because of the strong local economy. 

Contacting the Association's Financial Manager 

This financial report is designed to provide our state citizens, customers, and creditors with a general overview of 
the Association's finances and to demonstrate the Association's accountability for the money it receives. If you 
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the North Dakota State Fair 
Association office at P.O. Box 1 796, Minot, ND 58702- 1796. 

6 
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Assets 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for 

uncollectible accounts (2012  and 201 1  - $50,000) 
FEMA receivable - due from Federal Government 
Prepaid items 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent Assets 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted investment, at fair value 
Unamortized bond issuance costs 
Capital assets 

Land 
Infrastructure 
Buildings 
Equipment 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

See Notes to Financial Statements 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

B alance Sheets 

September 30, 20 1 2  and 20 1 1 

20 1 2  20 1 1  

$ 4,237,422 $ 2,54 1 ,701 

28,741 1 14,275 
330,801 2,569,030 
39,760 38,702 

4,636,724 5,263,708 

250,87 1  
2 19,055 

556 

390,8 1 6  390,8 1 6  
3,776,156 3,613,28 1 

35,741 ,352 34,728,1 12 
1 ,859,469 1 ,758,1 07 

( 1 8,320,5 1 1 ) ( 1 7,085,1 1 5) 

23,447,282 23,875,683 

$ 28,084,006 $ 29,1 39,391  
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Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current Liabilities 
Trade accmmts payable 
Flood contracts payable 
Accrued interest payable 
Current portion of accrued employee leave 
Current portion of flood loan payable 
Bonds payable, net of unamortized 

discount (20 1 1 - $1 ,461 )  
Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Accrued employee leave, net of current portion 
Flood loan payable 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for debt service 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Balance Sheets 
September 30, 2 0 1 2  and 20 1 1  

20 1 2  20 1 1  

$ 1 1 3,101  $ 20,990 
1 ,798,685 

36,006 6,440 
45,000 . 30,000 

964,830 

41 8,539 
1 , 158,937 2,274,654 

24,856 3 1 ,777 
1 ,055,793 

24,856 1 ,087,570 

1 , 1 83,793 3,362,224 

23,447,282 22,986,662 
469,926 

3,452,93 1 2,320,579 
26,900,21 3  25,777,1 67 

$ 28,084,006 $ 29,1 39,391 

7 



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Operating Revenues 
Fair proceeds and other revenue 
Arena revenue 
Other revenue 

Total operating revenues 

Operating -E xpenses 
<Jeneral e xpenses 
Depreciation expense 
Salaries, wages and vacation pay 
Premiums, trophies and awards 

Total operating expenses 

Operating Loss 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 
Local grants 
Interest and investment income 
Net decrease in fair value of investments 
Loss on disposal of flxed assets 
Interest expense 
Bond issuance costs 
Amortization of bond discount 

Total nonoperating revenues 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 

Years Ended September 30, 2 0 1 2  and 20 1 1 

20 1 2  20 1 1  

$ 6,652,773 $ 1 ,035,336 
177,423 254,612  
16,008 8,902 

6,846,204 1 ,298,850 

3,860,393 1 , 146,1 29 
1 ,332,486 1 ,3 17,930 
1 ,524,491 1 ,309,72 1 

265,868 1 7,392 

6,983,238 3,79 1 , 172 

( 137,034) (2,492,322) 

1 , 170,797 778,609 
3,232 8,440 

( 1 ,930) 
(535) 

(38,409) (2 1 , 1 1 1) 
(555) (3,335) 

(1 ,461) (8,754) 

1 ,1 33,069 75 1 ,9 1 9  

<Jain (Loss) Before Extraordinary Items & Transfers 996,035 ( 1,740,403) 

Extraordinary Items 
FEMA grants 1 ,424,750 2,569,030 
Flood expenditures ( 1 ,767,739) (2,862,940) 

Transfers - State Appropriations 470,000 1 7,370 

Change in N et Assets 1 , 123,046 (2,016,943) 

Net Assets, B eginning of Year 25,777,1 67 27,794,1 10 

Net Assets, End of Year $ 26,900,21 3  $ 25,777,1 67 

See Notes to Financial Statements 8 
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Operating Activities 
Cash received from customers 
Cash payments for goods and services 
Cash payments to employees 

Net Cash from (used for) Operating Activities 

Non-Capital Financing Activities 
Local grants received 
State appropriations received 

Net Cash from Non-Capital Financing Activities 

Capita l  and Related Financing Activities 
Payments for capital acquisitions 
State appropriations received 
FEMA flood assistance received 
P roceeds from issuance of flood loan 
P ayments on flood loan 
Payments for flood expenditures 
P rincipa l  payments on bonds 
Interest paid 

Net Cash from (used for) Capital 
and Related Financing Activities 

Investing Activities 
Receipts of interest and dividends 
P urchase of U S  Treasury Notes 
P roceeds from the sale of US Treasury Notes 

Net Cash from Investing Activities 

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 

See Notes to Financial Statements 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Statements o f  Cash Flows 
Years Ended September 30, 20 1 2  and 20 1 1 

20 1 2  20 1 1  

$ 6,93 1 ,738 $ 1 , 1 97,5 8 1  
( 4,035,208) _(2,267,105) 
( 1 ,5 1 6,4 1 2) ( 1 ,302,4 10) 

1 ,380,1 1 8  (2,371 ,934) 

1 , 1 70,797 778,609 
470,000 17,370 

1 ,640,797 795,979 

( 1 ,375, 103) (322,442) 
1 ,026,562 

3,662,98 1 
3,572,0 1 8  1 ,073,698 

(3,662,98 1 )  ( 1 7,905) 
(3,566,424) ( 1 ,047,333) -

(420,000) ( 1 85,000) 
(8,843) (23,886) 

(1 ,798,352) 503,694 

3,232 8,440 
(22 1 ,000) 

2 19,055 221 ,000 

222;287 8,440 

1 ,444,850 ( 1 ,063,821 )  

2,792,572 3,856,393 

$ 4;237,422 $ 2,792,572 

9 



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Reconciliation of Operating Income 
to Net Cash from Operating Activities 

Operating loss 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss 

to net cash from operating activities 
Depreciation 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities 
Customer receivables 
Prepaid expenses 
Trade accounts payable 
Accrued leave 

Net Cash from Operating Activities 

Summary of Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Unrestricted cash in banks 
Restricted cash in banks 

Supplemental Disclosure of 
Noncash Capital Financing Activities 

Value received for trade of capital assets 

Noncash Investing Activity 
Change in FMV of investments 

See N otes to Financial S tatements  

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Statements of C ash Flows 

Years Ended September 30, 20 1 2  and 201 1 

20 1 2  20 1 1  

$ ( 137,034) $ (2,509,244) 

1 ,332,486 1 ,3 17,930 

85,534 ( 1 0 1 ,269) 
( 1 ,058) (2,560) 
92,1 1 1  ( 1 ,084,102) 

8,079 7,3 1 1 

$ 1 ,380,1 1 8  $ (2,371 ,934) 

$ 4,237,422 $ 2,541 ,701 
250,871 

$ 4,237,422 $ 2,792,572 

$ 12,089 $ 

$ $ ( 1 ,930) 

1 0  
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7/112009 1 0/1/2009-
2009-20 1 1  9/30/2009 9/30/20 1 0  

A eeroeria tion Exeenditures __gxpenditures 

Debt Service $ 2 1 0,000 $ - $ 1 90,000 

Grandstand 1 5,000,000 970,366 1 4,029,634 

Premiums 487, 1 50 236,698 250,452 

$ 1 5,697, 1 50 $ 1 ,207,064 $ 14,470,086 

1 0/1/20 1 0-
6/30/20 1 1  201 1 -20 1 3  

Exeenditures Aeeroeriation 

$ 20,000 $ 2 1 0,000 

520,000 

$ 20,000 $ 730,000 

North Dakota State Fair Association 
Statement of Appropriations 

Year Ended September 30, 20 1 2  

7/1/20 1 1 -
9/30/201 1 

Exeenditures 

$ 

1 7,392 

$ 1 7,392 

1 0/1/20 1 1 -
9/30/20 1 2  

Expenditures 

$ 2 1 0,000 

260,000 

$ 470,000 

U nexpended 
A ppropriations 

at 9/30/201 2  

$ 

242,608 

$ 242,608 

The following schedule shows the appropriated and non-appropriated portion of premiums, operating expenses, interest expense and bond principal payments for 
the two-year period ended September 30, 20 1 2. Non-appropriated expenditures are made in accordance with NDCC 4-02. 1 - 1 5 . 

Premiums 
Operating expenses 
Interest expenses 
Principal payments on bonds 

See Notes to Financial Statements 

FY 20 1 2  FY 201 2  F Y  20 1 1  FY 20 1 1 f-isca l Years 
Aeeropriated Non-aeeroeriated Aeeropriated Non-aeeropriated 20 I 1 -20 1 2  Total 

$ 260,000 $ 5,868 $ 1 7,392 $ - $ 283,260 
- 6,7 1 7,370 3,790,702 1 0,508,072 
- 38,409 2 1 , 1 1 1  59,520 

2 1 0,000 2 1 0,000 20,000 1 65,000 605,000 

$ 470,000 $ 6,971 ,647 $ 37,392 $ 3,976,8 1 3  $ I I  ,455,852 

1 1  

-
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North Dakota State Fair Association 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 20 1 2  and 2 0 1 1 

No te 1 - Nature of Operations and  S u mmary of Significant  Account ing  Pol icies 

The North Dakota State Fair Association is an Enterprise Fund of the State of North Dakota. The purpose of the 
State Fair Association is to conduct an annual exhibition of the state's resources and products in order to promote 
the state. 

The accompanying financial statements of the North Dakota State Fair Association follow the pronouncements of 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which is the nationally accepted standard-setting body 
for establishing generally accepted accounting principles for governmental entities. In addition, the Association 
follows all nonconflicting pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (F ASB) issued and 
effective subsequent to November 30, 1989. 

The accounting policies of the North Dakota State Fair Association conform to generally accepted accounting 
principles as applicable to local governmental units. The following is a summary of the more significant policies: 

Reporting Entity 

For financial reporting purposes, the North Dakota State Fair Association has included all funds, ·and has 
considered all potential component units for which the North Dakota State Fair Association is financially 
accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the North 
Dakota State Fair Association are such that exclusion would cause the North Dakota State Fair Association's 
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The North Dakota State Fair Association has no component 
units. Governmental Accounting Standards Board has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial 
accountability. This criteria includes appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body and ( 1 )  the 
ability of the North Dakota State Fair Association to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for 
the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the North Dakota 
State Fair Association. 

Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognized on the accrual basis for financial reporting. 

Infrastructure, Buildings, and Equipment 

Infrastructure, buildings and equipment are stated at cost except for donated assets which are reported at fair value 
on the date received. Expenditures exceeding $5,000 for renewals and improvements that significantly add to the 
productive capacity or extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance, repairs and 
improvements less than $5,000 are currently charged to expense. 

Depreciation is provided for over the estimated useful lives of the individual assets using the straight-line method. 
The estimated useful lives used in the computation of depreciation are as follows: 

Infrastructure 
Buildings 
Equipment 

Pension Costs 

Pension costs are funded as they accrue. 

5-25 years 
20-40 years 

3-1 5 years 

1 2  
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Cash a n d  C a s h  Equivalents 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30,  2 0 1 2  and 20 1 1 

For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Association considers all Treasury bills, commercial paper, certificates 
of deposit and money market funds which have an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Restricted C ash and Investments 

As of September 30, 20 1 1 ,  the North Dakota State Fair had a bond that required certain reservations of the 
Association's assets. The Association had. a reserved investment account in the amount of $2 19,055, and an 
Emergency Reserve Cash Account in the amount of $250,871 .  The bond was paid in full during 20 1 2. 

Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount less a reserve estimate made for doubtful accounts. 
Management's estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based on historical loss levels and an analysis of · 
the collectabiiity of individual accounts. Accounts receivable are due within 30 days after which they are charged 
interest at 1 8% annually. 

Prepaid Items 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid 
items in the fund financial statements. 

i . 
Bond Issuance Costs and Bond Discounts 

Bond issuance costs and bond discounts are amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. 

Operating Revenues 

For purposes of differentiating operating revenues from no operating revenues, the Association considers support 
received from the City of Minot and Ward County to be non-operating revenues. The stated purpose of the 
support from the mentioned entities is to help offset the operating expenses related to non-Fair and arena ice 
activities. Expenses related to the maintenance and operations of these facilities are classified as operating 
expenses. 

Restricted Resources 

It is the Association's policy to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for which both 
restricted and unrestricted resources are available. 

1 3  
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North Dakota State Fair Association 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 20 1 2  and 20 1 1 

Com pensa ted Absences 

Employees accrue annual leave at a rate of eight hours per month for the first three years of continuous service. 
The accrual rate is increased to ten hours per month after three years, twelve hours per month after seven years, 
fourteen hours per month after thirteen years, and sixteen hours per month after eighteen years of service. The 
maximum amount of leave that may be carried forward each year is 240 hours. All unpaid leave is payable upon 
termination. 

Permanent employees also earn sick leave at a rate of eight hours per month. Sick leave is being carried over from 
year to year. If an employee leaves after ten continuous years of service, the employee will be paid for ten percent 
of any unused accumulated sick leave. 

Advertising Costs 

Advertising costs· are expensed as incurred. Total advertising expense for the years ended September 30, 20 1 2  and 
201 1 ,  is $275,442 and $208,978, respectively. 

Estimates 

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenses. Actual 
results could vary from the estimates that were used. 

Note 2 - Cash 

Custodial Credit Risk 

State law generally requires that all state funds be deposited in the Bank ofNorth Dakota. NDCC 2 1 -04-02 
provides that public funds belonging to or in the custody of the state shall be deposited in the Bank of North 
Dakota. Also, NDCC 6-09-07 states, "all state funds . . .  must be deposited in the Bank of North Dakota" or must 
be deposited in accordance with constitutional and statutory provisions. 

Note 3 - I nvestments 

As of September 30, 20 12  and 20 1 1 ,  the Association has the following investments: 

201 2  20 1 1  
Investment Maturity Fair Value Fair Value 

U.S .  Trea sury note 1 0/2 1/ 1 0  $ $ 2 19,055 

State law generally requires that all state funds be deposited in the Bank of North Dakota. NDCC 21 -04-02 
provides that public funds belonging to or in the custody of the state shall be deposited in the Bank of North 
Dakota. The North Dakota State Fair Association only invests in investments offered by the State Treasurer. 

14  
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I n terest Rate Risk 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2 0 1 2  and 20 1 1  

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt securities will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. The price of a debt security typically moves in the opposite direction of the change in interest rates. 
The Association does not have a fonnal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of 
managing its exposure to potential fair value losses arising from future changes in interest rates. 

Note 4 - Capital Assets ' 

The components and changes in components of capital assets at September 30, 20 12 and 201 1 are as follows: 

Additions/ 
Balance Depreciation Balance 
09/30/ 1 1 Ex12ense Deletions 09/30/12  

Capital Assets Not Being D epreciated 
Land $ 390,8 1 6  $ $ $ 390,8 1 6  

Capital Assets Being Depreciated 
Infras true ture 3,61 3,28 1 1 70,935 (8,060) 3 ,776, 156 
Buildings 34,728,1 12 1 ,0 19,369 (6,129) 35 ,741 ,352 
Equipment 1 ,758,107 1 96,887 (95,525) 1 ,859,469 

40,490,3 1 6  1 ,387, 19 1  ( 109,714) 41 ,767,793 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Infrastructure (2,545,91 2) ( 123,576) 8 ,060 (2,661 ,428) 
Buildings ( 1 3,005,752) ( 1 ,1 48,695) 5,594 ( 14, 148,853) 
Equipment ( 1 ,533,45 1 )  (60,2 15) 83,436 ( 1 ,5 1 0,230) 

(17,085,1 1 5) (1 ,332,486) 97,090 (1 8 ,320,5 1 1) 

Net $ 23,405,201 $ 54,705 $ {12,624) $ 23,447,282 

Additions/ 
Balance Depreciation Balance 
09/30/10 Ex12ense Deletions 09/30/1 1  

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 
Land $ 390,8 16  $ $ $ 390,8 1 6  

Capital Assets Being D epreciated 
Infras true ture 3,465,985 1 47,296 3 ,6 1 3,28 1 
Buildings 34,598,087 1 30,025 34,728, 1 1 2 
Equipment 1 ,72 1 ,1 83 58,127 {2 1 ,203) 1 ,758,107 

40,176,07 1 335,448 (2 1 ,203) 40,490,3 1 6  
Less a ccumulated depreciation 

Infrastructure (2,424,868) ( 1 2 1 ,044) (2,545,9 1 2) 
Buildings ( 1 1 ,868,850) ( 1 ,1 36,902) ( 13 ,005,752) 
Equipment {1 ,48 1 ,664) {59,983) 8 , 196 {1 ,533,45 1 )  

( 15 ,775,382) (1 ,3 17  ,929) 8 , 196 {17,085,1 1 5) 

Net $ 24,400,689 $ (982,48 1 )  $ ( 1 3 ,007) $ 23,405,20 1 

1 5  
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No1ih Dakota State Fair Association 

Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 20 1 2  and 20 1 1 

N ote 5 - Long - Term Debt 

Changes in Bonds Payable, Flood Loan Payable and Accrued E mployee Leave 

The following is a summary of changes in bonds payable, flood loan payable and accrued employee leave for the 
year ended September 30, 20 1 2  and 201 1 :  

Balance Balance 
09/30/1 1 Additions Retirements 09/30/1 2  

Bonds P ayable $ 420,000 $ $ (420,000) $ 

Flood Loan 1 ,055,793 3,572,0 18  (3,662,981)  964,830 

Accrued Employee Leave 61 ,777 50,889 (42,8 10) 69,856 

$ 1 ,537,570 $ 3,622,907 $ ( 4,125,791) $ 1 ,034,686 

Balance Balance 
09/30/10 Additions Retirements 09/30/1 1 

Bonds P ayable $ 605,000 $ $ ( 185,000) $ 420,000 

Flood Loan 1 ,073,698 ( 17,905) 1 ,055,793 

Accrued Employee Leave 54,466 34,821 (27,5 10) 6 1 ,777 

$ 659,466 $ 1 , 108,5 19 $ (230,415) $ 1 ,537,570 

Maturities of Bonds & Loan Payable 

Maturities of principal and interest on the flood loan are as follows: 

Year Ended September 30, Principal Interest 

20 13  $ 964,830 $ 52,243 

The following summarizes the Association's debt outstanding as of September 30, 20 12  and 20 1 1 :  

Description and Due Date 

Refunding Revenue Bonds Series 200 1 
12101 /02 - 12/01/1 1 

Flood Loan through the Bank of North Dakota 
08/10/n - 06/30/13  

Interest Rate 

3.5 - 4.6 

1 .25% over 30-day LIBOR 
Floor rate of 2.26% 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Current 
Portion 

964,830 

45,000 

1 ,009,830 

Current 
Portion 

420,000 

30,000 

450,000 

Total 

1 ,0 17,073 

Original 
Issue 

Amount 

$ 2,205,000 

Maximum 
$6,000,000 

1 6  
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North Dakota State Fair Association 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 20 12  and 20 1 1 

Refunding Revenu e  Bonds Series 200 1 

Interest on the 200 1 Series Bonds is payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 of each year. The bonds 
maturing on December 1 ,  20 1 1 are not subject to optional redemption prior to maturity except under extraordinary 
circumstances. The bonds are presented on the balance sheet net of unamortized discount of $ 1  ,46 1 for the year 
ended September 30, 20 1 1 .  The bonds are secured by the Association's net revenues, designated appropriations 
from the N orth Dakota Legislature, a Reserve Account in the amount of $2 19,926, and by an Emergency Reserve 
Account in the amount of $250,000. During 20 1 2  the bonds were paid in full. 

Bank of North Dakota Flood Loan _ 

On August 1 0, 201 1 ,  the Bank of North Dakota approved a loan for a non-revolving line of credit for the North 
Dakota State Fair Association, with funds up to $6,000,000 available. The purpose of the unsecured loan is to 
cover expenses associated with 20 1 1  flooding. All principal and interest are due at the maturity date of June 30, 
20 1 3 .  The interest rate is 1 .25% over the 30-day LIBOR, with a floor rate of 2.26%, at September 30, 20 1 2  and 
20 1 1 the interest rate was at 2 .25% and 2.26%, respectively. 

Note 6 - Appropriations 

The North Dakota State Fair Association receives premium appropriations from the State ofNorth Dakota. These 
premium appropriations are restricted for the purpose of providing premiums to fair exhibition winners. Premium 
appropriations for the years ended September 30, 20 1 2  and 20 1 1 ,  were $260,000 and $ 17 ,370, respectively. 

The North Dakota State Fair Association receives debt service appropriations from the State of North Dakota. 
These amounts are restricted for the purpose of bond payments. Debt service appropriations for September 30, 
20 1 2  and 20 1 1  totaled $2 10,000 and $0, respectively. 

1 7  
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Note 7 - Pens ions  

N01ih Dakota State Fair Association 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 20 1 2  and 20 1 1 

The North Dakota State Fair Association participates in the North Dakota Public Employees' Retirement System 
(NDPERS) administered by the State of North Dakota. The following is a brief description of the plan. 

Description of Plan 

NDPERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defmed benefit pension plan covering substantially all classified 
employees of the North Dakota State Fair Association. The plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits. 
If an active employee dies with less than five years of credited service, a death benefit equal to the value of the 
employee's accumulated contributions, plus interest, is paid to the employee's beneficiary. If the employee has 
earned more than five years of credited service, the surviving spouse will be entitled to a single payment refund, 
life-time monthly payments in an amount equal to 50% of the employee's accrued normal retirement benefit, or 60 
monthly payments equal to the employee's accrued normal retirement benefit calculated as if the employee were 
age 65 the day before death occurred (or, effective August 1 ,  1995, monthly payments in an amount equal to the 
employees' accrued 100% joint and survivor retirement benefit if the member had reached normal retirement age 
prior to date of death). If the surviving spouse dies before the employee's accumulated pension benefits are paid, 
the balance will be payable to the surviving spouse's designated beneficiary. 

Eligible employees, who become totally disabled after a minimum of 1 80 days of service, receive monthly 
disability benefits that are equal to 25% of their final average salary with a minimum benefit of $ 100. To qualify 
under this section, the employee must meet the criteria established by the Retirement Board for being considered 
totally disabled. 

Employees are entitled to unreduced monthly pension benefits equal to 2.0% of their final average salary for each 
year of service beginning when the sum of age and years of credited service equal or exceed 85, or at normal 
retirement age (65). The plan permits early retirement at ages 55-64, with five or more years of service. NDPERS 
issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and the required supplementary 
information for NDPERS. That report may be obtained by writing to NDPERS; 400 E. Broadway, Suite 505; 
P.O. Box 1 2 14; Bismarck, ND 58502- 12 14. 

Funding Policy 

NDPERS is funded by employee contributions (set by statute) of 5% of regular compensation. During the 1983-
1985 biennium the State implemented the employer pickup provision of the IRS code whereby a portion or all of 
the required employee contributions are made by the employer. The ND State Fair Assn is paying the full 
employee contribution of 4%. Employer contributions of 5 . 12  percent of covered compensation are set by statute. 
Therefore, the ND State Fair Assn is paying a total contribution of 9 . 12% out ofND State Fair Assn operating 
funds. The required contributions are determined using an entry age normal actuarial funding method. The North 
Dakota Retirement Board was created by the State legislature and is the governing authority ofNDPERS. Benefit 
and contribution provisions are administered in accordance with Chapter 54-52 of the North Dakota Century 
Code. The No.rth Dakota State Fair Association's required and actual contributions to NDPERS for the fiscal years 
ending September 30, 2012, 20 1 1 ,  and 20 10, were $73,367, $61 ,952, and $6 1 ,335,  respectively. 

1 8  
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Note 8 - Lease Agreements 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 20 1 2  and 20 1 1  

The North Dakota State Fair Association, as lessor, has entered into lease agreements with local organizations for 
the use of Association buildings. The lessees have use of the facilities for established months of each year and the 
Association has use of the facilities for the period which coincides with fair time. 

Lease terms are as follows: 

Gymagic Gymnastics Agreement 

All Seasons Arena Ice Contract 

Norsk Hostfest Contract 

Minot Curling Club Contract 

Term and Expiration Date 

5 years through September 201 7, 

Annual with renewal option 

1 year through September 20 12  

5 years through April 20 1 7  

Annual Rental 

$ 25,200 

1 05,900 

1 56,400 

6,000 

The leases are accounted for as operating leases. The Gymagic Gymnastics and the Minot Curling Club leases are 
noncancelable. The Minot Curling Club Contract increases to $7,200 annually in fiscal year 20 15 .  The All 
Seasons Arena Ice Contract and Norsk Hostfest contracts are cancelable in the event the facilitie� specified within 
the contracts are destroyed. ' 

The minimum aggregate lease revenue over the next five years is as follows: 

Years Ended September 30, 

201 3  
201 4  
201 5  
201 6  
201 7  

Amount 

$ 1 37 , 100 
3 1 ,200 
32,400 
32,400 
32,400 

$ 265,500 

1 9  
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Note 9 - Risk Management 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 20 12  and 20 1 1  

The North Dakota State Fair Association is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, 
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The following are 
funds/pools established by the State for risk management issues: 

The 1 995 Legislative Session established the Risk Management Fund (RMF), an internal service fund, to provide 
a self-insurance vehicle for funding the liability exposures of State agencies resulting from the elimination of the 
State's sovereign immunity. The RMF manages the tort liability of the State, its agencies' employees and the 
University System. All State agencies participate in the RMF and their fund contribution was determined using a 
projected cost allocation approach. The statutory liability of the State is limited to a total of $250,000 per person 
and $ 1 ,000,000 per occurrence. 

In 1 986 State agencies and political subdivisions of the State ofNorth Dakota joined together to form the North 
Dakota Insurance Reserve Fund (NDIRF), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk 
management and insurance program for over 2,000 State agencies and political subdivisions. The North Dakota 
State Fair Association pays an annual premium to NDIRF for its general liability, auto, and inland marine 
insurance coverage. The coverage by NDIRF is limited to losses of one million dollars per occurrence. 

The Association also participates in the North Dakota Fire and Tornado Fund and the State Bonding Fund. The 
agency pays an annual premium to the Fire and Tornado Fund to cover property damage to building and personal 
property. Replacement cost coverage is provided by estimating replacement cost in consultation with the Fire and 
Tornado Fund. The Fire and Tornado Fund is reinsured by a third party insurance carrier for losses in excess of 
one million dollars per occurrence during a 12 month period. The State Bonding Fund currently provides the 
agency with blanket fidelity bond coverage in the amount of $2,000,000 for its employees. The State Bonding 
Fund does not currently charge any premium for this coverage. 

The agency participates in the North Dakota Workforce Safety and Insurance Fund (WSI), an Enterprise Fund of 
the State ofNorth Dakota. The WSI is a state insurance fund and a "no fault" insurance system covering the 
State's employers and employees financed by premiums assessed to employers. The premiums are available for 
the payment of claims to employees injured in the course of employment. 

There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year and settled claims resulting 
from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past two fiscal years. 

Note 1 0 - Commitments 

The North Dakota State Fair Association entered into a lease and concessions arrangement with M & S 
Concessions. The lessee is responsible to provide for its own concession equipment. In the event that the lease is 
not renewed or tenninated, the Association is committed to purchase the equipment and improvements installed 
by the lessee at a price equal to "depreciated value." Depreciated value means the original cost of the equipment 
or improvements, less 1 0% per year from the date of installation to the date of termination. Estimated depreciated 
value at September 30, 20 1 2  is approximately $260,844. 

20 
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Note 1 1 - Extraordinary Items - Flooding 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 20 12  and 20 1 1  

During the month of June 201 1 , flooding from the Souris River directly impacted the North Dakota State Fair 
Association causing significant damage to the buildings and other properties. Costs are expected to be partially 
recovered from federal assistance programs. Included in the financial statements for the year ended September 30, 
201 2  and 201 1  are $1,767,739 and $2,862,940 in expenditures incurred or payable, respectively, and $1 ,424,750 
and $2,569,030 in federal grants revenues or receivables, respectively, from the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency. 

2 1  



Lovin'  Ft-om My Oven:  Ot-det- Fot-m 
N�me __________________ __ 

Telephone ________________ _ 

*Return orqel' form in  Don�tion box 
or c� l l 255-1747 
Del ivet-y D�tes: 

Dec 21 o!'  24 --------
Othel' ------------------

Selection :  
__ Sn ickel'-qoocl le Cookie $6 .00 
__ Ginger-Spice Cookie $6 .00 
__ Choc-Chip O�tme� l $6 .00 

Chocol�te Cri n kle Cookie $6 .00 
__ Monster Cookie $6 .00 

PB Kissed Cookie $6 .00 
R� isi n Cookie $6 .00 
Bl'own ies $6 .00 

__ Coffee Bre� k P l�tter l nqu i l'y 
__ Pumpkin Pie $10 .00 
_Apple P ie $12 .00 
__ Pec� n P ie $12 .00 
_Choc. M int Bu ndt C� ke $10.00 
__ Cinn�mon Rol l 1/2 clozen $6 .00 
__ CI'� nbei'I'Y W� l nut Bl'e�cl $6 .00 
__ G� rl ic He l'b B l'e�cl $6 .00 

Mu lt i  Gr� i n  B l'e�d $6 .00 
_Di l l  B l'e�d $6 .00 
__ Cou nhy Wh ite B re�d $5 .00 

_# of Items Tot� ! Cost $ __ 
C�sh or Check (Check # ) 
Ma ke Checks Payable to Florence Mayer 

About the B� ket- & 
Lovin'  Ft-om My Oven 

Flol'ence M�yer  is � n  �dive 14 ye� r 
olcl g i l'l who en ioys le� rn i ng, spencl ing 
t ime with her q m i ly, p l�y ing the pi-
� no & vio l i n ,  riq ing her horse Penny, 
b� ki ng & sewi ng .  

She is �dive i n  4-H .  Th is p�st ye� l' 
she e� rned 57 B lue  Ribbons & � com­
binqtion of 13  Gr� nd or  Reserve 
Ch�mpion Aw� rds .  

" Lovin / From My Oven // is �n Edu­
c�t ion� l P l'o iect on Enhepl'eneu rsh ip 
through  Morton Cou nty 4-H .  Her 
go� I i s  to leq rn the busi ness of own­
i ng/ru n n ing � b� kel'y & � I I  the det� i l s  
th�t go with it . (He� lth l'egu l�tions, 
Money M� nqgement, M� l'ket ing ,  
P rod uct Perfection, Customer Sqtis­
qction . . .  ) 

F lorence is indepenclent ly fu ncl i ng 
he!' proiect. Her  go� I is to e� rn b�ck 
the cost of i ng reel ients & est� b l ish q 
4-H schol� rsh ip fu nd for kids who 
wou ld l i ke to do service proieds to 
help othel's in ou r com m u n ity. 

Thq n k  you for you r p�hon�ge, for 
supporting � youth to le� rn new ski l l s, 
g� i n  knowleclge & insp i re other ch i l ­
d ren by m�ki ng comm u n ity seNice 
p l'o ieds �fforcl�b le .  Thq nk  you ! 

Lovi n ' 

Fro m My 
Ove n 

O u Cl l i ty  
B Cl ke d G o o d s 

Dece m b e r  
2012 

Hol id�y Del ivet-y D�tes: 

� 

Ch ristm�s; December 21st or 24th 

Other Dates For Hol iday Del ivery 
ava i l able upon request. � 



Lovi n '  From My Oven : Ho l idqy Se l ect ion s  
.. , ,_ �.f l /< ... �, ¥ ·1!11 v y .. ,'_�� � � 

Cookie & Sweets Selections 
Cookies . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 6 .00/dozen 

Sn icker-dood le Cookie 
G inger-Spice Cookie 
Chocolqte Ch ip Oqtmeq l Cookie 
Chocolqte Cr in kle Cookie 
Monster Cookie 
Peq nut Butter Kissed Cookie 
Old Fqsh ioned Rq is in Cookie 

Brownies . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 6 .00/dozen 
Wondel'tu l  c<} ke- l i ke chocol<}te 
bwwnies with Fwst ing !  

"Coffee Break P latters" <lV<l i l <lble 
weekly tor the office .  Cookies <} re 
ind ividu<l l ly p<lck<lged . P l'ice V<} l'ies, de­
pend ing on size oF p l<1tter. Check b l<1 n k  on 
the Ordet" Form <lnd we wi l l  retum <l c<1 l l  
For questions & i ntmm<}tion .  Th<1 n ks .  

v 

Pie & Rol l  Selections 
Pumpkin P ie . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 10 .00 

9 1/2 i nch P ie, TJ-<ld ition<l l  Hol id<ly Pie 

Apple Pie . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 12 .00 
9 1/2 i nch pie, Tendel' & A<l ky uust 
Fi l led with hesh <lpple Fi l l i ng .  

Pecan Pie . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 12 .00 
9 1/2 i nch pie . A Southem TJ-<ld ition . 
VeJ-y l'ich .  

Cinnamon Rol l s . . . . .  $ 6 .00/h<l lt  dozen 
A h<1 l t  dozen p<ln oF ci nn<lmon wl l s  
d l'izz led with <l sweet V<ln i l l<l ici ng .  

Mint Chocolate Cake . . . . . . . . . . $10.00 
Moist Chocol<lte bundt c<}ke with <l 
smooth m i nt .  A<lvm. Setves 16 .  

* P ies q re mqde fresh & shou ld be 
eaten fresh .  We recommend p ies to 

be consu med with in  48 hou rs of 
de l ivery. 

Bread Selections 
Cranberry Walnut B read . . . . . . . .  $ 6 .00 

F<1 nt<1stic setved W<l l'm odo<}sted . 
Th is genewus lo<lt wi l l  de l ight <1 l l  to!' 
bJ-unch m b!'e<l kfust. 

Garl ic Herb Bread . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 6 .00 
Be<}utitu l ly-BI'<l ided Lo<lt with <l l'ich 
S<lVOJ-y A<lVOI'. 

Mu lti Grain Bread . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 6 .00 
7 wondel'tu l ly nutty g l'<l ins  Fi l l  th i s  
moist !'ou nd lo<1F. 

D i l l  Bread . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 6 .00 
Round At"tesi<ln lo<lF, Fu i i-A<lvm. 
F<1nt<1stic Fresh, with soup, g t"i l led m 
to<}sted . 

Country Wh ite B read . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 5 .00 
A h<ld ition<l l home-m<lde countJ-y 
wh ite b re(ld .  

** As q lwqys Lovin / Ftom My Over; bq ked goods q re mqde from scrqtch with fresh ,  whole i ng red ients. They q re NOT low (qt. 
Nuts q re present in the kitchen where good ies q re mqde.  v S incere ly, F lorence Mqyer 



4- H premium at work 
By: F lorence M ayer J a n u a ry 2013 

I a m  a m e m be r  of the I nteg rity 4-H c l u b  of Morton Cou nty. The 4-H motto i s  to " m a ke the 

best, better" . Today I 'd l i ke to te l l  you a bout an opport u n ity I had to m a ke my best bette r, 

beca u se of the p re m i u m  money I ea rned at the N D  State F a i r. 

This  past yea r I entered 37  p rojects at the N D  State Fa i r. 

I ea rned;  33 blue r ibbons a nd 1 red r ibbons.  

Of the 33 blue r ibbons I was awa rded : 

1 G ra n d  Cha m pion Awa rd, 

2 Rese rve Cha m pion Awa rds, 

3 Awa rd s of Exce l lence, 

A Citize n s h i p  R i bbon & a Trave l i ng Ba nner  Awa rd fo r promoti ng 4-H .  

After the State Fa i r  I rece ived a pre m i u m  mo ney check fo r $122 fo r my efforts .  I was excited 

a bout my s u ccess a n d  sta rted t h i n ki ng a bout my options fo r what to do with th is  p re m i u m  

money.  

I resea rched the ba n ki ng i n d u stry, i nvest ing & s poke to m a ny bus i ness p rofessiona ls  

co n cern ing cds, savi ngs accou nts, i nte rest rates & i nvesti ng. I wa nted th is  pre m i u m  mo ney to 

grow. 

One b us i ness m a n  I s poke to i nstructed me to i n vest in o u r  loca l ut i l ity com pa ny, so I cou ld 

d rive down Ce ntu ry Ave n u e  & say I own p a rt of that pa rticu l a r  glass pa lace .  Another i nformed 

me he wou ld be so ha ppy if I put my mo ney i n  h is  ba n k .  Afte r one yea r of havi ng my money 

i n a ccess i b le I wou ld have e nough i nterest ea rned to p u rchase a postage sta m p .  

N e ither of these options a ppea led to m e .  I ea rned th is  mo ney b y  ma king my best bette r & 
decided I sh ou ld  put my h a rd ea rned pre m i u m  money to use by conti n u i ng to m a ke my best 

better.  I sta rted assess ing my i nterests a n d sk i l l s  based on the success I had  at the N D  State 

F a i r. After pondering seve ra l ideas, I ca me u p  with a bus iness p l a n  focused ba k i ng a n d  I wa s on 

my way to beco m i ng a n  e ntrepre n e u r. 



·' 

M y  e ntre p re n e u rs h i p  p roject is ca l l ed "Lovin'  from My Ove n" .  My goa ls  were to : 

"'co m p lete ly fu nd the project myself u s i ng p re m i u m  money.  

"'ea rn back the cost of bus i ness expenses. 

"' m a ke e nough of a p rofit to esta b l ish a schola rsh i p  fu nd fo r other youth to a pp ly  for fu n d s  to 

a l low them to focus o n  com m u n ity service. 

This  p roject req u i red me to resea rch 

food safety, 

food s a n itation, 

a cco u nti ng, 

ma rketi ng, 

money m a n age ment 

a n d  a hea lthy a mount  of t ime ma n age ment.  

I ca l l ed loca l hea lth d e p a rtme nts, expla i ned my m ission & obta i n ed perm ission u nd e r  the 

n a m e  of 4-H to deve lop my project. I had an 8 wee k win dow to operate my entre p re n e u rs h i p  

p roject. I sta rted b y  putt ing o u t  a tray of ba ked goods with a p a m p h let & a j a r  stat ing the 

suggested donation of $1 per serving wou ld be a ppreciated . 

When people sta rted to ask  a bout p lac ing orders fo r the u pcom i ng hol id ays I was t h ri l led . I 

sta rted h a n d i ng out specific hol iday fl iers a n d  putti ng together a po rtfol io .  I rece ived a greate r 

response then I had i m agi ned . 

At the end of the 8 week busi n ess, I had met a l l  of my goa ls .  I t h i n k  eve ry 4-H member  shou ld  

h ave a n  oppo rtu n ity to  do good for their  com m u n ity. F rom the p re m i u m  money I ea rned 

through 4-H a nd a l ittle h a rd work a nd determi nation I have esta bl ished a schola rs h i p  fu n d  

t h rough M o rton Cou nty fo r other 4-H members w h o  wa nt t o  give back t o  t h e i r  com m u n ity 

through service p rojects . 

I know N O  State Fa i r  pre m i u m  money has made a big d iffe rence i n  the opportu n ities I have 

h a d .  It rewa rd s  the efforts to m a ke my best bette r. 

I bel ieve N O  4-H m e m bers a re ready to ste p u p  a nd m a ke a d iffe rence in o u r  com m u n it ies .  

Pre m i u m  money fa c i l itates th is  des ire and ma kes opportu n ities fo r youth through the fi na ncia l 

rewa rds of their  work. Tha n k  you fo r h e l pi ng us  a long on o u r  jou rney of respons ib i l ity a nd 

ma king N O  a bette r p lace.  



March 8 , 20 1 3 
House Appropriations 
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Ed ucation & Environment Su bsection Comm ittee 

Representative Robert Skarpol 

M a rch 8, 2013 

9:00AM 

S B2009 

Dea r  Representatives, 

A fb,c hment I .  
�8 2 00 1  
March $, 20/3 

The N o rth Da kota State Fair  is req uesting the Ed ucation & E nvironm ent Su bsection Co m m ittee to 

support Senate Bil l  No.  2009. 

The req uest includes:  

1.  I ncrease pre m i u m  dol lars by $26,000 bringing the total  pre m i u m  dol lars for the bie n n i u m  to 

$ 546,000. 

2. One t ime capita l fu nd expenditure for flood re pair  of d a mages to our asphalt tota l ing 

$2,88 1,500. 

3 .  One t ime capita l fu nd expenditure beca use of flood damage fo r gravel i n  the pa rking lots 

tota l i ng $618,500. 

The i nflux of 4-H, F FA and open class exh i bitors ca uses need for an increase i n  pre m i u m  dol lar  fu nds.  In 

a d d it ion to t h is, a s  inflation has grown ra pidly in  the state, premium awards have not. Costs to create 

projects and show a n i m a l s  at the State Fair have grown d ra m at ica l ly and exhibitors' awa rd s  should 

reflect th is. The rema inder of the req uest is d ue to damage caused by the 2011 flood which we have not 

been a b l e  to re pair.  

Tha n k  you a n d  we appreciate your su pport.  

Life i s  Fair, 

Renae Kors l ien 

M a nager 

P.O. Box 1 796 
Minot, North Dakota 58702 

Phone 70 1 .857.7620 
Fax 701 .857.7622 

email: ndsf@minot.com 

Web site: ndstatefair.corn 
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Premium Dollar Request 
Requesting a $ 26,ooo increase 

to equal a total of $546,000. 
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2012 North Da kota State Fa i r  

Entries by County 

I Tota l County 

I Ad a ms 63 McKenzie 281 

Ba rnes 355 M c lean 2,097 

I Benson 333 Mercer 967 

Bott in ea u 787 M o rton 981 

I Bow m a n  239 M o u ntra i l  779 

Bu rke 299 Ne lson 181 

I Bu rl iegh 2,012 Ol iver 449 

Cass 4,354 Pembina  337 

I 
Cava l ier  117 Pierce 457 

Dickey 3,738 Ra msey 532 

I Divide 123 Ra nsom 1,407 

D u n n  158 Renvi l le 658 

I 
Eddy 200 Rich l a n d  7,406 

E m mons 203 Rolette 175 

Foster 524 Sa rgent 58 

I Golden Va l l ey 3 Sherid a n  314 

G ra n d  Forks 391 Sta rk 265 

I G ra nt 55 Steele 10 

G riggs 160 Stuts m a n  735 

I Hetti nger 131 Towner  382 

Kidder  409 Tra i l l  163 

I La M o u re 257 Walsh 283 

Loga n 162 Wa rd 7,076 

I M c H e n ry 2,577 Wells 1,582 

M c i ntosh 146 W i l l i a ms 492 

I Total Entries 45,863 

I 

I 
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Renae Kors l i e n  

Fro m :  
Sent: 
To: 
Subject : 

Loretta Haas [Loretta .Haas@sendit.nodak.edu] 
Monday, January 21 , 20 1 3  7 :21  PM 
renae@nd statefa i r .com 
State Fair fu nding 

T h i s  i s  an ema i l  s u pport i n g  more f i n a n c i a l  a s s i st a n c e  for the State F a i r .  
My d a ughter h a s  been i n  4 - H  for two years a n d  t h i s  past year was her f i r s t  t ime exh i b i t i n g  at 

t h e State F a i r .  S h e  w a s  e x c ited t o  know how we l l  s h e  d i d  a n d  what ot her people t hought of 

h e r  p roj ect s . When t h ey c a me b a c k  from state,  s h e  was ECSTATIC to f i n d  out t h at s h e  h a d  

e a rned a p u rp l e  rib bon . Th i s ,  s h e feel s ,  i s  her s i ngle most exciting expe r i e n c e  t h i s  past 

s ummer . S h e  t a l k s  a bout t h e  exc itement a n d  h a s  a corner i n  her room where h e r  roc ket a n d  h e r  

p u r p l e  r i b bon a re on d i s p l ay . T h i s  h a s  given her more ince ntive to do better a n d  t ry more 

events t h i s  coming yea r .  I know a s  a parent I couldn ' t  h ave p res s u red or been a b le to given 

her t h i s  d r ive or i n c ent ive . 

I was a l so i n  4 - H  i n  my youth a n d  I s t i l l  remember a n d  u s e many of t h e  expe r i e n c e s  I h a d  at 

t h e State F a i r .  I ent e red i nto t h e  F a s hion revue a n d  decorative d i s p l ay a n d  I u s e  m a ny of 
t he s k i l l s  t h at I l e a rned to get to the State F a i r  in my d a i ly l ife as a tea c h e r  a n d  

e d u c ato r . I love t o  s ew a n d  look good and I know my experien c e  at t h e  F a s h i o n  Revue h e lped 

with t h i s . I know t h e  State F a i r  p a r t i c i p a n t s  wou l d  be adversely affected by l a c k  of f u n d i ng 

for t h i s  event . 

T h a n k  you for you r t i me a n d  I hope you a re a b le to s u p port t h i s  b i l l . 

Mrs . Loretta H a a s  
mot h e r  o f  C h a rmaine H a a s  a n d  
Tea c h e r  at N a poleon P u b l i c  s c hool 
N a poleon , ND 5 8 5 6 1  

1 



IIIII 

Beef Entries 

Dairy Entries 

Swine Entries 

Sheep Entries 

Goats/Llama Entries 

Poultry Entries 

Rabbit Entries 

Horse Entries 

Ag Products 

.. .. .. .. .. .. - - - -
ENTRIES 

1983 1 984 1986 1987 1988 1 989 1990 1991 1992 1 993 1 994 1995 1 996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 201 1  2012 

408 51 1 465 717 597 457 660 579 736 533 656 584 479 482 536 472 380 496 558 493 461 495 530 491 494 41 2 333 Flood 330 

262 243 421 313 335 435 379 391 424 228 254 184 126 124 212 222 259 122 98 199 307 102 129 154 133 125 153 Flood 1 1 4  

1 1 1  108 1 1 8  89 99 123 56 disease 89 137 146 107 1 1 1  93 90 279 155 434 422 527 617 566 599 512 461 427 464 Flood 429 

863 728 658 849 670 770 677 844 924 947 1 039 772 1 1 1 5  845 679 893 847 840 485 588 560 648 597 847 624 623 530 Flood 341 

122 1 02 82 o 79 28 21 82 68 108 1 1 4  152 108 1 1 2  99 91 62 60 58 56 75 84 130 102 1 1 0  1 00 109 Flood 157 

33 88 472 364 813 673 767 878 981 557 713 578 429 269 378 213 259 262 367 317 261 1 68 249 198 217 249 315 Flood 31 0 

44 41 65 41 1 1 3  82 127 1 24 159 182 186 243 318 1 149 1 388 1 204 796 547 549 871 1 089 899 592 1 220 1006 1 045 1 264 Flood 1498 

2603 2437 1 741 1821 1916 2137 2285 3510 3060 2805 3283 3862 3874 4030 3559 3841 5017 4741 4980 4833 4724 4379 3754 3041 2380 3106 3025 Flood 1496 

382 315 386 488 391 339 390 389 396 292 389 420 533 519 356 246 260 498 217 362 326 300 334 306 188 170 172 Flood 215 

Domestic Arts & Meatf 764 842 735 1 049 1 1 53 1 1 23 1 077 1860 1 064 870 857 981 779 718 785 821 727 826 583 736 671 710 723 589 448 502 501 Flood 527 

Sunflowers & Snacks 

Needlework 

Flowers 

Fine Arts 

Photography 

Number of FFA 

Number of 4-H 

School Entries 

Writing Entries 

Dairy Bake-off 

Crisco Contest 

Special Food Shows 

1 2  5 1 2  7 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Flood 0 

855 839 865 706 1 039 1 1 39 851 917 928 833 689 714 584 679 679 613 605 603 493 579 589 453 451 348 304 342 321 Flood 393 

312 263 564 493 490 449 476 471 637 523 542 736 436 396 537 543 548 607 406 907 948 971 920 920 948 1 002 739 Flood 561 

344 335 290 304 416 482 475 514 563 556 548 552 511 495 456 555 377 329 348 344 355 371 235 222 269 266 326 Flood 219 

359 444 492 468 725 611  575 555 517 354 357 322 426 497 472 483 433 365 438 448 533 455 451 506 410 464 6 1 5  Flood 543 

6308 6479 6629 8731 9737 9762 1 0019 1 0588 9598 9632 9636 1 0220 9362 10329 1 1 927 12718 14238 14282 1 5604 15534 1 7877 20168 21216 21405 1 8271 18960 22228 Flood 26393 

7017 7600 8430 9327 9793 1 0991 1 1635 1 0866 1 1 382 1 1 896 1 1 282 1 1 925 1 1489 1 1 099 1 0863 1 1 1 35 1 1 604 1 1575 1 1 909 12704 12475 1 1 783 1 1 021 1 0669 1 0374 1 0295 1 0039 Flood 9409 

1 385 1 648 1 745 2021 2586 2586 2979 2948 3129 3337 2285 2753 2779 3350 3535 3553 3805 4191 4671 4249 4061 41 59 3542 3175 3573 3474 3477 Flood 2555 

1 1 32 1 1 25 1200 750 780 700 566 475 490 440 451 293 427 365 255 270 400 304 430 350 150 150 100 452 100 125 140 Flood 316 

104 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Flood 0 

32 0 20 27 1 6  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Flood 0 

20 0 50 56 1 6  1 6  1 1  1 2  1 7  45 44 33 85 23 27 1 9  32 1 5  1 9  6 75 46 Flood QZ 
23,388 24,248 25,402 28,536 31 ,744 32,941 34,035 36,041 35,201 34,246 33,443 35.409 33,898 35,568 36,851 38,196 40,805 40,967 42,639 44,1 24 46,098 46,893 45,588 44,976 40,310 41 ,762 44,797 Flood 45,863 
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Asphalt Request 
After the flood of 2011, the Fairgrounds asphalt 

was left in desperate need of renewal. 
A request for $ 2,881,500 for an asphalt overlay is the 

number one request for capital improvement. 
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North Side of State Fair Center 

I 



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

North End of Grounds 
at Machinery Row 
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East End of Machinery Row Area 
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North End of the Grandstand Area 
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South End of the Grandstand Area 
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Gravel Request 
Gravel lots = 1,822,500 sq ft. 

Add gravel to these lots = $618,500.00 
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FAIR ANNUAL STATEMENT 
201 2 

201 2 

OPENING CASH $1 , 898,61 4.38 

RECEIPTS 

STORAGE $10 6,807. 50 

GROU NDS, BU ILDING, EQ RENTAL $938,731 . 60 

NODAK $27,457.30 

INDOOR $1 51 '178.63 

OUTDOOR $2 41 ,274.37 

INDEPENDENT $172 ,556.30 

CARNIVAL $297, 836.68 

GRANDSTAND $2 ,375,0 27.30 

OUTSIDE GATES $1 , 200 ,0 2 8.20 

CAMPING $1 66,297.00 

ENTRI ES & STALL FEES $33,194.00 

SPONSORSHIPS $355,50 2 .79 

MISCELLANEOUS $1 6,00 8.11 

BEER GARDENS $660 ,1 85.2 8 

STATE APPROP (PREMIUMS & BOND) $470 ,000 .00 

I NTEREST ON I NVESTMENTS $3,469.60 

WARD COUNTY MILL LEVY $378,0 21 . 89 

TOTAL FAI R REVENUE $7, 593,576. 55 

REVENUE PLUS OPENI NG CASH $9,492 ,190 .93 

TOTAL FAIR EXPENSE ($5,62 2 ,863.54) 

BALANCE SEPTEMBER 30 , 201 2 $3, 869,327.39 

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA FLOOD LOAN ($964,829.92 ) 

ENDING BALANCE $2 ,90 4,497.47 

201 1 

$3,1 83,092 .38 

$52 , 51 2 . 50 

$703,097.33 

$1 5,80 6.0 6 

$0 .00 

($42 5.00 ) 

($2 2 5.00 ) 

$644.00 

($34,950 .73) 

$2 ,1 53.00 

$650 .00 

$0 .00 

$195,0 47.21 

$8,90 2 . 21 

$0 .00 

$17,370 .1 8 

$8,438.37 

$370 ,42 4.35 

$1 ,339,444.48 



I 
FAIR ANNUAL STATEMENT I 201 2  

201 2 201 1 I EXPENSES 
SALARI ES & WAGES $1 ,206,431 .39 $1 ,041 ,81 6.08 

I BOARD M EETINGS/TRAVEL $52, 1 01 .26 $31 ,423.59 
STAFF TRAVEL/TRAIN ING $28,336.60 $22 , 1 66. 1 1  
UTILITIES $393,550.85 $269,268.06 

I TELEPHONE $1 9,579.99 $ 1 2 ,226.08 

RENT OF EQUIPMENT $9, 1 73.79 $4,573.20 
POSTAGE & FREIGHT $6,269.47 $ 1 1 ,954.85 I REPAIR EQUI PMENT $7,875.48 $1 0 ,876.43 
BU ILD INGS & GROUNDS MAINTENANCE $1 30,990.69 $ 1 69, 1 45. 1 4  
PROFESSIONAL FEES $321 ,616 .61  $64,21 9 .33 I I NSURANCE, DUES, MEMBERSHIPS,  T & L $64,520.38 $49,684.77 
OFFICE S UPPLIES $8,899.79 $7,566.65 
ADVERTIS ING $275,354.41 $209,445.40 I PROMOTIONS $45,432.28 $42,908.21 

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES $1 ,589.39 $2, 0 1 6.54 

GAS & OI L  $42,025.85 $34,306.77 I NEW EQUIPMENT $29,444 . 1 8  $63,401 .95 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS $251 ,807.83 $280,478.70 
BOND PAYMENTS $209 , 1 53.31 $208,885.89 I G RANDSTAND $1 ,932 , 1 35.37 $8,340 . 1 6  
OTHER ENTERTAINMENT $1 26,842 . 1 5  $6,937.61 

CONCESSIONAIRES $3,542.50 $1 , 1 4 1 .00 I 4-H $99,042.46 $ 1 0 ,942 .58 

FFA $1 36,728 . 1 7  $9,782.88 

BEEF $27 , 1 78.77 $5,557.86 I DAIRY $1 6,732.98 $1 ,353.22 

HORSES $68,61 5.39 $1 5,792.83 

SHEEP & WOOL $1 7,542.62 $1 ,471 .77 I SWINE $1 6,469.94 $1 ,276.47 

GOATS/LLAMAS $6,380.98 $369.41 

RABBITS $8,074.49 $1 ,31 4 .40 I POULTRY $3,776. 1 7  $426.69 

ARTS & CRAFTS $2 ,372.67 $543.61 

DOMESTIC ARTS $1 4,31 5.49 $2, 1 55.66 I EDUCATION $7,01 4.69 $3,580.24 

PHOTOGRAPHY $2,455.79 $605.62 

WRITING $971 .32 $1 83.68 I AG PRODUCTS $1 ' 1 50.08 $579.58 
GATES $27,367.96 $14 ,548.46 
TOTAL FAI R  EXPENSES $5,622 ,863.54 $2,623,267.48 I 

I 
I 



PROFESSION ALS 

Armored Car 
Attorney Fees 
Audit 

FEMA Audit 
Computer Back-up 

Bond Fee 
Carn ival Hookups 

Carn iva l I nspector 
Chair Setup for Hostfest 

Classified Ads 
Cleaning-Fair 
Clean ing-Hostfest/Rodeo 

Cleaning-Food Court 

l Cleaning-Races 
Combination Lock Changes 
Community Ambulance 

r Fair Golf Cart Rental 

Fair Paper Picking 
Fair Porta Pot Rental 

l Fair Garbage 
Fair Vet Services 

I 
Fire Alarm/Monitoring 

Health I nspector 
Help Wanted Ads 

I 
Mosquito Control 
Overflow Parking Attendants 
Photos 

I Publ icity 
Security 
Shuttle Service 

I Street Sweeper 

TOTAL 

f 
UTI LITIES 

I Electricity 

Garbage Hauling 
Natural gas 

f Sewer & Water 
TOTAL 

I 

Fair Annual  Statement 
Explanation of Expenses 

NEW EQU IPMENT 

$1 ,336.46 Bobcat 

$5,442.42 Deadwood Boxes 

$9,600.00 Garbage Cans 

$3,000.00 GS Plaque-Jerry Iverson 

$1 ,338.6 1 GrandstandTie-Off Harness 

$2,500.00 Pins-Hog/Sheep Panels 

$350.00 Radio 

$5,580.40 Security Camera 

$625.00 Table Covers 

$236.96 Ticketing System 

$47,850.00 Tires/Castors 
$8,730.00 Tools 

$6,800.00 TOTAL 

$ 1 5 , 1 50.00 
$85.00 

$625.00 C AP ITAL IM PROV E M ENTS 

$9,000.00 Go-Cart Track 

$5,500.00 Grandstand Concrete 

$1 0,475.00 Grandstand Construction 

$41 ,900.00 Grandstand Lights 

$3,095.00 GS Snow Retention System 
$3, 1 00.21 GS Stage Roof Anchors 

$1 07.00 Industrial Lot L ights 

$7,024.35 I ndustrial Lot Recycled Asphalt 

$3,050.00 Theater Overhead Door 

$1 ,250.00 State Fair Center HVAC Unit 
$29.95 Sprinkler System 

$1 ,200.00 TOTAL 

$ 1 2 1 ,265.25 
$4,000.00 GRAN DSTAN D 

$1 ,370.00 Catering 

$32 1 ,61 6.61 Entertainers 
Equipment 
Parade 

Payrol l  
Printing 

$269,772.54 Professionals 

$61 ,873.33 Rain I nsurance 
$41 ' 1 73.08 Sound 
$20,731 .90 Supplies 

$393, 550.85 TOTAL 

$1 ,600.00 

$1 27.92 
$945.00 

$620.00 

$500.00 
$1 64.44 

$3,336.00 
$7,870.38 

$1 ,391 .44 
$7,375.49 
$4,549. 1 1  

$964 .40 

$29,444 . 1 8 

$51 0.40 
$25,523.54 
($1 ,579.00) 

$5,835 . 1 4  
$63,028.46 

$4,223.72 
$36,680.07 
$80,200.00 

$7,085.50 

$1 8,000.00 
$ 1 2 ,300.00 

$251 ,807.83 

$1 4,241 . 1 5  

$ 1 ,709, 1 45.38 
$3,523.59 
$2,000.00 

$71 ,625.89 
$2,744.28 

$26,483.90 

$43,000.00 
$52,575.00 

$6,796.1 8 
$ 1 ,932,1 3 5.37 



I 

I 
I N S U RANCE, DUES, T & L PROMOTIONS I Dues & Memberships $3,991 .00 Ag Awards $237.69 
I nsurance $49,675.37 Ag Experience $1 ,257.98 
Flood I nsurance $1 1 ,052.00 Annual Meeting $755.00 I Tax & L icense $2.00 Annual Report $91 2 .36 
TOTAL $64,720.37 Award Pins $1 86.88 

Bus Services $ 1 1 ,200.00 I Christmas Party & Cards  $2,660.37 
CONCESSI ONAI RES Clippings $1  ' 1 85.80 
Picn ics $3,542.50 Co-op Day $349.05 I TOTAL $3,542 .50 Convention Auctions $91 .51  

DMX $486 . 1 2 
Family Day $300.00 I E NTERTAI N MENT STAGES Film Processing $39.08 

3 on  3 $ 1 31 .04 Flowers $279.95 
Amateur Talent $1 ,449.00 Media-Accommodations $4, 1 1 4.95 I Arm Wrestl ing $698.39 Merchandise $52 .74 
Cake/Cupcake Decorating $1 23.34 Motor Magic ($61 0 .03) 

I Clowns $3,039.00 NDSF Rodeo Queen $1 ,078.95 
Color The Fair $88.71 Photo I D'S $75.00 
Crop Plot $657.79 Photographers $1 ,267.00 

I Dakota Talent $2,264.33 Plaques $ 1 98.00 
Diaper Derby/Toddler Trot $31 8.93 Pride Day $300.00 
Fireworks $5,000.00 Printing $2, 1 35.26 

I Flickertai l  Gardens $1 2 ,678.25 Reader Board/Sign $200.00 
Fredd ie Fl ickertai l  $850.00 Refreshments/Committees $990.03 
Horse Pul l  $3,72 1 . 1 0  Shirts $299.50 

I Hot Dog Eating Contest $422.00 Signs $5,674.30 
Kids Clubhouse $2 ,083.32 Special Campaigns $968.09 
Pedal Pull $620.57 Special Display $697.70 

I Pony Pul l $2 ,265. 1 1  Special Friends $1 ,234.57 
Redneck Relay $70.86 Sponsor Support $6,634.43 
Run the Route $1 47.68 Video $ 1 80.00 

I Senior Festival ($1 ,474.06) TOTAL $45,432.28 

Showdeo $821 .05 
Stage 1 -Swam pmaster All igator $1 4,01 5.50 GATES 

I Stage 2-Juke Box Junkie $1 0,81 8.23 Supplies $535.82 
Stage 3-Welde Bear Show $16 , 1 00.00 Payrol l  $25,092.22 
Stage 4-Racing Pigs $2,91 7. 1 7  Pros $1 62.00 I Stage 5-Petting Zoo $ 1 0 , 1 60.00 Refunds $1 ,325.00 
Stage 6-Fur Traders $1 8,000.00 Printing $252.92 
Stage ?-Sports Extreme $1 1 ,599.90 TOTAL $27,367.96 I Strol l ing $7,254.94 

TOTAL $1 26,842. 1 5  BOND PAYOFF $428,842.29 

I 
I 



DEPARTM ENT EXPENSES 

r 
4- H HORSE 

l Prem iums $68,658 .52 Premiums $ 1 3 ,848. 40 

Hay & Straw $1 ' 1 70.00 Dues & Memberships $400. 00 

J udges $5,475.50 Hay & Straw $4,666.47 

I Supplies $343. 85 J udges $6,483.41 

Payrol l  $ 1 3,624.00 Supplies $39.59 

Picnics $1 ,91 1 .75 Payrol l  $ 1 5,947. 1 6  

Printing $3,470.44 Printing $3, 1 32.42 

Professionals $4,388.40 Professionals $23,522. 94 

TOTAL $99,042.46 Trophies $575.00 

TOTAL $54,766.99 

I FFA B E E F  

Premiums $1 28,962.03 Premiums $ 1 0,339.50 

Hay & Straw $1 ' 1 70.00 Hay & Straw $4,053.57 

I Judges $1 , 532.50 J udges $3,224.96 

Suppl ies $1 85.46 Supplies $81 . 52 

I 
Picnics $487.50 Payrol l  $2, 765.00 

Printing $2,259.90 Printing $287.98 

Professionals $2, 1 30.78 Professionals $6,426.24 

l TOTAL $7,766. 14  TOTAL $1 6,839.27 

SWIN E S H E E P  

I Premiums $7,231 .25 Premiums $8,5 1 3.75 

Hay & Straw $760.45 Hay & Straw $867.54 

J udges $2,925.60 J udges $2,496 . 3 1  

I Suppl ies $43.06 Supplies $47.83 

Payroll $1 ,91 9.50 Payrol l  $1 ,91 9 .50 

Printing $354.30 Printing $501 . 1 3  

I Professionals $3, 235 .78 Professionals $3, 1 96. 56 

TOTAL $9,238.69 TOTAL $9,028.87 

I DAIRY POULTRY 

Premiums $1 2 ,866.67 Premiums $876. 50 

l Hay & Straw $224.38 Hay & Straw $283.29 

Judges $798.00 J udges $358.00 

Supplies $244.24 Supplies $ 1 05 . 1 7  

I Payrol l  $683.00 Payrol l  $ 1 ,671 .75 

Printing $72.00 Printing $1 98.96 

Professionals $1 , 844.69 Professionals $282. 50 

I TOTAL $3,866.31 TOTAL $2,899.67 

I 



I 
I 

RABBITS GOATS I 
Premiums $578.75 Premiums $ 1 ,689.00 

Dues $25.00 Hay & Straw $ 1 67.09 I 
Hay & Straw $ 1 27. 1 1 J udges $3,031 .65 

J udges $4,860. 00 Supplies $50 .98 I S upplies $357. 1 0  Payrol l  $484.67 

Payroll $ 1 ,277.00 Printing $74.80 

Printing $729.53 Professionals $862. 79 I Professionals $ 1 20.00 Ribbons $20.00 

TOTAL $7,495.74 TOTAL $4,691 .98 

I 
PHOTOG RAPHY DOM ESTIC ARTS 

Premiums $ 1 ,232.00 Premiums $6,270.00 I 
J udges $300.00 J udges $ 1 , 885.00 

Suppl ies $42 . 1 9  Supplies $ 1 43 .38 

I Payrol l  $550.00 Payrol l  $4,690.69 

Printing $331 .60 Printing $ 1 , 326.42 

TOTAL $1 ,223.79 TOTAL $8,045.49 I 
E D UCATION ARTS & CRAFTS I Premiums $ 1 ,7 1 6.25 Premiums $ 1  ' 1 89.00 

Supplies $27.37 J udges $285.00 

Payroll $2,41 3.85 Supplies $ 1 49 .71  I Printing $2,857.22 Payrol l  $550.00 

TOTAL $5,298.44 Printing $ 1 98.96 

TOTAL $1 , 1 83.67 I 
AG P RODUCTS I Premiums $394.50 

Supplies $ 1 7.94 WRITI NG 

Payrol l  $605.00 Premiums $905.00 I Printing $ 1 32.64 Printing $66. 32 

TOTAL $755.58 TOTAL $971 .32 

I 
I 
1 
I 
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STATE FAIR GROWTH 

Year 

1977 

1978 

1979 

1980 

1981 

1982 

1983 

1984 

1985 

1986 

1987 

1988 

1989 

1990 

1991 

1992 

1993 

1994 

1995 

1 996 

1997 

1998 

1999 

2000 

2001 

2002 

2003 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

201 1 *** 

2012 

Attendance 

249,536 

258,674 

254,864 

251 ,345 

261 ,376 

285,067 

300,790 

296,597 

279,782 

237,314 

247,569 

248,267 

230,566 

226,949 

240,291 

244,236 

244,248 

250,150 

260,041 

248,154 

233,004 

236,140 

21 0,840 

206,584 

208,601 

21 1 , 1 26 

21 7,587 

243,024 

244,874 

247,970 

248,501 

239,449 

296,919 

308,641 

0 

310,839 

**Livestock 
Entries 

(Open Class Only) 
2,862 

2,703 

2,977 

2,772 

3,342 

3,746 

4,446 

4,258 

4,146 

4,022 

4,194 

4,622 

4,705 

4,972 

6,408 

6,441 

5,497 

6,391 

6,482 

6,568 

7,104 

6,941 

7,215 

8,371 

7,302 

7,517 

7,251 

8,094 

7,341 

6,580 

6,365 

5,476 

6,087 

6,193 

0 

4,675 

All 
FFA 

Entries 

1,210 

1,728 

1 ,846 

5,253 

7,171 

6,529 

6,308 

6,479 

6,352 

6,629 

8,731 

9,737 

. 9,762 

10,019 

1 0,588 

9,598 

9,632 

9,636 

10,220 

9,382 

1 0,329 

1 1 ,927 

12,718 

14,238 

14,282 

1 5,604 

1 5,534 

1 7,877 

20,168 

21,216 

21 ,405 

18,271 

18,961 

22,228 

0 

26,393 

All 
4-H 

Entries 

5,354 

5,492 

5,999 

6,310 

6,434 

6,257 

7,017 

7,600 

7,352 

8,430 

9,327 

9,793 

10,991 

1 1 ,635 

10,866 

1 1 ,382 

1 1 ,896 

1 1 ,282 

1 1 ,925 

1 1 ,489 

1 1 ,099 

1 0,863 

1 1 , 1 35 

1 1 ,604 

1 1 ,576 

1 1 ,909 

1 2,704 

1 2 ,475 

1 1 ,783 

1 1 ,021 

10,669 

1 0,374 

1 0,295 

1 0,039 

0 

9,409 
Jncome and Expenses Include State Prembn Appropriations and Bonding Assistance, but no State fu1ded CapiUI Improvements. 

"other Divisions include Ag Products, Domestic Arts, Needlework, Flowers, Arts & Crafts, Photography, Writing & Edueation. 

*Other 
Divisions 

3,768 

4,449 

5,000 

5,314 

5,143 

6,493 

6,617 

5,911 

5,872 

6,321 

6,284 

7,592 

7,483 

7,409 

8,179 

7,780 

7,221 

6,134 

6,782 

6,467 

7,036 

7,120 

7,128 

6,592 

7,808 

7,609 

8,002 

7,652 

7,601 

6,771 

6,637 

6,140 

6,420 

6,337 

0 

4,911 

-

Total 
Entries 

1 3,194 

1 4,372 

1 5,822 

1 9,649 

22,090 

22,025 

23,388 

24,248 

23,722 

25,402 

28,536 

31 ,744 

32,941 

34,035 

36,041 

35,201 

34,246 

33,443 

35,409 

33,896 

35,568 

36,851 

38,196 

40,805 

40,967 

42,639 

43,491 

46,098 

46,893 

45,588 

44,976 

40,261 

41 ,763 

44,797 

0 

45,388 

Premiums 
Paid 

$66,066 

$67,242 

$85,607 

$97,564 

$11 2,351 

$1 09,267 

$11 7,254 

$1 20,083 

$140,517 

$1 27,751 

$151 ,21 5 

$160,336 

$164,176 

$167,170 

$169,217 

$179,218 

$147,497 

$147,381 

$146,288 

$143,837 

$1 65,747 

$1 73,327 

$180,425 

$189,324 

$196,170 

$186,876 

$194,262 

$206,049 

$213,514 

$210,690 

$217,347 

$226,636 

$230,126 

$272,865 

$17,370 

$265,866 

Income 

$524,726 

$644,577 

$748,616 

$893,292 

$1 ,045,066 

$1 ,387,058 

$1 ,560,999 

$2,140,921 

$2,1 79,456 

$1 ,664,021 

$1 ,803,674 

$1 ,936,1 1 9  

$1 ,951,023 

$1 ,944,498 

$2,039,732 

$2,071 ,577 

$2,585,799 

$2,565,972 

$3,070,535 

$2,678,819 

$2,61 1 ,1 51 

$2,900,516 

$3,1 28,884 

$3,000,633 

$3,269,316 

$3,307,393 

$3,625,568 

$3,554,346 

$4,459,492 

$3,964,308 

$4,455,104 

$4,613,393 

$5,448,090 

$6,539,982 

$1 ,339,444 

$7,593,577 

Expenses 

$430,083 

$400,496 

$735,661 

$863,121 

$960,886 

$1 ,448,009 

$1 ,426,699 

$2,1 23,436 

$2,1 55,629 

$1,814,850 

$1 ,747,844 

$1 ,957,875 

$1 ,896,224 

$2,074,316 

$1 ,697,486 

$2,333,713 

$2,357,436 

$2,497,946 

$2,794,103 

$2,999,225 

$2,673,766 

$2,714,889 

$3,098,148 

$3,047,789 

$3,190,199 

$2,982,581 

$3,694,827 

$3,576,068 

$3,951 ,718 

$4,205,077 

$4,1 19,248 

$4,331,299 

$5,016,629 

$6,013,375 

$2,623,267 

$5,622,864 
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MAJOR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

Source of Revenue 

I 
(also includes State and Local support of facilities) 

The ND State Fair was authorized by the 1 965 State Legislature 
with the 1 st Fai r  held Ju ly 1 7-23 of 1 966. 

r YEAR PROJ ECT STATE FUNDS LOCAL FUNDS FAIR FU NDS 

1 969 4-H & F FA BARN $25,000 

I 1 /4 Mi le Race Track $20,000 

1 97 1  Horse Barn $1 6,000 $39 ,000 

I 1 975 Caretakers House $27,000 

I 
All Seasons Arena $500,000 $1 ,700,000 

1 976 FFA B u i ld ing $250,000 

I Horse Barn & Stal ls $200,000 
Paving & Lighting $94,000 $200,000 
Interest $28,7 1 3 

I 1 977 New Shop $ 1 1 ,000 
Kidd ies Barn $8,000 

I I nterest $29,423 

1 978 Warehouse $1 ,700 $3,000 

I Expo Barn & Stal ls & Wash $500,000 
Tra i ler Park $40,000 
Sewer/Water/Electric System $60,000 

I 3/8 Mi le Race Track $30 ,000 $25 ,000 
Security Fencing $75,000 

I 
Toi lets $27,000 
I nterest $23,779 

I 1 979 Grandstand Seats $35,000 
Jaycees B ui ld ing $60,000 
New Sidewalks $8 ,000 

I I nterest $ 1 6 ,658 

1 980 Avenue of Flags $2,500 $2,500 

I Crops & Gardens B ldg $70,000 
Parking Lot - Land $95,000 
I nterest $ 1 3 ,976 

I 1 981  Fencing $5 ,91 3 
Paving Around Barns $60, 1 70 

I Front S ign  $5,980 
Sewer & Water Drains on Ind .  Midway $4, 1 25 

I 
Parking Barriers & Signs $3, 1 60 
Expand ing Outdoor Horse Arena $1 ,000 
I nterest $ 1 2 , 524 

I 



CONTIN UED MAJOR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS I 
YEAR PROJECT STATE FU NDS LOCAL F UNDS FAIR FUNDS 

I 1 982 Expand ing Outdoor Horse Arena $1 ,000 
Landscape Machinery Area South of Com.  Bldg.  $3,000 
New Aluminum Seats for Grandstand Bleachers $40 ,000 I New Stal ls  for Goats & Sheep $7,500 
New Parking Lot S ign $6 ,250 
Fencing East Lot $4,000 I New Stage $49,000 
1 st Phase of E lectrical $6 ,440 
Renovation $1 1 0,600 I Steel Post & Chain Fences Around Grounds $1 0 ,038 
Concrete Benches $650 

I Beer Garden Add ition $6 , 500 $8 ,868 
E lectrical Service for Oi l  Show $ 1 ,400 
Construction Parking Lot N of Grounds $7,300 I Stage $48,658 
Pave Shuttle Bus Route $2 ,004 
I nterest $ 1 1 ,847 I 

1 983 Stage Cover $7,800 $ 1 5 ,800 
E lectrical $39,400 $38 ,61 4  I Comfort Station $73,022 
Signage $5,652 
S heriff's Office $1 ,029 I Landscap ing $1 ,094 
Livestock Pens $3,8 1 5 
I nterest $ 1 0 ,007 I 

1 984 Parking Lot Landscaping $23,852 
Trees & S hrubs $1 ,999 I Signage $6 ,565 
Grandstand Gates & Entries $2 ,7 1 0 
Ticket Office Add ition $4, 1 94 I Pave Front of Grandstand $8,800 
Curbs $2 ,970 

I I n-field Transformer $2, 700 
Spotl ight Stand $750 
Commercial Bui lding I I  $473 ,324 I Comfort Station Architect $960 
Landscap ing at Stage I I ,  Remove Road $6,877 
I nterest $ 1 8,601 I 

1 985 All Seasons Arena Companion Structure 
& Office u nder contract with interest I payments pledged as of 1 /8/85 $ 1 ,486,41 8  $433,658 

Landscape around Pond $590 
Paving Front Grandstand $5,325 I Remodel Picnic Area $4,459 

I 



CONTIN UED MAJOR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

YEAR PROJECT STATE FUNDS LOCAL FUNDS FAIR FUN DS 

1 986 S ignage $764 
Trees $1 ,080 
Waterl ine $8,678 
Beer Gardens $263,633 
I nterest $25,950 $44,338 

I Paving West Arena $45,000 $22 ,961  
Sewer Improvement $1 66 , 1 8 1  $ 1 ,908 
Paving $1 3,775 

I Beer Gardens Heating $24,6 1 1 
Beer Gardens Fencing $1 ' 1 42 
Concessions Area Arena I I  $21 ,21 0  

1 Land $70,000 
Arches $6,733 
East Parking Lot Paving $420 

I Trees $320 
I nterest $88,234 $70,423 

( 1 987 Arches $35,000 $23,673 
Paving by Arch $9,845 $8,600 
Dairy Barn Lighting $1 ,041 

I Morton Shop $9,357 
Stage I l l  $4,800 
I nterest $78 , 1 52 $1 20,339 

I 1 988 Cultura l  Concessions Area $8,057 
Cu ltural Bui ld ing 

l Theater/Conference Room/ 
Kitchen/Equ ipment/Restrooms $1 ,594,660 $1 ,377,706 

Parking Lot 

l Gym Dandy's Center $70,000 $330,000 
Dressing Room $7,920 

I 
Backstage Bathroom $1 ,884 
Free Stage $1 ,000 
Defaulted Pledges ($357,000) $357,000 

I Pedestrian Control  $3,937 
Restaurant I $60, 1 1 9  
Honeywel l  Air Cleaners $1 ,825 

I I nterest $65,595 $86,831 

1 989 Carnival  Bathroom $1 4,605 

I Commercial I l l/Sidewalk $8,424 
Gate Change/Shuttle Route $1 0,055 
Dress ing Rooms $2,70 1 

r Pepsi Gate $1 5 ,000 $1 ,569 
Restau rant I I  $ 1 06,045 
Visib i l ity Barrier Fence $3 , 1 35 

r State Appropriation $201 ,027 ($201 ,027) 
Interest $73,975 $71 ,547 

I 



CONTINUED MAJOR CAPITAL IM PROVEM E NTS I 
YEAR PROJECT STATE FU NDS LOCAL FU NDS FAIR FUNDS 

1 990 Camping $5, 1 76 I Comm 1 1/Heating & Air $ 1 39,559 
Comm II Restaurant $86,706 I Horse Barn $3,000 
Beer Gardens/Concrete $443 
Shuttle Route $1 ,849 I Coffee Room $495 
State Appropriation $2 1 0 ,000 ($2 1 0,000) 
I nterest $72 ,821 $247,093 I 

1 99 1  Camping/Eiec/Sewer $7,200 $1 0,000 

I Comm 1 1/Heat, Air, Lights $5 ,727  
Horse Barn 1 1/Liner $ 1 ,31 2  
Cultura l  B ldg/Arbitration $1 3,834 I Ticket Booths $3, 1 79 
Ticket Office/Electric $545 
Hand icap Access/Grandstand $3,597 I Land $5 ,000 
Surface Drainage/Culverts $ 1 ,400 
Arena I Retrofit $370,000 I I nterest $329 ,883 

1 992 Expo Barn Concrete $27,339 I Fence $6,293 
Ticket Booths $3,8 1 0 
State Appropriations $2 1 0 ,000 ($2 1 0,000) I I nterest $261 ,620 

1 993 Horse Barn Concrete $74, 1 1 6  I City/Arena Maintenance Repai rs $30,000 
State Appropriations $2 1 0 ,000 ($2 1 0 ,000) 
Interest $239,41 4 

I 
1 994 West Lot $225,645 $27,626 

Barn Moving $1 1 9 ,350 I Grandstand Restrooms $40 ,407 
County/Bui ld ing & Grounds Repair  $57,524 
City/Arena Maintenance Repairs $80,000 I I nterest $303,850 

1 995 West Lot $ 1 9 ,550 I Moving Reader Board Sign $7,350 
East Lot $30,000 $20,000 $91 ,261 
City/Arena Maintenance Repairs $80,000 I County/Bui ld ing & Grounds Repair  $67, 8 1 8  
State Appropriations $2 1 0 ,000 ($2 1 0,000) 
I nterest/Debt Service $1 86 ,333 I 

I 



I CONTIN UED MAJOR CAPITAL IMPROVEM ENTS 

YEAR PROJECT STATE FU NDS LOCAL FUNDS FAIR FU NDS 

I 1 996 Midway Transformer $1 ,000 
Midway Parking $24,709 
Stage Roof $ 1 1 9,233 

f Street L ights $5, 500 
City/Arena Maintenance Repairs $80,000 

I 
County/Bui ld ing & Grounds Repai r  $69,849 
Interest $ 1 79 ,3 1 9  
Flickertai l  Concrete $4,358 

I 
Game a nd Fish $1 03,000 
Pond Fou ntain $2,324 
S prinkler System $3,828 

I 
City/Arena Maintenance Repai rs $80,000 
County/Bui ld ing & Grounds Repair $68 ,870 
State Appropriations $21 0,000 ($21 0,000) 

I 
I nterest $ 1 71 ,886 

1 998 Flat Track - Drag Strip $290,344 
County/Bui ld ing & Grounds Repair $85 ,678 

I City/Arena Maintenance Repair  $80,000 
Arena I Restrooms $70,000 
Pond Founta in  $674 

l Ground s  Keeper's Garage $ 1 1 ,008 
Grounds Keeper's House $5,230 

l 
I nterest $ 1 65,602 
Expansion $241 ,881 $4,664 

1 999 New Asphalt $ 1 1 2 ,049 

l Fence Relocation North of Fair $7,782 
North Road Relocation $50,000 $ 1 2 ,500 
Pavi l ion Project $829 

l E lectrical for Machinery Row $ 1 5 ,487 
West Lot Camping Improvements $ 1 1 , 78 1  

' East Lot Fence Remove/Replace $41 0  
I ndustrial  Lot Gravel $51 ,000 
Gate Repair/I nstal l  Barrier $835 

r City/Arena Maintenance $80 ,000 
County $91 ,605 
City/Magic Place $6,91 6,560 
State Appropriations $21 0,000 ($2 1 0 ,000) 
I nterest $ 1 56 , 1 84 

2000 City/Magic Place/Renovation $1 ,445, 5 1 9  
City $57,566 
Kiddie barn relocation/parking $ 1 6,683 
Porter land $6,000 
Porter land fencing $2,324 
State Fa ir  Park $33,090 
West lot camping $9, 1 1 9  
County $95,328 
I nterest $ 1 48, 1 37 



CONTIN UED MAJOR CAPITAL IM PROVEMENTS I 
YEAR PROJ ECT STATE FUNDS LOCAL FU NDS FAIR FUNDS 

I 2001 Carn ival lot relocation $93,892 
S uper Cross Track $30,000 
S uper Cross Fence $1 5 ,000 I Super Cross Water Point $6,000 
State Appropriations $2 1 0,000 ($2 1 0 ,000) 
City $95 , 320 I County $1 80 , 1 40 
I nterest $ 1 38,066 

I 2002 Asphalt $32 ,2 1 0  
Camping E lectrical East Lot $ 1 5 ,030 I Camping E lectrical West Lot $ 1 0 , 1 04 
Office Cupboards $ 1 ,942 
City $99,68 1 I County $1 90,367 
I nterest $ 1 35 ,639 

2003 Air Cond itioned Jaycees $7,322 I 
Air Cond itioned Commercial I $29,268 
City $1 00,965 I County $1 95,6 1 5 
East Lot Electrical Upgrade $9 ,271 

I Gate Arches $32 ,498 
Midway Restrooms $1 54,62 1 
Office Cupboards and Desks $3,51 9 I State Appro riations $21 0 ,000 ($2 1 0 ,000) 
Street Light (sand box) $ 1 ,284 
I nterest $83,597 

I 
2004 Arena Hal lway Flooring $59,249 

City $ 1 1 6 ,240 I County $203,393 
I ndependent M idway Renovation $31 ,41 2 
I nterest I Office Cupboards and Desks $2 , 1 76 
Street L ight $2 ,408 

I West Lot E lectrical Upgrade $6,200 
I nterest $79,541 

2005 E lectrical Upgrades $1 1 ,538 I City $1 33,300 
County $21 2 ,371 

I Gate Arches Lighting $1 ,91 7 
Office Cupboards $1 ,230 
State Appropriations $2 1 0 ,000 ($2 1 0 ,000) I West Lot E lectrical Upgrade $50 ,31 1 $23,852 
I nterest $73,073 

I 



CONTIN UED MAJOR CAPITAL IM PROVEM ENTS 

YEAR PROJ ECT STATE FUNDS LOCAL FUNDS FAIR FU NDS 
2006 All Seasons Arena Seating Upgrade $500 ,395 $200 ,000 

City $1 1 5 ,000 
County $220,000 
East Lot RV $1 1 3 ,261 
West Lot Electrical & G rass Lots $2,500 
I nterest $65 ,41 0 

2007 All Seasons Arena Seating Upgrade $7 ,51 1 $26,940 
Asphalt $28,488 
City $ 1 69,495 
County $236 , 789 
Expo Barn Fan $ 1 4,258 
East Lot RV $4,31 2 
I nterest $52,365 
State Appropriations $2 1 0,000 ($2 1 0 ,000) 

2008 Asphalt $2, 1 57 
City $235 ,828 
County $281 ,032 
Electrical RV Upgrade $1 5 ,500 
Commercial I l l  Air Cond it ioner $36,069 
Grandstand Project $1 20,200 
I nterest $43 , 586 

2009 Arena I Break Room $ 1 0 ,385 
Ashpalt $234,356 
Electrical Upgrade East Lot RV $39,61 7 
Electrical Upgrade Carn iva l RV $9,737 
Electrical Upgrade South HB I I  $ 1 5 ,000 
FFA Air Conditioner $ 1 8 ,505 
Grandstand Approp 2007-2009 $1 29,800 $4,046 
Grandstand Approp 2009-20 1 1  $969,986 
I nterest Paid $34,861 
North Road $1 2 ,500 
Umbrel la's Food Court $ 1 9,351 
City $260,885 
County $284, 1 98 
State Appropriations $21 0,000 ($2 1 0 ,000) 

201 0 I ndustrial Lot Regrade $1 8 ,925 
Umbrella's Food Court $23, 1 59 
West Lot Comfort Station $30 ,500 $1 56, 1 53 
Carpet-Norsk Room & T Js  $7,370 
N ight Deposit Vault $4,769 
East Lot RV Embankment $25,000 
Electrical Upgrade Carn ival RV $7,360 
Expo Barn Re-Roof Wings $34,2 1 0  
Food Court Uti l ities $33,855 



CONTINUED MAJOR CAPITAL IM PROVEMENTS I 
YEAR PROJECT STATE FU NDS LOCAL FU NDS FAIR FUNDS 

201 0 Regrade West Lot $ 1 0,066 I (cant) Ticket Booth $7,237 
Asphalt $ 1 02,751 

I City $297,787 
County $335,795 
I nterest $31 ,999 I Grandstand $1 3,003,452 $58,0 1 9  

201 1 Asphalt $59, 1 57 I Grandstand $1 ,026,562 $95,699 
Grounds Keeper House $45,355 

I I ndustrial Lot Power $84, 1 55 
Interest $21 ' 1 1 1  
State Fair Center Lobby Piers $ 1 2 ,623 I Ticket Booth $6,679 
Umbrella's Food Court $ 1 9,498 
West Lot Comfort Station $9,987 I West Lot E lectric Upgrade $3,984 
City $408 , 1 88 
County $370,424 I 

201 2  Asphalt $241 ,083 I Grandstand Concrete $25,524 
Grandstand Snow Retention System $63,028 
Grandstand Stage Roof Anchors $4,224 I I ndustria l  Lot Lights $36,680 
I ndustria l  Lot Asphalt $80,200 

I I nterest $38,409 
Pond Fence $1 6,230 
Re-Seed Grass $2 ,600 I Regrade Dirt South of Horse Barn I I  $4,000 
RV Booth $3,96 1 
Sprinkler System $1 4,499 I State Fair Center HVAC Unit $ 1 8 ,000 
Theater Overhead Door $7,086 

I West Lot Gravel $29,666 
City $492,775 
Cou nty $378,022 I State Appropriations $2 1 0,000 ($2 1 0,000) 

Misc. Items Listed $835,29 1 I 
TOTAL = $20,061 ,028 $22,953, 772 $9 , 750,982 I 

I 
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1 966 MAJOR I MPROVEMENTS: Non-specified improvements include the purchase of props, 
tables, chairs ,  d isplay curtains,  stock panels, tractors, vehicles and other equ ipment. The 

remodel ing of the p lumbing of 3 bathrooms in the Arts & Crafts Bui ld ing ;  the remodel ing of 

the grandstand ticket office; the add ition of a mens toi let in the Arts & Crafts Bu i ld ing ;  
$8,000 worth of hand dryers; new staging; sodding of bou levards; replanting of grass; 
remodel ing of the beer gardens & 4-H bui ld ing;  ticket booths; insta l lation of new gates, 
fences & d ividers; the demolition of two horse barns, the old hog & sheep barn , two race 
barns,  an old log barn , two houses & the old office. The construction of a show mobile 
stage; a new underground drainage system; dredging of the pond; construction of a 
horse arena; cattle tie outs; new parking lot roadway & l ights; a luminum benches; more 
portable bleachers; a luminum picnic tables; re-roofing of the dairy barn ;  painting of the 
domestic a rts bui ld ing,  beef barn & dairy barn ;  new soffits on the horse barn ; miscel laneous 
fencing; remodel ing the pub bar & d iaper stations; painting the grandstand . Over 
$835 ,291 worth of additional significant changes & improvements. 

***Major im provements do not i nclude general routine mai ntenance repairs, the purchase of consumable 

suppl ies, or replacement of equipment. 

Footnote: A small portion of the i nterest credited to the support of Fair fu nd ing from 1976-1 984 could 
possibly be credited to local fu nds .  
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��� 
EideBailly" 

� 
CPA< & BLJSlNE .. 'iS AIWISORS 

To the Members of the Board of Directors 
North Dakota State Fair Association 
Minot, North Dakota 

We have audited the financial statements of the North Dakota State Fair Association for the year ended 
September 30, 20 12 .  Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our 
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards (and, if applicable, Government Auditing 
Standards and OMB Circular A- 1 33), as well as certain information related to the planned scope and 
timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated November 5 ,  
20 1 2. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related 
to our audit. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by North Dakota State Fair Association are described in Note 1 to the financial 
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not 
changed during 20 1 2. We noted no transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the year for 
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been 
recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the financial statements was: 

Management's estimate of the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts is based on historical loss levels 
and an analysis of the collectability of individual accounts. We evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used to develop the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts in determining that it is 
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

w w w .  e i d e b o  i l l y. c o m  
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Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management, there were no such misstatements in the current year. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the 
course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated November 5, 20 1 2. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation involves 
application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit' s  financial statements or a determination 
of the type of auditor' s  opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards 
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant 
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit 's  auditors. However, 
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were 
not a condition to our retention. 

Other Matters 

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain 
inquiries of management and evaluated the fonn, content, and methods of preparing the information to 
detennine that the infonnation complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information 
is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and 
reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 
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This information is intended solely for the use of Board of Directors and management of North Dakota 
State Fair Association and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

�� ..<L7''' 
Bismarck, North Dakota 
November 5, 20 12  
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Financial Statements 
September 30, 20 1 2  and 20 1 1 

North Dakota State Fa i r  Association 

w w w .  e i d  e b a  i l l y. c o m  
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The Board of Directors 
North Dakota State Fair Association 
Minot, North Dakota 

�M»-"" 
EideBailly�, 

� 
CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS 

Independent Auditor's Report 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the North 
Dakota State Fair Association, enterprise fund of the State of North Dakota, as of and for the years ended 
September 30, 20 1 2  and 201 1 ,  which comprise the Association's  basic fmancial statements as listed in the 
table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the North Dakota State Fair 
Association's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

As discussed in Note I ,  the financial statements of the North Dakota State Fair Association are intended 
to present the financial position, changes in financial position, and cash flows of the State ofNorth 
Dakota that are attributable to the transactions of the North Dakota State Fair Association. They do not 
purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the State of North Dakota as of September 
30, 20 12  and 20 1 1 and the changes in financial position and cash flows for the years ended in corifonnity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the North Dakota State Fair Association as of September 30, 20 1 2  and 
201 1 ,  and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

w w w .  e i d e b o i l l y . c o m  
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated November 5, 
20 1 2, on our consideration ofNorth Dakota State Fair Association's internal control over fmancial 
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in 
assessing the results of our audit. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 6 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's  responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Bismarck, North Dakota 
November 5, 20 1 2  
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North Dakota State Fair Association 

Management's  Discussion and Analysis 
September 30, 20 12  

This section of the Association's annual financial report presents our analysis of  the financial performance during 
the fiscal year that ended September 30, 20 12.  Please read it in conjunction with the fmancial statements, which 
follow this section. 

Financial Highlights 

• During fiscal year 20 1 2, the Association had a successful Fair. 
• During fiscal year 201 1 ,  the Association cancelled the Fair due to flooding. 
• During fiscal year 20 12, the Association's  net assets increased by $ 1 , 1 23,046 or 4.36%. 
• During fiscal year 20 1 1 ,  the Association's net assets decreased by $2,0 1 6,943 or -7.3%. 
• During fiscal year 20 1 0, the Association's net assets increased by $ 1 4,3 1 5 , 1 38 or 1 06.2%. 
• In 20 1 2, the Association's operating revenues increased $5,547,354 or 427%, while operating expenses 

increased $3, 1 92,066 or 84.2%. 
• During fiscal year 20 1 1 ,  the Association's operating revenues decreased by $4,662,75 1 or -78 .2 1 %  
• During fiscal year 20 1 0, the Association's operating revenues increased $762,639 or 1 4.6%, while 

operating expenses increased $678,340 or 1 1 %. 
• In fiscal year 20 12, fair revenues increased to $6,652,773 or 543% over fiscal year 201 1 .  
• Fair revenues in fiscal year 201 1 decreased to $ 1 ,034,986 or -82%. 
• Fair revenues in fiscal year 20 10 increased to $5,728,8 1 8  or 1 7.7% over 2009. 
• During fiscal year 20 12, the property and equipment additions totaled 1 ,387, 1 9 1 .  
• During fiscal year 20 1 1 ,  the property and equipment additions totaled $335,448. 
• During fiscal year 20 1 0, the property and equipment additions totaled $15,877,444. 
• Depreciation expense for the current fiscal year 20 12  totaled $ 1 ,332,486. 
• Depreciation expense for fiscal year 20 1 1  totaled $ 1 ,3 1 7,930. 
• Depreciation expense for fiscal year 20 1 0  totaled $ 1 ,035,825. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This annual report consists of three parts: Management's Discussion and Analysis, Financial Statements, and 
Supplementary Information. The Financial Statements also include notes that explain in more detail some of the 
information in the financial statements. 

Required Financial Statements 

The Financial Statements of the Association report information about the Association using accounting methods 
similar to those used by private sector companies. These statements offer short and long-term financial 
information about its activities. The Balance Sheet includes all of the Association's assets and liabilities and 
provides information about the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to 
Association creditors (liabilities). It also provides the basis for computing rate of return, evaluating the capital 
structure of the Association and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the Association. All of the 
current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Net Assets. 
This statement measures the success of the Association's operations over the past year and can be used to 
determine whether the Association has successfully recovered all its costs through its user fees and other charges, 
profitability and credit worthiness. The final required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows. The 
primary purpose of this statement is to provide information about the Association's cash receipts and cash 
payments during the reporting period. The statement reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash 
resulting from operations, investing, and financing activities and provides answers to such questions as where did 
cash come from, what was cash used for, and what was the change in cash balance during the reporting period. 
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Financial Analysis of the Association 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
September 30, 20 1 2  

One of  the most important questions asked about the Association's finances i s  "Is the Association as a whole 
better off or worse off as a result of the year's activities?" The Balance Sheet, and the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Assets report information about the Association' s  activities in a way that will help 
answer this question. These two statements report the net assets of the Association and changes in them. You can 
think of the Association's net assets-the difference between assets and liabilities-as one way to measure financial 
health or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Association's  net assets are one indicator of 
whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, you will need to consider other non-financial 
factors such as changes in economic conditions, population declines, and competitive forms of entertainment. 

Net Assets 

To begin our analysis, a summary of the Association's Balance Sheets is presented in the following: 

Condensed Balance Sheets 

(In Thousands of Dollars) 

Total 
Dollar Percent 

20 1 2  201 1  201 0  Change Change 

Current and other assets $ 4,637 $ 5,734 $ 5,1 57 $ ( 1 ,097) - 1 9. 1 3% 
Capital assets 23,447 23,405 24,40 1 42 0. 1 8% 

Total assets $ 28,084 $ 29, 139 $ 29,558 $ ( 1 ,055) -3.62% 

Long-term debt outstanding $ $ 4 19  $ 595 $ (4 1 9) - 1 00.00% 
Other liabilities 1 ,1 84 2,943 1 , 1 69 ( 1 ,759) -59.77% 

Total lia bilities $ 1 , 1 84 $ 3,362 $ 1 ,764 $ {2,1 78) -64.78% 

Invested in capital assets, 
net of related debt $ 23,447 $ 22,987 $ 23,806 $ 460 2.00% 

Restricted 470 472 (470) - 1 00.00% 
Unrestricted 3,453 2,320 3,5 16  1 , 1 33 48.84% 

Total net assets $ 26,900 $ 25,777 $ 27,794 $ 1 , 1 23 4.36% 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

As can be seen from the table above, net assets increased over $ 1  million. The increase is due to the Fair resuming I 
operations this year after last years' Fair being cancelled due to the flooding of the Fairgrounds. Total liabilities 
decreased $2, 1 78,000 to $ 1 , 1 84,000 due to the payoff of the bond and payment on all flood contracts that were 1 payable at 20 1 1 year end. 

Net assets decreased over $2 million in fiscal year 20 1 1 from fiscal year 20 10. The decrease was due to the 
flooding of the ND State Fairgrounds and lost revenue due to the cancellation of the 20 1 1 ND State Fair. Total I liabilities increased from $ 1 ,764,000 in 20 10 to $3,362,000 in 20 1 1 due to flood contracts payable. 
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North Dakota State Fair Association 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
September 30, 20 12  

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 

(In Thousands of Dollars) 
Total 

Dollar Percent 

2012 201 1  2010 Change Change 

Operating Revenues 

Fair proceeds and other revenue $ 6,653 $ 1 ,035 $ 5,728 $ 5,6 18  542.80% 

A rena revenue 1 77 255 2 1 0  (78) -30.59% 

Other revenue 16 9 23 7 77.78% 

6,846 1,299 5,96 1 5,547 427.02% 

Nonoperating Revenues 

Local grants 1 , 1 7 1  779 634 392 50.32% 

Interest and investment income 3 6 8 (3) -50.00% 

(Loss)/Gain on s ale of flxed assets (1)  (54) ( 1 )  0.00% 

1 , 1 73 785 588 388 49.43% 

Total Revenue 8,0 19  2,084 6,549 5,935 284.79% 

Operating Expenses 

General expenses 3,860 1 , 1 63 4,076 2,697 23 1 .90% 

Depreciation expense 1,332 1 ,3 1 8  1 ,036 14 1 .06% 

Salaries, wages and vacation pay 1 ,524 1,310 1,291 2 14 16.34% 

Premiums, trophies and awards 266 17 273 249 1464.7 1 %  

6,982 3,808 6,676 3 , 174 83.35% 

Non Operating Expenses 

Interest expense 38 21 29 17 80.95% 

Bond issuance costs 3 3 (2) -66.67% 

Amortization 1 9 9 (8) -88.89% 

40 33 4 1  7 2 1 .21% 

Total Expenses 7,022 3,841 6,7 1 7  3 , 1 8 1  82.82% 

Extraordinary Items 

FEMA grants 1 ,424 2,569 { 1 , 1 45) 100% 

Flood expenditures ( 1 ,768) (2,846) 1 ,078 100% 

Trans fers -

State Appropriations 470 1 7  14,483 453 2664.71% 

Change in Net Assets 1 , 123 (2,0 17) 14,3 1 5  3,140 

Net A ssets, Beginning ofYear 25,777 27,794 13,479 (2,01 7) 

Net A ssets, End ofYear $ 26,900 $ 25,777 $ 27,794 $ 1 , 123 4.36% 

While the Balance Sheet shows the change in financial position of net assets, the Statement ofRevenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets, provides answers as to the nature and source of these changes. As can be 
seen above, there is an increase in net assets due to revenues from the 20 1 2  ND State Fair, flooding in 20 1 1 
caused the cancellation of the 20 1 1  ND State Fair. 
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Capital Assets 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Management' s Discussion and Analysis 
September 30, 20 1 2  

As of  September 30, 20 1 2  and September 30, 201 1 ,  the Association had invested more than $4 1 million in 
infrastructure including land, buildings, improvements and equipment. Approximately 96 percent of that total is 
related to land and structures. Maintenance and upkeep of those structures and improvements is a continual 
ongoing process for the Association. Annual yearly costs for building and grounds upkeep exceed $665 thousand, 
excluding payroll costs for Association employees engaged in repair and upkeep procedures. 

Current year additions to the capital asset category totaled approximately $ 1 ,387, 1 9 1 .  See footnote 4 for 
additional details. 

Long-Term Bond Debt 

At year end, the Association had no long or short-term bond debt down from $420 thousand in the prior year. The 
decrease is due to the payoff of the debt. See footnote 5 for additional details. In fiscal year 20 1 1 ,  the 
Association had $420 thousand in long and short-term bond debt down from $605 thousand in fiscal year 20 1 0  for 
a decrease of 30.6 percent. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Operations 

The North Dakota State Fair Association is in the entertainment business, and as such is dependent upon many 
factors affecting the entertainment spending decisions of its customers. Factors such as condition of the 
agriculture economy, oil industry, Minot Air Force Base, Canadian exchange rates, weather, and competing 
entertainment providers such as casinos can all have significant impact on turnout for the annual State Fair. Fair 
attendance figures increased the past year because of the strong local economy. 

Contacting the Association's Financial Manager 

This financial report is designed to provide our state citizens, customers, and creditors with a general overview of 
the Association's  finances and to demonstrate the Association's  accountability for the money it receives. If you 
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the North Dakota State Fair 
Association office at P.O. Box 1 796, Minot, ND 58702- 1 796. 
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Assets 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for 

uncollectible accounts (201 2  and 201 1 - $50,000) 
FEMA receivable - due from Federal Government 
P repaid items 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent Assets 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted investment, at fair value 
Unamortized bond issuance costs 
Capital assets 

Land 
Infrastructure 
Buildings 
Equipment 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

See Notes to Financial Statements 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Balance Sheets 
September 30, 20 12  and 20 1 1 

201 2  201 1  

$ 4,237,422 $ 2,541 ,701 

28,741 1 14,275 
330,801 2,569,030 

39,760 38,702 

4,636,724 5,263,708 

250,871  
2 1 9,055 

556 

390,8 16  390,8 1 6  
3,776,1 56 3,6 1 3,28 1 

35,741 ,352 34,728, 1 1 2  
1 ,859,469 1 ,758, 1 07 

( 1 8,320,5 1 1) ( 1 7,085, 1 1 5) 

23,447,282 23,875,683 

$ 28,084,006 $ 29, 1 39,391  



Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current Liabilities 
Trade accounts payable 
Flood contracts payable 
Accrued interest payable 
Current portion of accrued employee leave 
Current portion of flood loan payable 
Bonds payable, net of unamortized 

discount (201 1 - $ 1 ,461)  
Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Accrued employee leave, net of current portion 
Flood loan payable 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for debt service 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Balance Sheets 
September 30, 20 12  and 201 1  

201 2  201 1  

$ 1 1 3, 10 1  $ 20,990 
1 ,798,685 

36,006 6,440 
45,000 30,000 

964,830 

4 1 8,539 
1 , 1 58,937 2,274,654 

24,856 3 1 ,777 
1 ,055,793 

24,856 1 ,087,570 

1 , 1 83,793 3,362,224 

23,447,282 22,986,662 
469,926 

3,452,93 1 2,320,579 
26,900,21 3  25,777,1 67 

$ 28,084,006 $ 29, 1 39,391 
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North Dakota State Fair Association 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 
Years Ended September 30, 20 12 and 201 1 

201 2  201 1 
Operating Revenues 

Fair proceeds and other revenue $ 6,652,773 $ 1 ,035,336 
Arena revenue 1 77,423 254,61 2  
Other revenue 1 6,008 8,902 

Total operating revenues 6,846,204 1 ,298,850 

Operating Expenses 
CJeneral expenses 3,860,393 1 , 1 46,129 
Depreciation expense 1 ,332,486 1 ,3 1 7,930 
Salaries, wages and vacation pay 1 ,524,491 1 ,309,721 
Premiums, trophies and awards 265,868 1 7,392 

Total operating expenses 6,983,238 3,79 1 , 1 72 

Operating Loss �137,034� �2,492,322) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 
Local grants 1 , 170,797 778,609 
Interest and investment income 3,232 8,440 
Net decrease in fair value of investments ( 1 ,930) 
Loss on disposal of fixed assets (535) 
Interest expense (38,409) (2 1 , 1 1 1 ) 
Bond issuance costs (555) (3,335) 
Amortization of bond discount (1,461) (8,754) 

Total nonoperating revenues 1 , 1 33,069 75 1 ,9 19  

Gain (Loss) Before Extraordinary Items & Transfers 996,035 ( 1 ,740,403) 

Extraordinary Items 
FEMA grants 1 ,424,750 2,569,030 
Flood expenditures ( 1 ,767,739) (2,862,940) 

Transfers - State Appropriations 470,000 1 7,370 

Change in Net Assets 1 , 123,046 (2,01 6,943) 

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 25,777,1 67 27,794,1 10 

Net Assets, End of Year $ 26,900,21 3  $ 25,777,1 67 

See Notes to Financial Statements 8 
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North Dakota State Fair Association I Statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended September 30, 20 12  and 201 1 

I 
2012  201 1  

Operating Activities I 
Cash received from customers $ 6,93 1 ,738 $ 1 , 1 97,58 1 
Cash payments for goods and services ( 4,035,208) (2,267 ,1 05) 

I Cash payments to employees (1 ,5 16,4 12) ( 1 ,302,4 1 0) 

Net Cash from (used for) Operating Activities 1 ,380,1 1 8  (2,371 ,9342 

Non-Capital Financing Activities I 
Local  grants received 1 , 1 70,797 778,609 
State appropriations received 470,000 1 7,370 I 

Net Cash from Non-Capital Financing Activities 1 ,640,797 795,979 

Capital and Related Financing Activities I Payments for capital acquisitions ( 1 ,375,103) (322,442) 
State appropriations received 1 ,026,562 
FEMA flood assistance received 3,662,98 1 I Proceeds from issuance of flood loan 3,572,0 1 8  1 ,073,698 
Payments on flood loan (3,662,98 1 )  ( 1 7,905) 
P ayments for flood expenditures (3,566,424) ( 1 ,047,333) I Principal payments on bonds (420,000) ( 1 85,000) 
I nterest paid {8,8432 {23,8862 

Net Cash from (used for) Capital I and Related Financing Activities {1 ,798,352) 503,694 

Investing Activities I Receipts of interest and dividends 3,232 8,440 
P urchase of US Treasury Notes (22 1 ,000) 
Proceeds from the sale of US Treasury Notes 2 19,055 22 1 ,000 

I Net Cash from Investing Activities 222,287 8,440 

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1 ,444,850 ( 1 ,063,821 )  I 
Cash a nd Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 2,792,572 3,856,393 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 4,237,422 $ 2,792,572 I 
I 
I 
I 

See Notes to Financial Statements 9 
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Reconciliation of Operating Income 
to Net Cash from Operating Activities 

Operating loss 
Adjustments to reconcile operating k>ss 

to net cash from operating activities 
D epreciation 

Changes in operating a ssets and liabilities 
Customer receivables 
P repaid expenses 
Trade accounts payable 
Accrued leave 

Net C ash from Operating Activities 

Summary of Cash a nd Cash Equivalents 
Unrestric ted  cash in banks 
Restricted cash in banks 

Supplemental Disc losure· of 
Noncash Capital Financing Activities 

Va1ue received for trade of capital a ssets 

Noncash Investing Activity 
Change in FMV of investments 

See Notes to Financial Statements 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended September 30, 20 12 and 201 1  

201 2  20 1 1  

$ ( 137,034) $ (2,509,244) 

1 ,332,486 1 ,3 17,930 

85,534 ( 10 1 ,269) 
( 1 ,058) (2,560) 
92, 1 1 1  ( 1 ,084,1 02) 
8,079 7,3 1 1  

$ 1 ,380, 1 1 8  $ (2,371 ,934) 

$ 4,237,422 $ 2,541 ,701 
250,871 

$ 4,237,422 $ 2,792,572 

$ 1 2,089 $ 

$ $ ( 1 ,930) 
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7/1/2009 1 011/2009-
2009-20 1 1  9/30/2009 9/30/20 1 0  

Appropriation Expenditures �nditures 

Debt Service $ 2 1 0,000 $ - $ 1 90,000 

Grandstand 1 5,000,000 970,366 1 4,029,634 

Premiums 487, 1 50 236,698 250,452 

$ 1 5,697, 1 50 $ 1 ,207,064 $ 1 4,470,086 

1 0/ 1 /20 1 0-
6/30/201 1  201 1 -20 1 3  

Expenditures Appropriation 

$ 20,000 $ 2 1 0,000 

520,000 

$ 20,000 $ 730,000 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Statement of Appropriations 
Year Ended September 30, 20 1 2  

7/ 1120 1 1 -
9/30/20 1 1  

Expenditures 

$ 

1 7,392 

$ 1 7,392 

1 0/ 1 /20 1 1-
9/30/20 1 2  

Expenditures 

$ 2 1 0,000 

260,000 

$ 470,000 

Unexpended 
Appropriations 

at 9/30/201 2  

$ 

242,608 

$ 242,608 

The following schedule shows the appropriated and non-appropriated portion of premiums, operating expenses, interest expense and bond principal payments for 
the two-year period ended September 30, 20 12 .  Non-appropriated expenditures are made in accordance with NDCC 4-02. 1 - 1 5 . 

Premiums 
Operating expenses 
Interest expenses 
Principal payments on bonds 

See Notes to Financial Statements 

FY 20 1 2  F Y  20 1 2  F Y  201 1  FY 201 1 Fiscal Years 
Appropriated Non-appropriated Appropriated Non-appropriated 20 1 1 -20 1 2  Total 

$ 260,000 $ 5,868 $ 1 7,392 $ - $ 283,260 
- 6,7 1 7,370 3,790,702 1 0,508,072 
- 38,409 2 1 , 1 1 1  59,520 

2 1 0,000 2 1 0,000 20,000 1 65,000 605,000 

$ 470,000 $ 6,971 ,647 $ 37,392 $ 3,976,8 1 3  $ 1 1 ,455,852 

1 1  

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -



North Dakota State Fair Association 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 20 12  and 20 1 1  

Note 1 - Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The North Dakota State Fair Association is an Enterprise Fund of the State of North Dakota. The purpose of the 
State Fair Association is to conduct an annual exhibition of the state's resources and products in order to promote 
the state. 

The accompanying financial statements of the North Dakota State Fair Association follow the pronouncements of 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which is the nationally accepted standard-setting body 
for establishing generally accepted accounting principles for governmental entities. In addition, the Association 
follows all nonconflicting pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued and 
effective subsequent to November 30, 1 989. 

The accounting policies of the North Dakota State Fair Association conform to generally accepted accounting 
principles as applicable to local governmental units. The following is a summary of the more significant policies: 

Reporting Entity 

For financial reporting purposes, the North Dakota State Fair Association has included all funds, and has 
considered all potential component units for which the North Dakota State Fair Association is financially 
accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the North 
Dakota State Fair Association are such that exclusion would cause the North Dakota State Fair Association's 
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The North Dakota State Fair Association has no component 
units. Governmental Accounting Standards Board has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial 
accountability. This criteria includes appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body and ( 1 )  the 
ability of the North Dakota State Fair Association to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for 
the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the North Dakota 
State Fair Association. 

Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognized on the accrual basis for financial reporting. 

Infrastructure, Buildings, and Equipment 

Infrastructure, buildings and equipment are stated at cost except for donated assets which are reported at fair value 
on the date received. Expenditures exceeding $5,000 for renewals and improvements that significantly add to the 
productive capacity or extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance, repairs and 
improvements less than $5,000 are currently charged to expense. 

Depreciation is provided for over the estimated useful lives of the individual assets using the straight-line method. 
The estimated useful lives used in the computation of depreciation are as follows: 

Infrastructure 
Buildings 
Equipment 

Pension Costs 

Pension costs are funded as they accrue. 

5-25 years 
20-40 years 

3- 1 5  years 
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North Dakota State Fair Association 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 20 12  and 20 1 1  

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Association considers all Treasury bills, commercial paper, certificates 
of deposit and money market funds which have an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Restricted Cash and Investments 

As of September 30, 201 1 ,  the North Dakota State Fair had a bond that required certain reservations of the 
Association's assets. The Association had a reserved investment account in the amount of $2 1 9,055,  and an 
Emergency Reserve Cash Account in the amount of $250,87 1 .  The bond was paid in full during 20 12.  

Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount less a reserve estimate made for doubtful accounts. 
Management's estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based on historical loss levels and an analysis of 
the collectability of individual accounts. Accounts receivable are due within 30 days after which they are charged 
interest at 1 8% annually. 

Prepaid Items 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid 
items in the fund financial statements. 

Bond Issuance Costs and Bond Discounts 

Bond issuance costs and bond discounts are amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. 

Operating Revenues 

For purposes of differentiating operating revenues from no operating revenues, the Association considers support 
received from the City of Minot and Ward County to be non-operating revenues. The stated purpose of the 
support from the mentioned entities is to help offset the operating expenses related to non-Fair and arena ice 
activities. Expenses related to the maintenance and operations of these facilities are classified as operating 
expenses. 

Restricted Resources 

It is the Association's policy to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for which both 
restricted and unrestricted resources are available. 
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North Dakota State Fair Association 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 20 12  and 201 1 

Compensated Absences 

Employees accrue annual leave at a rate of eight hours per month for the first three years of continuous service. 
The accrual rate is increased to ten hours per month after three years, twelve hours per month after seven years, 
fourteen hours per month after thirteen years, and sixteen hours per month after eighteen years of service. The 
maximum amount of leave that may be carried forward each year is 240 hours. All unpaid leave is payable upon 
termination. 

Permanent employees also earn sick leave at a rate of eight hours per month. Sick leave is being carried over from 
year to year. If an employee leaves after ten continuous years of service, the employee will be paid for ten percent 
of any unused accumulated sick leave. 

Advertising Costs 

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Total advertising expense for the years ended September 30, 20 12  and 
20 1 1 , is $275,442 and $208,978, respectively. 

Estimates 

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenses. Actual 
results could vary from the estimates that were used. 

Note 2 - Cash 

Custodial Credit Risk 

State law generally requires that all state funds be deposited in the Bank ofNorth Dakota. NDCC 2 1 -04-02 
provides that public funds belonging to or in the custody of the state shall be deposited in the Bank ofNorth 
Dakota. Also, NDCC 6-09-07 states, "all state funds . . .  must be deposited in the Bank of North Dakota" or must 
be deposited in accordance with constitutional and statutory provisions. 

Note 3 - Investments 

As of September 30, 20 12 and 201 1 ,  the Association has the following investments: 

201 2  201 1  
Investment Maturity Fair Value Fair Value 

U .S .  Treasury note 10/2 1/ 10  $ $ 2 19,055 

State law generally requires that al l  state funds be deposited in the Bank ofNorth Dakota. NDCC 2 1 -04-02 
provides that public funds belonging to or in the custody of the state shall be deposited in the Bank of North 
Dakota. The North Dakota State Fair Association only invests in investments offered by the State Treasurer. 

14 



Interest Rate Risk 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 20 12  and 20 1 1 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt securities will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. The price of a debt security typically moves in the opposite direction of the change in interest rates. 
The Association does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of 
managing its exposure to potential fair value losses arising from future changes in interest rates. 

Note 4 - Capital Assets 

The components and changes in components of capital assets at September 30, 20 12  and 20 1 1 are as follows: 

Additions/ 
Balance Depreciation Balance 
09/30/1 1 ExEense Deletions 09/30/ 12  

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 
Land $ 390,8 16  $ $ $ 390,8 16  

Capital Assets Being Depreciated 
Infrastructure 3,6 13,28 1 1 70,935 (8,060) 3,776, 1 56 
Buildings 34,728, 1 12 1 ,0 19,369 (6,129) 35,74 1 ,352 
Equipment 1 ,758,107 196,887 {95,525} 1 ,859,469 

40,490,3 1 6 1 ,387,1 9 1  ( 1 09,714) 41 ,767,793 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Infrastructure (2,545,9 1 2) ( 123,576) 8,060 (2,66 1 ,428) 
Buildings ( 13,005,752) ( 1 , 148,695) 5,594 ( 14,148,853) 
Equipment {1 ,533,45 1)  {60,2 15} 83,436 {1 ,5 1 0,230} 

{17,085,1 1 5) {1 ,332,486} 97,090 {1 8,320,5 1 1} 

Net $ 23,405,20 1 $ 54,705 $ (12,624} $ 23,447,282 

Additions/ 
Balance Depreciation Balance 
09/30/10 ExEense Deletions 09/30/1 1 

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 
Land $ 390,8 16  $ $ $ 390,8 1 6  

Capital Assets Being Depreciated 
Infras true ture 3,465,985 147,296 3,6 13,28 1 
Buildings 34,598,087 1 30,025 34,728, 1 12 
Equipment 1 ,72 1 , 1 83 58, 1 27 {2 1 ,203} 1 ,758, 1 07 

40,176,07 1 335,448 (2 1 ,203) 40,490,3 16 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Infras true ture (2,424,868) ( 12 1 ,044) (2,545,9 12) 
Buildings ( 1 1  ,868,850) ( 1 , 1 36,902) ( 1 3,005,752) 
Equipment {1 ,48 1 ,664} {59,983} 8, 196 {1 ,533,45 1} 

( 1 5,775,382) ( 1  ,3 17  ,929} 8,196 ( 17,085, 1 1 5) 

Net $ 24,400,689 $ (982,48 1 )  $ ( 1 3,007) $ 23,405,20 1 

1 5  
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North Dakota State Fair Association 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 20 1 2  and 20 1 1  

Note 5 - Long - Term Debt 

Changes in Bond s  Payable, Flood Loan Payable and Accrued Employee Leave 

The following is a summary of changes in bonds payable, flood loan payable and accrued employee leave for the 
year ended September 30, 20 12 and 201 1 :  

Balance Balance 
09/30/1 1 Additions Retirements 09/30/12  

Bonds Payable $ 420,000 $ $ (420,000) $ 

Flood Loan 1 ,055,793 3,572,01 8  (3,662,98 1 )  964,830 

Accrued Employee Leave 61 ,777 50,889 {42,8 102 69,856 

$ 1 ,537,570 $ 3,622,907 $ ( 4, 1 25,791 )  $ 1 ,034,686 

Balance Balance 
09/30/10 Additions Retirements 09/30/1 1  

Bonds Payable $ 605,000 $ $ ( 1 85,000) $ 420,000 

Flood Loan 1 ,073,698 ( 17,905) 1 ,055,793 

Accrued Employee Leave 54,466 34,82 1 {27,5 102 61 ,777 

$ 659,466 $ 1 , 108,5 1 9  $ (230,4 1 52 $ 1 ,537,570 

Maturities of Bonds & Loan Payable 

Maturities of principal and interest on the flood loan are as follows: 

Year Ended September 30, Principal Interest 

201 3  $ 964,830 $ 52,243 

The following summarizes the Association's  debt outstanding as of September 30, 20 12 and 20 1 1 :  

Description and Due Date 

Refunding Revenue Bonds Series 200 1 
1 2101/02 - 1 2/01/1 1 

Flood Loan through the Bank of North Dakota 
08/10/1 1 - 06/30/1 3  

Interest Rate 

3 .5  - 4.6 

1 .25% over 30-day LIBOR 
Floor rate of 2.26% 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Current 
Portion 

964,830 

45,000 

1 ,009,830 

Current 
Portion 

420,000 

30,000 

450,000 

Total 

1 ,0 1 7,073 

Original 
Issue 

Amount 

$ 2,205,000 

Maximum 
$6,000,000 

1 6  



Refunding Revenue Bonds Series 2001 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 20 12  and 201 1 

Interest on the 200 1 Series Bonds is payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 of each year. The bonds 
maturing on December 1 ,  20 1 1 are not subject to optional redemption prior to maturity except under extraordinary 
circumstances. The bonds are presented on the balance sheet net of unamortized discount of $ 1 ,46 1 for the year 
ended September 30, 20 1 1 .  The bonds are secured by the Association's net revenues, designated appropriations 
from the North Dakota Legislature, a Reserve Account in the amount of $2 19,926, anp by an Emergency Reserve 
Account in the amount of $250,000. During 20 12 the bonds were paid in full. 

Bank of North Dakota Flood Loan 

On August 1 0, 20 1 1 ,  the Bank of North Dakota approved a loan for a non-revolving line of credit for the North 
Dakota State Fair Association, with funds up to $6,000,000 available. The purpose of the unsecured loan is to 
cover expenses associated with 20 1 1 flooding. All principal and interest are due at the maturity date of June 30, 
20 13 .  The interest rate is 1 .25% over the 30-day LIBOR, with a floor rate of 2.26%, at September 30, 20 12  and 
20 1 1 the interest rate was at 2.25% and 2.26%, respectively. 

Note 6 - Appropriations 
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The North Dakota State Fair Association receives premium appropriations from the State of North Dakota. These 
premium appropriations are restricted for the purpose of providing premiums to fair exhibition winners. Premium 

I appropriations for the years ended September 30, 20 12  and 20 1 1 , were $260,000 and $1 7,370, respectively. 

The North Dakota State Fair Association receives debt service appropriations from the State of North Dakota. 
These amounts are restricted for the purpose of bond payments. Debt service appropriations for September 30, I 2012 and 20 1 1 totaled $2 10,000 and $0, respectively. 
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Note 7 - Pensions 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 20 12  and 201 1 

The North Dakota State Fair Association participates in the North Dakota Public Employees' Retirement System 
(NDPERS) administered by the State of North Dakota. The following is a brief description of the plan. 

Description of Plan 

NDPERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all classified 
employees of the North Dakota State Fair Association. The plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits. 
If an active employee dies with less than five years of credited service, a death benefit equal to the value of the 
employee's accumulated contributions, plus interest, is paid to the employee's beneficiary. If the employee has 
earned more than five years of credited service, the surviving spouse will be entitled to a single payment refund, 
life-time monthly payments in an amount equal to 50% of the employee's accrued normal retirement benefit, or 60 
monthly payments equal to the employee's accrued normal retirement benefit calculated as if the employee were 
age 65 the day before death occurred (or, effective August 1 ,  1 995, monthly payments in an amount equal to the 
employees' accrued 100% joint and survivor retirement benefit if the member had reached normal retirement age 
prior to date of death). If the surviving spouse dies before the employee's accumulated pension benefits are paid, 
the balance will be payable to the surviving spouse's designated beneficiary. 

Eligible employees, who become totally disabled after a minimum of 1 80 days of service, receive monthly 
disability benefits that are equal to 25% of their final average salary with a minimum benefit of $ 1 00. To qualify 
under this section, the employee must meet the criteria established by the Retirement Board for being considered 
totally disabled. 

Employees are entitled to unreduced monthly pension benefits equal to 2.0% of their final average salary for each 
year of service beginning when the sum of age and years of credited service equal or exceed 85, or at normal 
retirement age (65). The plan permits early retirement at ages 55-64, with five or more years of service. NDPERS 
issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and the required supplementary 
information for NDPERS. That report may be obtained by writing to NDPERS; 400 E. Broadway, Suite 505; 
P.O. Box 12 14; Bismarck, ND 58502- 12 14. 

Funding Policy 

NDPERS is funded by employee contributions (set by statute) of 5% of regular compensation. During the 1 983-
1 985 biennium the State implemented the employer pickup provision of the IRS code whereby a portion or all of 
the required employee contributions are made by the employer. The ND State Fair Assn is paying the full 
employee contribution of 4%. Employer contributions of 5 . 1 2  percent of covered compensation are set by statute. 
Therefore, the ND State Fair Assn is paying a total contribution of 9. 12% out ofND State Fair Assn operating 
funds. The required contributions are determined using an entry age normal actuarial funding method. The North 
Dakota Retirement Board was created by the State legislature and is the governing authority ofNDPERS. Benefit 
and contribution provisions are administered in accordance with Chapter 54-52 of the North Dakota Century 
Code. The North Dakota State Fair Association's required and actual contributions to NDPERS for the fiscal years 
ending September 30, 20 12, 20 1 1 ,  and 20 10, were $73,367, $61 ,952, and $6 1 ,335 ,  respectively. 
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Note 8 - Lease Agreements 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 20 12 and 201 1 

The North Dakota State Fair Association, as lessor, has entered into lease agreements with local organizations for 
the use of Association buildings. The lessees have use of the facilities for established months of each year and the 
Association has use of the facilities for the period which coincides with fair time. 

Lease terms are as follows: 

Gymagic Gymnastics Agreement 

All Seasons Arena Ice Contract  

Norsk Hostfest Contract 

Minot Curling C lub Contract 

Term and Expiration Date 

5 years through September 20 1 7, 

Annual with renewal option 

1 year through September 201 2  

5 years through Apri1 201 7  

Annual Rental 

$ 25,200 

1 05,900 

1 56,400 

6,000 

The leases are accounted for as operating leases. The Gymagic Gymnastics and the Minot Curling Club leases are 
noncancelable. The Minot Curling Club Contract increases to $7,200 annually in fiscal year 20 15 . The All 
Seasons Arena Ice Contract and Norsk Hostfest contracts are cancelable in the event the facilities specified within 
the contracts are destroyed. 

The minimum aggregate lease revenue over the next five years is as follows: 

Years Ended September 30, 

201 3  
20 14  
20 1 5  
201 6  
201 7  

$ 

$ 

Amount 

1 37, 1 00 
3 1 ,200 
32,400 
32,400 
32,400 

265,500 

1 9  
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Note 9 - Risk Management 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 20 12  and 201 1 

The North Dakota State Fair Association is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, 
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The following are 
funds/pools established by the State for risk management issues: 

The 1 995 Legislative Session established the Risk Management Fund (RMF), an internal service fund, to provide 
a self-insurance vehicle for funding the liability exposures of State agencies resulting from the elimination of the 
State's sovereign immunity. The RMF manages the tort liability of the State, its agencies' employees and the 
University System. All State agencies participate in the RMF and their fund contribution was determined using a 
projected cost allocation approach. The statutory liability of the State is limited to a total of $250,000 per person 
and $ 1 ,000,000 per occurrence. 

In 1 986 State agencies and political subdivisions of the State ofNorth Dakota joined together to form the North 
Dakota Insurance Reserve Fund (NDIRF), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk 
management and insurance program for over 2,000 State agencies and political subdivisions. The North Dakota 
State Fair Association pays an annual premium to NDIRF for its general liability, auto, and inland marine 
insurance coverage. The coverage by NDIRF is limited to losses of one million dollars per occurrence. 

The Association also participates in the North Dakota Fire and Tornado Fund and the State Bonding Fund. The 
agency pays an annual premium to the Fire and Tornado Fund to cover property damage to building and personal 
property. Replacement cost coverage is provided by estimating replacement cost in consultation with the Fire and 
Tornado Fund. The Fire and Tornado Fund is reinsured by a third party insurance carrier for losses in excess of 
one million dollars per occurrence during a 12 month period. The State Bonding Fund currently provides the 
agency with blanket fidelity bond coverage in the amount of $2,000,000 for its employees. The State Bonding 
Fund does not currently charge any premium for this coverage. 

The agency participates in the North Dakota Workforce Safety and Insurance Fund (WSI), an Enterprise Fund of 
the State ofNorth Dakota. The WSI is a state insurance fund and a "no fault" insurance system covering the 
State's employers and employees financed by premiums assessed to employers. The premiums are available for 
the payment of claims to employees injured in the course of employment. 

There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year and settled claims resulting 
from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past two fiscal years. 

Note 1 0 - Commitments 

The North Dakota State Fair Association entered into a lease and concessions arrangement with M & S 
Concessions. The lessee is responsible to provide for its own concession equipment. In the event that the lease is 
not renewed or tenninated, the Association is committed to purchase the equipment and improvements installed 
by the lessee at a price equal to "depreciated value." Depreciated value means the original cost of the equipment 
or improvements, less 10% per year from the date of installation to the date of termination. Estimated depreciated 
value at September 30, 20 12  is approximately $260,844. 

20 



Note 1 1 - Extraordinary Items - Flooding 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 20 12  and 20 1 1 

During the month of June 20 1 1 ,  flooding from the Souris River directly impacted the North Dakota State Fair 
Association causing significant damage to the buildings and other properties. Costs are expected to be partially 
recovered from federal assistance programs. Included in the financial statements for the year ended September 30, 
20 12  and 20 1 1 are $ 1 ,767,739 and $2,862,940 in expenditures incurred or payable, respectively, and $ 1 ,424,750 
and $2,569,030 in federal grants revenues or receivables, respectively, from the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency. 
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Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 

Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards 

The Board of Directors 
North Dakota State Fair Association 
Minot, North Dakota 

We have audited the financial statements of the North Dakota State Fair Association, as of and for the 
year ended September 30, 20 12, and have issued our report thereon dated November 5, 20 12 .  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Management of the North Dakota State Fair Association is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered 
North Dakota State Fair Association's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our 
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofNorth Dakota State Fair Association's internal 
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of North 
Dakota State Fair Association's  internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. However, we identified a certain deficiency in internal control over 
financial reporting as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as 12- 1 ;  
that we consider to be a significant deficiency in internal control over financial reporting. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

w w w .  e i d e bo i l l y. co m  
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the North Dakota State Fair Association's 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

The North Dakota State Fair Association's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the North Dakota State 
Fair Association's response and accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Audit and Fiscal Review 
Committee, management, federal awarding agencies, and other state officials and is not intended to be 
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Bismarck, North Dakota 
November 5, 20 12  
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Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable That 
Could Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal 

Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 

The Board of Trustees 
North Dakota State Fair Association 
Minot, North Dakota 

Compliance 

We have audited the North Dakota State Fair Association's compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 20 12.  The North 
Dakota State Fair Association's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the 
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is 
the responsibility of the North Dakota State Fair Association's management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on the North Dakota State Fair Association's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government A uditing 

Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A- 1 33, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A- 133  
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
North Dakota State Fair Association's compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the North Dakota 
State Fair Association's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, the North Dakota State Fair Association complied, in all material respects, with the 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 20 12. 

w w w .  e i d e b o  i l ly .  c o m  
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Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of the North Dakota State Fair Association is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the North 
Dakota State Fair Association's internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A- 1 33,  but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the North Dakota State Fair Association's  internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that a material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses 
as defmed above. 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities of the North Dakota State Fair 
Association, enterprise fund of the State of North Dakota, as of and for the year ended September 30, 
20 12,  and have issued our report thereon dated November 5, 20 12  which contained an unqualified 
opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on 
the financial statements that collectively comprise the North Dakota State Fair Association 's  financial 
statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A- 1 33 and is not a required part of the financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and related 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements 
and certain other procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United State of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, management and 
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

Bismarck, North Dakota 
November 5, 20 12  
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A. Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors' report issued 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weakness identified 
Significant deficiency 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 
Material weakness identified 
Significant deficiency 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance with Circular A-1 33, Section .5 10(a) 

Identification of major programs: 

Name of Federal Program 

FEMA 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B programs 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
September 30, 20 12  

Unqualified 

No 
Yes 

No 

No 
None 

Unqualified 

No 

CFDA number 

97.036 

$300,000 

No 
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B. Findings - Financial Statement Audit 

12-1  Segregation of Duties - Significant Deficiency 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
September 30, 20 12  

Criteria: A good system of internal accounting control contemplates an adequate segregation of duties so that no 
one individual handles a transaction from its inception to its completion. 

Condition: The Association has a lack of segregation of duties in certain areas due to a limited staff. 

Cause: The control deficiency could result in the improper recording of a transaction. 

Effect: Inadequate segregation of duties could adversely affect the Association's ability to detect misstatements 
in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements in a timely period by employees in the 
normal course of performing their assigned function. 

Recommendation: While we recognize that your office staff may not be large enough to permit complete 
segregation of duties in all respects for an effective system of internal control, all accounting functions should be 
reviewed to determine if additional segregation is feasible and to improve efficiency and effectiveness of financial 
management of the Association. 

Management's Response: At the present time the North Dakota State Fair has segregated the duties of all key 
accounting personnel in the most efficient manner possible, given its limited staff. Due to cost constraints, there 
will be no further administrative employees added. 

C. Findings - M ajor Federal Award Program Audit 

None 
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Federal Grantor Program Title 

Department of Homeland Security 
North Dakota Department of Emergency Management 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Schedule of Expenditures ofFedera1 Awards 
Year Ended September 30, 20 1 2  

Federal Award 
Identifying 
Number 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number Expenditures 

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance FEMA- 1 9 8 1 -DR-ND 97.036 $ 1 ,374, 136 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 1 ,374, 1 36 

7 



Note 1 - Basis of Presentation 

North Dakota State Fair Association 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures ofFederal Awards 
Year Ended September 30, 20 12  

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of  federal awards includes the federal grant activity of  North Dakota 
State Fair Association and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A- 1 33, Audits of States, Local Governments, and 

Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts 
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. 
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4 - H  premium at work 
B y :  F lorence M ayer M a rch 2013 

A--ft;rc h m� n t 2 . 
58 2 0t/1 A.�  

f\1arcn i 201::. 

I a m  a m ember  of the I ntegrity 4-H c l ub  of Morton County. The 4-H m otto i s  to "ma ke the 

best, bette r" .  Today I ' d  l i ke to te l l  you a bout an opportu n ity I had to m a ke my best bette r, 

beca use of the prem ium money I ea rned at the N O  State Fa i r. 

Th is  past yea r I entered 37 projects at the N O  State Fa i r. 

I ea rned;  33 b l ue  r ibbons a n d  .1 red r ibbons .  

Of the 3 3  blue r ibbons I was awa rded : 

1 G rand  Cha mpion Awa rd, 

2 Reserve Cha mpion Awa rds, 

3 Awa rds of Exce l lence, 

A Cit izensh ip  R i bbon & a Trave l i ng Ban ner  Awa rd for promoti n g  4-H .  

After the State Fa i r  I rece ived a p remiu m money check for $122 for my efforts .  I was excited 

a bout  my success and sta rted th i n king a bout my options fo r what to do with th is prem i um 

money. 

I resea rched the bank ing i ndustry, i nvest ing & spoke to many bus i ness p rofess iona l s  

concern ing  cds, savings accou nts, i nterest rates & i nvest ing .  I wa nted th i s  pre m i u m  money to 

grow. 

One bus i nessman I spoke to instructed me to i nvest i n  ou r  loca l ut i l ity compa ny, so I cou ld 

d rive down Centu ry Avenue  & say I own pa rt of that part icu l a r  g lass pa lace .  Another  i nformed 

me he wou ld be so ha ppy if I put  my money in his bank .  Afte r one yea r  of hav ing my money 

inaccess i b le  I wou ld have enough i nterest ea rned to purchase a postage sta mp .  

Ne ither o f  these options appea led to me .  I ea rned th is  money by  ma k i ng my  best bette r & 
dec ided I shou ld  put my ha rd ea rned pre m i u m  money to use by cont i n u ing  to m a ke my best 

better .  I sta rted assess ing my i nterests and  sk i l l s  based on the success I had at the N D  State 

Fa i r . Afte r pondering severa l ideas,  I came u p  with a bus i ness p l an  focused bak ing and  I was on 

my way to becom ing an entrepreneur .  



. 
· (' ', My entr�pr'e n e u rsh

.
i p project is ca l led "Lovin '  from My Oven" .  My goa ls  were to : 

. ""connp let€ iV fund the project myself us ing  p rem i um money. 

""ea rn back the  cost of bus i ness expenses .  

""make e nough of a p rofit to esta b l i sh  a scho la rsh ip  fu nd for other youth to app ly for fu nds  to 

a l low them to focus  on commun ity service.  

This p roject req u i red me to resea rch 

food safety, 

food sa n itation ,  

accou nti ng, 

ma rketi ng, 

money ma nagement 

a nd a hea lthy a mount of t ime ma nagement .  

I ca l led loca l h e a lth depa rtments, exp la ined my miss ion & obta ined permiss ion under  the 

n a me of  4 - H  to  develop my project. I had  an 8 wee k  window to operate my entrepreneu rsh i p  

p roject. I sta rted by  putt ing out  a tray of  ba ked goods with a pamph let & a j a r  stati ng the 

suggested donat ion of $1 per serv ing wou ld be a ppreciated . 

When people sta rted to ask  about p lac ing o rders fo r the u pcoming ho l idays I was thri l l ed .  I 

sta rted hand i ng out specific ho l iday f l ie rs and  putti ng together  a portfo l io .  I received a g reater 

response then I had imag ined .  

At the end  of the  8 week bus iness, I had  met a l l  of  my goa ls .  I th ink  eve ry 4-H member  shou ld  

have an  opportu n ity to  do good for the i r  com mun ity. F rom the prem i um money I ea rned 

th rough 4-H a n d  a l itt le hard work and dete rm inat ion I have esta b l i shed a scho la rsh ip  fu nd 

th rough Morton  Cou nty for other  4-H mem bers who wa nt to give back to the i r  commun ity 

th rough se rv ice p rojects . 

I know N D  State Fa i r  prem ium money has  made a b ig d iffe rence in  the opportu n it ies I h ave 

had .  It rewa rds the efforts to make my best bette r .  

I be l i eve ND 4-H members a re ready to step up  and ma ke a d iffe rence in  our com mun it ies .  

P re m i u m  money fac i l itates th is  des i re a nd ma kes opportun it ies for youth through the fi nanc ia l  

rewa rds of the i r  work.  Tha n k  you for he lp i ng us  a long on our  jou rney of  respons ib i l ity and  

ma k ing N D  a bette r p lace .  



Lovi n' Ft-om My Oven :  Ot-det- Fot-m 
N'lme ____________________ _ 

Telephone ________________ _ 

*To p l'lce order  c'l l l  255-17 47 
Del ivet-y D'lte: 
(1 week in 'ldv'l nce ple'lse . ) 

Selection :  
__ Sn icker-dood le Cookie $6 .00 
__ Ginger-Sp ice Cookie $6 .00 
__ Choc-Ch ip 0'1tme'l l $6 .00 

Chocol'lte (t-i n kle Cookie $6 .00 
Monster Cookie $6 .00 
PB  Kissed Cookie $6 .00 
R'l i s in Cookie $6 .00 
B rown ies $6 .00 

__ Coffee Bre'l k P l'ltter I nqu i ry 
__ Pu mpkin P ie $10 .00 
_Apple P ie $12 .00 
__ Pec'l n Pie $12 .00 
__ Choc. M i nt Bu ndt C'l ke $10 .00 
__ C i nn'l mon Rol l 1/2 dozen $6 .00 
__ CrC� nberry WC� I nut Bre'ld $6 .00 
__ G'I rl ic Herb Bre'ld $6 .00 
__ Mu lti G r'l i n  B re'lcl $6 .00 
_Di l l  Bre'ld $6 .00 
__ Cou ntry Wh ite B re'ld $5 .00 

_# of Items Tot21 l Cost $ __ 

(qsh  or Check (Check # ) 

� • t' . ' , , 

About the BCI ket- & 
Lovin '  Ft-om My Oven 

Florence M'lyer is 'I n  'lctive 14- ye'l r 
o ld  g i rl who en ioys le'l rn i ng ,  spend ing 
t ime with her  f'lm i ly, p l'lying the pi­
'l no & vio l i n ,  t-id ing het- hot-se Pen ny, 
b'l king & sewing .  

She i s  'lctive i n  4--H .  Th is p'lst ye'l r 
she e'l rned 57 B lue Ribbons & 'I com­
bi n'ltion of 13 Gr'l nd or  ReseNe 
Ch'l mpion Aw'l rds .  

" Lovin / From My Oven '/ is 'In Edu­
c'ltion'l l P ro iect on Entrept-eneu rsh ip 
through Morton Cou nty 4--H .  Her 
go'l l is to le'l rn the bus i ness of own­
ing/ru n n i ng 'I b'l kery & 'I l l  the det'l i l s  
th'lt go with it. CHe'l lth regu l'ltions, 
Money M'l n'lgement, M'l rket ing, 
P roduct Perfection, Customer S'ltis­
�ction . . .  ) 

F lorence is independently fu nd ing  
her  pro iect . Her go'l l i s  to e'l rn b'lck 
the cost of ingred ients & est'l bl ish 'I 
4--H schol'l rsh ip fu nd for kids who 
wou ld l i ke to do set-Vice pro iects to 
he lp others i n  ou r comm u n ity. 

Th'l n k  you for you r p'lhon'lge, for 
support ing 'I youth to le'l rn new sk i l ls , 
g'l in  knowledge & i nspi re other ch i l ­
d ren by m'l king comm u n ity set-Vice 
p roiects 'lfford'l b le .  . · i 

Lovi n ' 

From My 
Oven 

� .. J!.; .. !;; •• �� ··�� 

Q u a l i t y  
B a ke d G o o d s 

2012-2013 

A tt�chrne-nf 2 .  8. 
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jY\arch �' ZCl 13 

flprt r,te May�r 



Lovi n /  From My Oven : Ho l idqy Se l ect ion s  
-� ----

:ookie & Sweets Selections 
)kies . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 6 .00/dozen 
;n icker-dood le Cookie 
::; i nger-Spice_ Cookie 
=hocol<1te Chip 0<1tme<1 l Cookie 
=hocol(1te Cri n kle Cookie 
V\onster Cookie 
)e<1 nut Butter Kissed Cookie 
J ld  F<1sh ioned R<1 is i n  Cookie 

Nnies . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 6 .00/dozen 
1/onderFu l  c(l ke- l i ke chocol<1te 
rown ies with Frosti ng !  

ffee Break P latters" <lV<l i l<l ble 
dy Far the oFFice .  Cookies (l re 
rid uq l ly p<lck(lged . P rice V(lries, de-
l i ng on size oF p l<1tter. Check bl<1nk  on 
Jrder Form <1nd. we wi l l  retum <1 ca l l  
'uestion�s & 1nFo'rrncitlon .  Th<1nks: 

P ie & Rol l  Selections 
Pu mpkin P ie . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 10 .00 

9 1/2 i nch P ie, TrClcFtionCl l  Hol id<ly Pie 

Apple P ie . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 12 .00 
9 1/2 i nch pie, Tender & A<1 ky o-ust 
Fi l led with Fresh <lpple Fi l l i ng .  

Pecan Pie . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 12 .00 
9 1/2 i nch pie .  A Southern Tr<ld ition .  
Very rich .  

Cinnamon Rol l s . . . . . $ 6 .00/h<1 IF  dozen 
A h<1 IF  dozen p<ln oF ci nn<1mon rol ls 
d rizzled with <1 sweet V<ln i l l<l ic i ng .  

Mint Chocolate Cake . . . . . . . . . .  $10 .00 
Moist Chocol(lte bu ndt c(l ke with <1 
smooth m int. A<1vor. Serves 16 .  

*P ies (1 re m<1de Fresh & shou ld  be 
e�ten Fresh .  We recom mend p ies to 

be consumed with i n  4-8 hou rs of 
de l ivery. 

Bt"ead Selections 
Cr<1nberry Walnut Bread . . . . . . . .  $ 6 .00 

F<1nt<1stic served w(lrm odo(lsted . 
Th is generous lo<1F wi l l  de l ight <1 l l  For 
brunch or b re(l kF<1st .  

Garl ic Herb Bread . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 6 .00 
Be(lutiFu l ly-Br<l ided Lo<1F with <1 rich 
S<1vory A<1vor. 

Mu lti G rain B read . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 6 .00 
7 wonderFu l ly n utty g r<l in s  Fi l l  th i s  
moist round lo<1F. 

D i I I  B read . . . . . . . . . . . . .  : . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 6 .  oo 
Rou nd Artes i<ln lo<1F, Fu i i -A<1vor. 
F<1nt<1stic  Fresh, with soup, g ri l l ed or 
to(lsted . 

Country Wh ite B read . . . . . . . . . . . $ s .oo 
A fr<ld ition<l l home-m<1de country 
wh ite bre<ld .  

6.s a lwClys .Lo�Jn·/ Ft!:x;/My Oven ba ked goods (1 re made From scr<1tch with fresh ,  whole ing red ients . They <1 re NOT low fut. 
1ts (1 re pres@n,t J'11 fbe

_ 
ki�c�er;· where good ies � re m�de .  S i ncerely, F lorence M�yer 



2003-2005 Biennium 

2005-2007 Biennium 

2007-2009 Biennium 

2009-2011 Biennium 

2011-2013 Biennium 

SB2009 - North Dakota State Fair 
Summary of Premiums Paid 

General Fund 
Total Premiums Paid Appropriation 

$400, 301 $391,7 50 

$424, 204 $405,000 

$443,983 $442, 150 

$ 502,990 $487, 150 

$283,236 $520,000 

A Hvrr_hrnenr I. 
March 2&,7 zo rs 

5B 2 ooq 

State Fair Funds Used 
$8,55 1  

$ 19,204 

$ 1,83 3 

$ 15, 840 

2011 State Fair cancel led 

d ue to flood.  $2 36, 764 

turned back to State. 

State Fair  d o l l a rs a re a lso used to cover the costs of runn ing each of the shows where premi u m s  

a re pa i d .  



1 3.81 59.02001 
Title. 
Fiscal No.  1 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Delzer 

March 1 5, 201 3 

PROPOSED AMEN DMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2009 

Page 1 ,  line 2 ,  after "association" insert " ;  to provide space for highway patrol training" 

Page 1 ,  after line 24, insert: 

"SECTION 3. EMERGENCY VEHICLE OPERATIONS COURSE. The state fair 
association shall allow the highway patrol to use parking lot space on the state 
fairgrounds for an emergency vehicle operations course and shall provide temporary 
classroom space as needed for related training courses, for the biennium beginning 
July 1 ,  201 3, and ending June 30, 201 5." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2009 - State Fair Association - House Action 

This amendment adds a section to allow the Highway Patrol to use space on the state fairgrounds for an 
emergency vehicle operations course and related training. 

Page No. 1 1 3.81 59.02001 



1 3.81 59.02002 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
House Appropriations - Education and 
Environment Division 

Fiscal No. 2 March 26, 201 3 

PROPOSED AMEN DMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2009 

Page 1 ,  replace lines 1 1  through 1 3  with: 

"Capital assets 
Premiums 
Total general fund 

Page 1 ,  replace lines 1 9  and 20 with: 

"Repair flood damage 
Total general fund 

Renumber accordingly 

$21 0,000 
520 000 

$730,000 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2009 - State Fair Association - House Action 

Executive Senate House 
Budget Version Changes 

Capital assets $3.500.000 $3.500.000 ($1.000. 000) 
Premiums 546.000 546.000 

Total all funds $4.046.000 $4.046.000 ($1.000. 000) 
Less estimated income 0 0 0 

General fund $4.046.000 $4.046.000 ($1.000. 000) 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 

$2,290,000 
26 000 

$2,31 6,000 

House 
Version 

.iQ 
$0 

$2.500.000 
546.000 

$3.046.000 
0 

$3.046.000 

0.00 

$2,500,000 
546 000 

$3,046,000" 

$2,500,000 
$2,500,000" 

Department No. 665 - State Fair Association - Detail of House Changes 

Capital assets 
Premiums 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Reduces 
Funding for 

Flood Damage 
Repair1 

($1.000.000) 

($1.000.000) 
0 

($1.000.000) 

0.00 

Total House 
Changes 

($1. 000.000) 

($1. 000.000) 
0 

($1. 000.000) 

0.00 

1This amendment reduces funding for flood damage repair by $1 mil l ion from $3.5 mil l ion to $2.5 mil l ion. 
The executive recommendation provided $3.5 mil l ion. 

Page No. 1 1 3.81 59.02002 



04/ 1 6/ 1 3  

.TEMENT O F  PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2009 - Funding Summary 
Executive Senate House House 

Budget Version Changes Version 
State Fair Association 

Capital assets $3,500,000 $3,500,000 ($ 1  ,000,000) $2,500,000 
Premiums 546,000 546,000 546,000 

Total aU funds $4,046,000 $4,046,000 ($ 1  ,000,000) $3,046,000 
Less estimated income 0 0 0 0 
General fund $4,046,000 $4,046,000 ($ 1  ,000,000) $3,046,000 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

BiU Total 
Total all funds $4,046,000 $4,046,000 ($ 1 ,000,000) $3,046,000 
Less estimated income 0 0 0 0 
General fund $4,046,000 $4,046,000 ( $ 1  ,000,000) $3,046,000 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Senate Bill No. 2009 - State Fair Association - Senate Action 

The amendment makes the capital assets l ine item, which includes funding for repairing flood damage, an emergency measure. 

Senate Bill No. 2009 - State Fair Association - House Action 

• 
Executive Senate 

Budget Version 
Capital assets $3,500,000 $3,500,000 
Premiums 546,000 546,000 

Total all funds $4,046,000 $4,046,000 
Less estimated income 0 0 
General fund $4,046,000 $4,046,000 

FTE 0.00 0.00 

Department 665 - State Fair Association - Detail of House Changes 

Capital assets 
Premiums 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

Reduces 
Funding for 

Flood Damage 
Repair1 

( I  ,000,000) 

($ 1  ,000,000) 
0 

($ 1 ,000,000) 

0.00 

Total 
House 

Changes 
( I  ,000,000) 

($ 1 ,000,000) 
0 

($ 1  ,000,000) 

0.00 

House 
Changes 
($ 1  ,000,000) 

($ 1  ,000,000) 
0 

( $ 1 ,000,000) 

0.00 

House 
Version 

$2,500,000 
546,000 

$3,046,000 
0 

$3,046,000 

0.00 

1 This amendment reduces funding for flood damage repair by $ 1  million from $3.5 mill ion to $2.5 mill ion. The executive 

recommendation provided $3.5 mill ion. 

This amendment also adds a new section to al low the Highway Patrol to use space on the state fairgrounds for an emergency vehicle 'cations course and related training. 

SB2009 




